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Key Data 
(million ecus) 

Total financing provided 
From own resources 
of which loans 
of which guarantees 
From other resources 

Within the Community 
ACP States and OCT 
Mediterranean Countries 
Central and Eastern European Countries . . 

Resources raised ......... 
Community currencies ........ 
Non-Community currencies 

Disbursements 
From own resources ......... 
From other resources . 

Aggregate outstanding 
Financing from own resources and guarantees 
Financing from other resources 
Short, medium and long-term borrowings 

Subscribed capital . 
of which paid in and to be paid in .... 

Reserves and profit for the finonciol year 

Balance sheet total 

Bank staff 

1992 

17 032.5 
16 904.0 
16 830.3 

73.7 
128.5 

16 139.7 
252.0 
320.8 
320.0 

12 973.6 
9 057.7 
3 915.9 

14 897.7 
14 797.5 

100.2 

84 273.5 
5 413.8 

67 783.5 

57 600.0 
4 320.9 

7 838.0 

84 666.7 

785 

1991 

15 393.3 
15 219.6 
15219.6 

173.7 

14 477.3 
389.5 
241.5 
285.0 

13672.3 
10 001.9 
3 670.4 

15 508.8 
15 315.8 

193.0 

72 713.3 
6 337.6 

58 892.6 

57 600.0 
4 320.9 

6 718.9 

74290.7 

751 

Loans Disbursements 

84 86 90 92 

Resources 

84 86 90 92 

Balance sheet 

84 86 88 90 92 84 86 88 90 92 

N.B.: Bar charts in billion ecus. 





EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK 

The financial institution of the European 
Community, the European Investment 
Bank (EIB), created by the Treaty of 
Rome, has seen its role reaffirmed by 
the Treaty on European Union. Its 
Statute constitutes a Protocol to the 
Treaty. 

The members of the EIB, an autonomous 
public institution within the Community, 
are the Member States of the EC, who 
have all subscribed to the Bank's capital. 

As a Community institution, the EIB 
continuously adapts its activity to devel­
opments in Community policies; it pro­
motes greater economic and social co­
hesion and attainment of the Single 
Market. 

As a bank, it works in close collabora­
tion with the banking community both 
when borrowing on the capital markets 
and when financing capital projects. 

The EIB grants loans mainly from the 
proceeds of its borrowings, which, to­
gether with "own funds" (paid-in capital 
and reserves), constitute its "own re­
sources". 

Outside the Community, EIB financing 
operations are conducted both from the 
Bank's own resources and, under man­
date, from Community or Member 
States' budgetary resources. 

Within the Community 

The ElB's main activity is to contribute 
concretely, by financing capital projects, 
to the balanced development of the 
Community, while adhering to the rules 
of strict banking management. 

As stipulated in Article 20 of its Statute, 
the EIB pays particular heed to ensuring 
"that its funds are employed as ration­
ally as possible in the interests of the 
Community". 

OBJECTIVES 

In keeping with the guidelines laid down 
in the treaties and in the light of devel­
opments in Community policies, projects 
considered for EIB financing must con­
tribute towards one or more of the fol­
lowing objectives: 

— fostering the economic advance­
ment of the less f avoured regions; 
— improving transport and telecommu­
nications infrastructure of benefit to the 
Community; 

— protecting the environment and the 
quality of life as well as safeguarding 
the Community's architectural and nat­
ural heritage; 
— promoting urban development; 
— attaining Community energy policy 
objectives; 
— enhancing the international com­
petitiveness of industry and integrating 
it at Community level; 
— supporting the activities of small and 
medium-sized enterprises. 

PROJECTS 

EIB loans may be granted to public or 
private borrowers in the following sec­
tors of the economy: 

— communications, environmental and 
energy infrastructure, 
— industry, services and agriculture. 

The EIB fi nances large-scale projects by 
means of individual loans concluded di­
rectly or through various financial inter­
mediaries. 

Small and medium-scale projects are 
generally funded through global loans. 

Global loans are similar to temporary 
lines of credit opened with bonks or 
financial institutions operating at 
European, national or regional level. 
These intermediaries draw on the pro­
ceeds to finance, in accordance with 
EIB criteria, productive-sector projects, 
generally undertaken by small and me­
dium-sized enterprises, and infrastruc­
ture schemes, notably involving com­
munications or the environment, pro­
moted by local authorities. 

In all cases, the EIB finances only part of 
the investment costs, supplementing 
the borrower's own funds and other 
sources of finance. Loans may not nor­
mally exceed 50% of investment costs ('). 

The EIB help s to finance investment pro­
grammes in conjunction with the op­
erations of the structural Funds and of 
the Community's other financial instru-

(') This ceiling has been raised for the lending facil-
ity decided in Edinburgh (see box article, page 20). 



ments. Loans from the EIB ma y be used 
in association with national or Com­
munity grant aid. 

Project appraisal, conducted by EIB 
staff, is designed to verify the econom­
ic benefits and viability of the scheme 
concerned. The appraisal looks into the 
project's consistency with the ElB's o wn 
financing criteria and Community policy 
guidelines as well as its compliance with 
environmental protection and procure­
ment regulations. The promoter's finan­
cial situation and cash flow projections 
along with security offered ore also 
examined. 

Once the appraisal is completed, the 
ElB's Board of Directors, acting on α  
proposal from the Management Com­
mittee, decides on the granting of α loan, 
taking account of the opinions of the 
Member State concerned and the Com­
mission of the European Communities. 

FINANCIAL TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS 

Maturity 

The EIB g rants long-term loons of which 
the maturity depends on the type of 
project concerned and its technical life. 
It generally varies between 7 and 12 
years for industrial projects and may 
extend to 20 years or more for infra-
structural schemes. 

Grace periods in respect of repayment 
of principal may be accorded, usually 
for between 2 and 5 years. 

Currencies 

Loans ore disbursed at par: 

— in α single currency, particularly α  
Member State's currency or the ecu; 
— in several currencies, either in stan­
dard mixes, with maturity, composition 
and interest rate all fixed in advance, or 
in varying mixes tailored to borrowers' 
preferences and the ElB's h oldings. 

Interest rates 

The ElB's first-class credit rating 
("AAA") enables the Bank to raise funds 
on the keenest terms available at the 
time. 

As it operates on α non-profit-making 
basis, the EIB onlends the funds bor­
rowed by it on the markets at α rate, 
adapted continuously, reflecting each 
currency's market cost plus α margin of 
0.15% to cover the Bank's operating 
costs. 

Rates may be set either upon signature 
of the finance contract or on the oc­
casion of each disbursement (open-rate 
contract). Loans are granted mainly at 
fixed rates, but may be granted at rates 
révisable after α set period of gener­
ally 4 to 10 years. They may also carry 
variable rates possibly convertible into 
fixed rotes. 

The method adopted for setting rotes is 
the same for all countries and sectors. 
The EIB d oes not accord interest subsi­
dies, although these may be granted by 
third parties. 

Outside the Community 

The EIB also provides financing for 
projects outside the Community fol­
lowing authorisation from its Board of 
Governors. Authorisation is given: 

— case by case, for financing for cer­
tain types of project of particular im­
portance to the Community, notably 
communications or energy supplies; 
— OS ceiling amounts in the case of 
financing in individual countries or 
groups of countries under agreements, 
conventions or decisions on Community 
financial cooperation. 

The ElB's field of operations under the 
latter heading encompasses: 

— the African, Caribbean and Pacific 
countries signatories to the Lomé Con­
vention (ACR States) plus the Overseas 
Countries and Territories (OCT); 
— countries, signatories to cooperation 
or association agreements with the 
Community, in: 

• the Mediterranean region 
• Central and Eastern Europe 
• Latin America and Asia. 

Special arrangements apply to such 
financing, the terms and conditions 
of which ore determined by various 
financial cooperation agreements. 
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
Situation at 1 June 1993 
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Vice-Presidents: Lucio IZZO 
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FOREWORD 

A difficult year both for European integration and for the world economy, 1992 again saw the European 
Investment Bank confirming its proficiency as the financial institution serving to promote economic and social 
cohesion throughout the Community. Broadening the scale and range of its activity, the EIB le nt a total of more 
than 77 billion ecus. 

Almost two thirds of this was devoted to capital investment in the less p rivileged regions or in areas needing to 
convert their economies. Lending in these regions increased by some 40% compared with the previous year, bring­
ing aggregate financing made available by the Bank for regional development within the Community over the 
past eight years to more than 50 billion ecus. 

This a ctivity has been closely associated with that of the EC s tructural Funds. The EIB and the Commission have 
coordinated their action in order to ensure the most effective interplay between both forms of Community 
financing. The priority accorded by the Bank to regional development, however, has not been to the detriment 
of support for other Community policy objectives. 

Consequently, in recent years, the EIB has consistently stepped up its financing for trans-European transport, tele­
communications and energy supply networks, vital for the free movement of persons, goods and information. At 
the same time, the Bank has demonstrated further commitment towards environmental protection and conserva­
tion for which lending more than doubled in 1992. 

With a view to accommodating disbursements on loans for these projects on the most favourable terms available 
at the time, the EIB b orrowed the equivalent of some 13 billion ecus in 1992. Despite currency turmoil, the Bank 

• rea ffirmed its leading position on the capital markets and continued to fulfil its role as the financial 
institution promoting a closer-knit Europe. 

1993 marks the ElB's 35th anniversary. As in the past, the Bank will use its best endeavours to foster the 
Community's transition to Economic and Monetary Union by expanding its traditional operations and developing 
new activities in keeping with the conclusions of the Edinburgh European Council on 11-12 December 1992. 

As part of the European growth initiative, the EIB has promptly established an additional lending facility of five 
billion ecus intended to accelerate the financing of infrastructural schemes forming part of trans-European 
networks or helping to protect the environment. In February of this year, under this facility the Bank's Board of 
Directors approved a series of loans involving almost one billion ecus in support of some fifteen projects in seven 
Community Member States. 

The EIB is stepping up its efforts to pinpoint viable projects eligible for assistance under this facility, while 
actively paving the way for establishment of the European Investment Fund (EIF). The main task of this Fund will 
be to provide guarantees for major projects of benefit to the Community and for capital investment by smaller 
businesses. 

After almost nine years in office, I am entrusting to my successor an efficient institution able to respond to the 
challenges of building the Europe of tomorrow. With the backing of my colleagues on the Management 
Committee and the staff as a whole, we have succeeded over this period in broadening the scope of Bank 
activity both within and outside the Community, participated in the widening panoply of Community policy 
objectives and, in the process, turned our Bank into the largest multilateral financial institution. 

My thanks go to all those who have made these developments possible. 

Ernst-Günther BRODER  

President 





THE EIB, THE COMMUNITY'S FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 

Bank Activity in 1992 

The task of the European Investment 
Bank, the Community's financial institu­
tion, is to contribute to the balanced 
development, integration and economic 
and social cohesion of all Member 
Countries. For this purpose, it deploys 
banking resources in helping to finance 
capital projects. It also provides funding 

for projects in non-member countries 
with which the Community has con­
cluded economic and financial coopera­
tion agreements. 

In order to carry out its task, the EIS  
grants loans from its own resources and 
furnishes guarantees (see note 5(e), 

page 116). In addition, it provides 
financing, principally outside the Com­
munity, under mandate and from 
Community or Member States' budget­
ary resources; such operations are 
accounted for off balance sheet in the 
Special Section (see page 70). 

Finance contracts signed in 1992 
totalled 17 033 million (') (15 393 million 
in 1991), an increase ot 11% at current 
prices and 9% in real terms (see note 7, 
page 116). Total financing broke down 
OS to 16 830 million in loons from own 

(') Unless otherwise indicated, oil amounts given in 
this report are expressed in ecus and have been 
rounded to the nearest million. 

resources, 74 million in guarantees and 
129 million in operations using other 
resources (174 million in 1991). 

In order to cater for demand for dis­
bursements (14 798 million, compared 
with 15 320 million in 1991), the EIB 
made calls on the capital markets for α  
total of 12 974 million (13 672 million in 
1991). About 69% of this was raised in 

the form of fixed-rate, long and 
medium-term funds and 31% through 
floating-rate operations. 

Community currencies accounted for 
almost three quarters of aggregate bor­
rowings, with the ecu heading the list 
for the fourth year in α row (1 937 mil­
lion, or nearly 15% of the total). 

Table 1 : Contracts signed in 1992, from 1988 to 1992 and from 1973 to 1992 
Breakdown by origin of resources and praject location 

1992 1988-1992 1973-1992 

million million million 
ecus % ecus % ecus % 

Loons from own resources and guarantees 16 904.0 99.2 66 917.1 98.4 117 551.8 93.5 
within the Community 16 139.7 94.8 63 715.7 93.7 110 093.3 87.5 
of which: loans 16 066 .0 94.3 63 404.5 93.2 109 552.2 87.1 
of which: guarantees 73.7 0.5 311.2 0.5 541.1 0.4 
outside the Community 764.3 4.5 3 201.4 4.7 7 458.5 5.9 

Financing from other resources 128.5 0.8 1 102.6 1.6 8 217.6 6.5 
within the Community — — 497.6 0.7 6 386.4 5.1 
outside the Community 128.5 0.8 605.0 0.9 1 831.2 1.5 

Grand Total 17 032.5 100.0 68 019.7 100.0 125 769.4 100.0 
within the Community 16 139.7 94.8 64 213.3 94.4 116 479.7 92.6 

outside the Community 892.8 5.2 3 806.4 5.6 9 289.7 7.4 
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Loans for investment within the Commu­
nity amounted to 16 140 million (see list, 
page 96). This represented α rise of 12% 
on α year-on-yeor basis. 

Projects were financed in every Commu­
nity Member State, with α marked 
increase in activity in Spain, Portugal, 
the United Kingdom and Germany, 
where the growth in lending was partly 
attributable to the upturn in operations 
in the eastern Länder. 

The EIB co ntinued its active support for 
the balanced development of the Com­
munity. Financing for regional develop­
ment, foremost among the ElB's objec­
tives, accounted for 70% of the total. 
Over nine tenths of the corresponding 
amount related to projects located in 
areas eligible for Community structural 
measures. 

The EIB also helps to strengthen the 
economic and social cohesion of the 

Community by assisting the develop­
ment of infrastructure facilitating com­
munications between the various 
regions and fostering links of European 
importance. It finances investment 
needed to protect the environment and 
improve the quality of life, to develop 
the Community's energy resources and 
to diversify its sources of supply. 

Geographical breakdown of EIB activity (') 

Contracts signed 
(million ecus) 

1992: 17 032.5 1991: 15 393.3 
amount % amount % 

396.6 2.5 Belgium 115.6 0.8 
690.8 4.3 Denmark 538.6 3.7 

1 663.9 10.3 Germany 1 300.1 9.0 
377.5 2.3 Greece 366.9 2.5 

3 020.6 18.7 Spain 2 342.5 16.2 
1 895.1 11.7 France 1 924.4 13.3 

303.5 1.9 Ireland 237.0 1.6 
3 796.9 23.5 Italy 4 000.7 27.6 

42.8 0.3 Luxembourg 28.6 0.2 
154.4 1.0 Netherlands 175.4 1.2 

1 230.4 7.6 Portugal 1 002.1 6.9 
2 407.2 14.9 United Kingdom (^ ) 2 145.0 14.8 

159.7 1.0 Other {') 300.4 2.1 
16 139.7 100.0 Community 14 477.3 100.0 

252.0 28.2 ACP-OCT 389.5 42.5 
320.8 35.9 Mediterranean 241.5 26.4 
320.0 35.8 CEEC 285.0 31.1 
892.8 100.0 Non-Community 916.0 100.0 

(') For abbreviations, see note 3, page 115. 
(^) In e arly 1992 an amendment was made to α finance contract signed in 
1991, thereby increasing the figures for the United Kingdom and altering 
data for the 1991 financial year. 
0 Projects located outside the Member States but of benefit to the Com­
munity (see note 5(d), page 115). 

Share 
(1992) 
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In supporting productive-sector invest­
ment, the EIB attaches particular 
importance to strengthening the inter­
national competitiveness of Community 
industry and to promoting small and 
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), whose 
contribution towards economic growth 
is appreciable, especially at regional 
level. The pattern of Bank financing 
bears witness to the ElB's commitment 
to achieving Community objectives and 
its ability to offer loan conditions tail­
ored to the needs of project promoters. 

Outside the Community, financing, 
made available as part of EC c oopera­
tion policy with third countries, amount­
ed to 893 million (916 million in 1991), 
with 764 million from own resources and 
129 million from budgetary resources 
(see list, page 94). 

In the Southern Mediterranean Coun­
tries, activity under the financial proto­
cols was supplemented by initial non-
protocol lending under the Redirected 
Mediterranean Policy (321 million). 

Financing in Central and Eastern Europe 
was extended to all those countries 
(CEEC) eligible for EIB loons (320 mil­
lion). Finally, operations in the African, 
Caribbean and Pacific (ACP) Countries 
as well as in the Overseas Countries 
and Territories (OCT) came to 252 mil­
lion. 

Financing provided (contracts signed) from 1973 to 1992 
(in mil lion ecus at cur rent pr ices) 

17 500 

15 000 

1992 

12 500 

1973 

I I Outside the Community 

H Within the Community 

Β Total 
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Economie background 

1992: LOW GROWTH AND INCREAS­
ING UNEMPLOYMENT 

As in all major Industrialised countries, 
economic growth in the Community was 
low, continuing the process of steady 
contraction since 1989. Unemployment 
therefore continued to rise. 

In many Member States, this worsening 
economic situation was accompanied by 
stagnation or declining investment. 

Outside the Community, most leading 
notions hod to contend with a variety of 
problems, with faltering recovery and a 
continuing budget deficit in the United 

States, economic slowdown in Japan 
and the deteriorating situation through­
out the former Soviet Union. These 
difficulties, compounded by strained 
relations between trading partners, 
culminated in poor worldwide growth, 
despite encouraging results from a num­
ber of newly industrialised nations f). 

In the Community, GDP growth con­
tinued to fall, settling at 1.1% in 1992, 
as against 1.4% in 1991, 2.8% in 1990, 
3.4% in 1989 and 4.1% in 1988. This 
downturn was considerable in almost 
every country except Ireland and 
France. 

For the first time since the recession of 
the early 1980s, aggregate investment 
measured in terms of GFCF dropped in 
real terms (—0.3%), leaving aside 

GDP, inflation, employment, 
unemployment 

(annual variations) 

84 86 

Unemployment 
" inflation 

Germany's new Länder. If the latter are 
included, the total figure shows α slight 
rise of -1-0.4%. 

GDP/GNP 
international comparisons 

(annual variations) 

(') The macro-economic statistics in this chapter are 
drawn from the 1993-1994 economic budgets pub­
lished, in early 1993, by the Commission and from 
the "Economic Outlook of the OECD". They remain 
provisional. The rates of growth for physical aggre­
gates are expressed in volume terms, inflation is 
measured by the consumer price index. 

The data for Germany in the graphs take account 
of the new German Länder since 1992 (trade and 
current balances: since 1991). 

Capital expenditure as α proportion of 
overall investment fell back sharply: 
— 1.5% (—0.7% including the new 
Länder) compared with —0.2% in 1991 
and increases of 4.8% in 1990, 9%, 
10.6% and 8.5% in the three preceding 
years. 

This trend was notably evident in 
Denmark (—12%), France (—4.3%), 
western Germany (—2%), the Nether­
lands (—0.8%) and Italy (—0.7%). 

GFCF and its components 
(annual variations) 

90 

Construction 

Ί4 



The worsening economic situation and 
high interest rates also affected invest­
ment in the construction sector, which 
nevertheless appears ta have staged α  
modest recovery. In the circumstances, 
the number of people out of work 
increased appreciably. 

Unemployment grew in almost all Mem­
ber States, affecting 9.5% of the work­
ing population (10.1% including eastern 
Germany), compared with 8.8% in 1991. 
Total employment fell for the first time 
in ten years. 

Despite high import prices, inflation 
slackened somewhat (4.5% as against 
5.3%), although high rotes continued to 

Trade balance fob: 
international comparisons 

(as % of GD P) 

in 1991) and the current account 
balance (—1% of GDP). 

In Japan, economic growth slipped 
back considerably. GNP climbed by 
1.5%, as against 4.4% in 1991. 

For the first time since 1983, aggregate 
investment declined (—0.7%), while 
growth in private consumption was the 
lowest since 1981. 

As the reduction in imports observed in 
1991 gave way to only α modest upturn, 
in particular for manufactured goods, 
the trade and current account surpluses 
should increase to about -1-3.6% and 
-F3.2% of GDP respectively. 

GDP 
1989-1992 
(growth rates) 

2-

0 

-2-

-4 

u 
BE DK DE GR ES FR  

1989 • 1990 

IE IT LU NI FT GB EC 

affect Greece (16%) and Portugal 
(9.1%). 

The Community's trade balance (exclud­
ing eastern Germany) showed α surplus 
equivalent to -1-1.2% of GDP, mainly as 
α result of flagging imports, but α  
slight deficit after allowing for eastern 
Germany. The current account deficit 
was more or less s table. 

In the United States, following the 
recession in 1991, GDP showed positive 
growth (-1-2%, as against —1.3%). Infla­
tion slowed down, whereas the federal 
budget deficit widened and unemploy­
ment took α turn for the worse. 

In the wake of the improvement record­
ed in 1991, rising imports led to further 
deterioration of both the trade deficit 
(—1.5% of GDP, compared with —1.3% 

Current balances 
1989-1992 

(in relation to GDP) 

I 

-I- -I-
BE DK DE GR ES FR IE IT NL FT GB EC 

I I 1989 • 1990 Η 1991 • 1992 
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In Africa, the process of democrotis-
otion and structural reforms continued 
in some countries, with α slight reduc­
tion in financial imbalances but often 
little real impact so for. 

A number of countries are experiencing 
α high degree of instability or even out­
right crisis, entailing serious conse­
quences for their economies. 

Overall, the unfavourable international 
climate — in particular, worsening 
terms of trade and virtual stagnation of 
export markets — was α contributory 
factor in increasing domestic difficulties. 
The rate of economic growth again fell 
short of population growth. 

1992 was α year of contrasting devel­
opments in the non-member Mediter­
ranean Countries. 

In the Middle East, the revival of 
economic activity helped reduce budget 
deficits without, however, alleviating 
inflationary pressures. 

In the Maghreb, economic reforms con­
tinued at α sustained pace in Morocco, 
which, moreover, suffered from poor 
harvests, and in Tunisia, which enjoyed 
excellent yields, whereas Algeria con­
tinued to face growing political and 
economic problems. 

On the whole and despite depressed 
demand in the developed countries, the 
countries in this region recorded α rela­
tive recovery while maintaining overall 
equilibrium in terms of prices, public 
finances and balance of payments. 

In Central and Eastern Europe, 
economic growth was closely linked to 
progress on reforms. 

Indicative commodity prices 
(constant 1990 dollars) 

$/tonne 
4 000 

3 000 -

$/barrel (for crude) 
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In Poland, Hungary and the former 
Czech and Slovak Federal Republic, 
inflation continued to slow down, while 
output bottomed out. These countries 
have witnessed strong export perform­
ance, under the stimulus of the agree­
ments concluded with the Community. 
With α substantial flow of investment 
contributing to increased foreign 
exchange reserves, the strains of exter­
nal financing have eased. In Bulgaria, 
and especially in Romania, the indi­
cators ore less favourable. Stabilisation 
is apparently proving difficult to achieve 
in spite of the introduction of austere 
macroeconomic policies. 

In all these countries, unemployment 
deteriorated significantly. 

In the new independent states of the 
former Soviet Union, output fell further 
and inflation grew worse. These coun­
tries are facing serious financial prob­
lems due to the difficulty in obtaining 
loans from foreign bonks and the lim­
ited volume of inward investment. 

Cotton 
Cocoa 
Coffee 
Palm oil 

Aluminium 
' Copper 
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Community context 

1992: A TURBULENT YEAR 

1992 will go down as a year rich in 
events, favourable or otherwise, for the 
future of the Community. 

After the signing of the Treaty on 
European Union in Maastricht on 7 
February, the ratification process suf­
fered a setback in Denmark and made 
slow progress in the United Kingdom. 
By the end of 1992, it had been com­
pleted by ten countries. 

During the second half of the year, the 
monetary crisis severely strained the 
European Monetary System, requiring 
parity realignments and leading to some 
currencies suspending their membership 
of the Exchange Rate Mechanism. 

Following on from the initial conclusions 
of the European Council meeting in 
Lisbon on 26 and 27 June, the agree­
ment reached in Edinburgh on 12 
December marked the resolve of the 

Member States to move forward despite 
the problems encountered. Progress on 
establishing the European Economic 
Area and the opening in February 
1993 of membership negotiations with 
Austria, Sweden and Finland demon­
strate the attraction which the Com­
munity continues to exercise. 

While 1 January 1993 did not see 
entry into force of the Treaty on Euro­
pean Union, it did usher in the Single 
European Market thirty-five years after 
activation of the Treaty of Rome and 
twenty years after Denmark, Ireland 
and the United Kingdom joined the 
Community. 

Over the past troubled year, the Euro­
pean Investment Bank has continued to 
play its part as the Community's finan­
cial institution. It has stepped up its 
action in support of economic and social 
cohesion and underpinned investment in 
the less favoured regions. In coopera­
tion with the Commission and the Mem­

ber States, it has worked towards the 
establishment of a European Investment 
Fund, which the Edinburgh European 
Council agreed should be created as a 
matter of urgency, together with a lend­
ing facility designed to accelerate the 
financing of European infrastructure. 
Finally, the Bank's field of activity is now 
being extended to Latin America and 
Asia as well as further Central Euro­
pean Countries. 

Both inside and outside the Community, 
the FIB helps to give practical expres­
sion to key European policy guidelines 
in close cooperation and partnership 
with European institutions, national and 
regional authorities, the banking com­
munity and project promoters. 

In the years ahead, ever mindful of the 
quality of its operations, the FIB will 
continue to devote its professional 
resources to fostering the balanced 
development of the Community. 

The Treaty on European Union high­
lights the role ossigned to the EIB in 
promoting economic and social co­
hesion. Over the post yeor, the Bonk 
endeovoured to fulfil thot responsibility 
both by developing its troditionol 
octivities ond preporing new finoncing 
techniques. This duol opprooch wos 
endorsed by the Edinburgh Europeon 
Council, whose conclusions reaffirm the 
role of the EIB os the Community's 
finonciol institution. 

With ο view to stimuloting economic 
recovery in Europe, the Edinburgh 
Europeon Council colled for the intro­
duction of notionol ond Community 
meosures to improve growth prospects 
and creote losting employment os port 
of the convergence of economies 
defined in the Treoty on Europeon 
Union. 

In the context of Community action 
to foster economic recovery, two con­
clusions directly concerned the Bonk: 

infrostructure projects, notobly connect­
ed with trons-Europeon networks (see 
box orticle, poge 20); 

— in oddition, the Europeon Investment 
Fund (EIE), designed to focilitote the 
finoncing of trons-Europeon networks 
ond SMEs, is to be estoblished as quick­
ly OS possible (see box orticle, poge 18). 

As regards the Community's structural 
action, the Europeon Council noted 

— the EIB wos invited to establish, in 
consultotion with the Commission, ο  
5 billion ecu temporory lending focility 
to occelerote the finoncing of copitol 
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THE EUR OPEAN INVESTMENT FUND (E IF) 

In its declaration on economic recovery in Europe, the 
Edinburgh European Council "invited ... the ECOFIN Council 
and the EIB to give urgent and sympathetic consideration to 
the establishment as quickly as possible of a European Invest­
ment Fund with two billion ecus of capital contributed by the 
EIB, other financial institutions and the Commission". This 
invitation follows on from work embarked upon by the Bank 
and the Commission in close collaboration and pursued by a 
working party of the ElB's Board of Directors. After the Euro­
pean Parliament had been consulted, an Intergovernmental 
Conference held on 25 March approved an act amending the 
Protocol on the Statute of the EIB em powering the Bank's 
Board of Governors to establish a European Investment Fund. 
This act is being submitted for ratification in accordance with 
each Member State's own procedures. 

— major infrastructure projects forming part of trcns-
Europeon networks (TENs), establishment of which will 
benefit Community activity and facilitate cross-border links; 

— s mall and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs). 

The EIF's operations will predominantly take the form of 
financial guarantees. The provision of equity will be 
contemplated at α later stage. Loan guarantees are, besides 
feasibility studies and interest subsidies, one of the three 
ways set out in the Union Treaty (Title XII, Article 129c) of 
furnishing financial support for TENs. 

The targeting of SMEs, on the other hand, corresponds to the 
objectives of both Title XIII (Industry) and Title XIV (Economic 
and Social Cohesion) of the same Treaty. 

The EIF's operations will be coordinated, where necessary, 
with other forms of Community assistance. 

The EIF, estab lished by decision of the ElB's B oard of Gov­
ernors, will operate on α self-sustaining basis; as α separ­
ate legal entity, its accounts will be distinct from those of the 
Bank. It will be managed on α day-to-day basis by the EIB 
under mandate. 

The in itial subscribed capital will amount to 2 billion ecus, 
20% of which will be paid in. According to preliminary 
estimates, at the outset this would cover between 6 and 
10 billion ecus of guarantees. The EIB wil l subscribe 40% of 
the initial capital, the Commission, 30% and other financial 
institutions, the remaining 30%. The EIB will finance its share 
aut of its annual surpluses. 

The EIF's main objectives will be to contribute to the strength­
ening of the internal market and the furthering of economic 
and social cohesion. EIF support will mainly target: 

The EIF will be run on the basis of banking criteria. The exis­
tence of the EIF will thus facilitate private infrastructure 
financing by providing α complement or partial alternative to 
recourse to government guarantees for infrastructure financ­
ing. The viability criterion will also be on essential element in 
its approach to SMEs. 

The EIF represents an innovative structure in terms of its 
share ownership. It will bring together public and private, 
Community and national, partners in providing new means of 
supporting capital investment essential for the EC's economic 
recovery and balanced development. 
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that the financing of capital projects 
and investment programmes through 
funds borrowed on the capital markets 
can play an important complementary 
role and help to strengthen economic 
and social cohesion on on economically 
sound basis. It recalled the provisions of 
the Maastricht Protocol on Cohesion to 
the effect that "the EIB should devote 
the majority of its resources to the pro­
motion of economic and social cohesion 
and that its capital needs should be 
reviewed as soon as this was necessary 
for that purpose". 

The Council "recognizes the scale of the 
effort which the EIB is already making in 
this area" and "requests the EIB to 
achieve, subject to the requirements of 
the Treaty and its Statute, α further 
expansion of lending in the Member 
States benefiting from the cohesion 
fund and in Objective 1 Regions of the 
Community". 

The ElB's activity is thus enhanced in the 
majority of the areas in which it oper­
ates. 

This applies, first and foremost to 
regional development. In 1992, the 
EIB devoted 11.8 billion, or 70% of its 
loons, to projects in the Community's 
less f avoured regions. 

More than nine tenths of these loans 
were given over to areas targeted by 
Community structural action. In particu­
lar, over half related to investment in 
regions whose development is lagging 
behind (Objective 1). 

In these various regions. Community 
support will be strengthened by im­
plementation of the decisions token in 
1992. 

The agreement on the Community's 
financial perspective up to 1999 pro­
vides for budgetary resources of 177 

THE EI B A ND THE TREATY ON 
EUROPEAN UNION 

The Treaty on European Union, signed 
on 7 February 1992 and in the course 
of ratification at the beginning of 
1993, amends and supplements the 
Treaty of Rome (see Annual Report 
1991, pages 17-18). 

A number of articles apply to the EIB: 
— Article 4b (former Article 3 of the 
Treaty of Rome) concerns the establish­
ment of the European Investment Bank; 
— Article 198d (former Article 129) 
defines the EIB; 
— Article 198e (former Article 130) 
recalls the objectives assigned to the 
Bank. Aside from the financing of pro­
jects, i t provides scope for the EIB to 
facilitate the financing of investment 
programmes, in conjunction with assis­
tance from the structural Funds and 
other Community financial instruments. 
The Bank's contribution to Community 
policies also emerges from the role 
entrusted to it in promoting the eco­
nomic and social cohesion defined in 
the protocol annexed to the Treaty; 
— Article 104c (11) sets o ut the part 
played by the Bank in the quest for 
economic convergence; 
— lastly. Article 130w relates to its 
contribution to development coopera­
tion. 

Articles 198d and 198e f eature in Part 
Five of the Treaty dealing with the 
Community institutions. 

billion (1992 prices) over seven years for 
all structural action. Grants will be more 
heavily concentrated than in the past on 
Objective 1 regions via structural fund 
and cohesion fund measures. 

As mentioned above, the European 
Council requested the EIB to expand 
lending in these regions and stressed 
the importance of the complementary 
role of its loons. It also called for the 
EIB "to consider, together with the 
Council and the Commission, how it con 
contribute, with Member States, to the 
improved operation of the structural 
funds and the cohesion fund". 

In the case of the cohesion fund, the 
European Council indicated that, in 
appropriate cases, the EIB may be 
invited by the Commission to help in 
evaluating projects. 

Finally, as part of the agreement on 
the European Economic Area (EEA) 
concluded between the Community and 
the EFTA countries, the latter have 
decided to establish α mechanism to 
provide financial assistance to promote 
development and structural adjustment 
in Greece, the island of Ireland, 
Portugal and the Objective 1 regions of 
Spain. The EIB h as been entrusted with 
management of this mechanism under α  
cooperation agreement signed by the 
President of the EIB a nd the ambassa­
dors of the EFTA countries in June 1992; 
α supplementary agreement between 
the EIB and the Commission guarantees 
coordination between this mechanism 
and the Community structural Funds. An 
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additional protocol which should allow 
entry into force in mid-1993 of the 
agreement and the financial mechanism 
with the EFTA countries, other than 
Switzerland, was initialled at the end of 
February. 

The decision by the Edinburgh European 
Council to base economic recovery 
efforts on notional and Community 
action in support of infrastructure is 

mirrored in the continuous backing 
given by the Bank to capital projects of 
this nature which have traditionally 
accounted for α substantial portion of 
its financing. In 1992, loans for infra­
structure in general (transport, telecom­
munications, energy, environment) cor­
responded to 73% of the total and those 
for projects more directly linked to 
trans-European networks, 27%. 

This support could be reinforced by the 
decisions taken in Edinburgh, given the 

planned interaction between notional 
and Community measures. Once estab­
lished, the European Investment Fund 
will also be able to furnish guarantees 
on loans for certain projects and thus 
facilitate their implementation. 

The decision to include infrastructure 
safeguarding the environment under 
the financial mechanisms created or 
endorsed in Edinburgh will assist 

THE E DINBURGH LENDING FACILITY 

In the "Declaration on Promoting Economic Recovery in 
Europe", the Edinburgh European Council invited "the Coun­
cil and the EIB in full consultation with the Commission to 
give urgent and sympathetic consideration to the establish­
ment of a new, temporary lending facility of 5 billion ecus 
within the EIB ... to accelerate the financing of capital infra­
structure projects notably connected with trans-European 
networks". 

In early February 1993, the ElB's Board of Governors 
approved criteria for implementing this new facility which will 
be able to support: 
— trans-European transport, telecommunications and ener­
gy network projects; 
— other projects in these sectors (transport, telecommuni­
cations and energy) and improved links between the regions 
concerned and the aforementianed trans-European netwarks; 
— enviranmental projects. 

Consideration may be given to projects involving Central and 
Eastern European Countries or other European countries, 
members of EFTA, provided that they further implementatian 
of, or supplement, trans-European netwarks. 

The EIB wi ll maintain its customary criteria for assessing the 
technical, economic and financial merits of the projects con­
cerned. It will formulate types of financing most suited to the 
projects and promoters involved, notably in terms of duration 
or grace period. Depending upon funding needs, the Bonk will 
be able to increase the ceilings in relation to total cost (from 
50% to 75% for EIB loons and from 70% to 90% for cumu­
lative Community financing). 

The acceleration in financing could be achieved all the more 
rapidly by virtue of the fact that EIB loons w ill be dovetailed 
into suitable finance plans potentially mobilising α variety of 
notional or Community resources and tailored to individual 
projects and promoters. 

At the end of February 1993, the ElB's Bo ard of Directors 
approved on initial series of financing operations under the 
Edinburgh lending facility for α total of close o n one billion 
ecus in support of projects in seven countries. In keeping with 
the conclusions of the Edinburgh European Council, for this 
new facility to hove fullest impact close collaboration will be 
necessary between the Member States, the Cammissian and 
the Bank in order that the measures for which each partner 
is responsible may contribute towards attaining the common 
goal. 
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implementation of the fifth Community 
action programme on the environment 
adopted in December 1992. 

This programme calls for environmen­
tally sustainable development and 
places emphasis on integration and 
coordination with other Community 
policies. Both the Commission and the 
European Parliament have examined 
the repercussions for the environment of 
transport, industrial competitiveness 
and regional policy. 

The EIB is answering these concerns by 
stepping up its financing for environ­
mental protection and the quality of life 
(4.5 billion in 1992). 

Similarly, the Bank plays an active role 
in various international coaperation in­
itiatives (see box article, page 22) and 
devotes particular attention to projects 
contributing to sustainable development 
outside the Community. As part af the 
Redirected Mediterranean Policy, it can 
deploy financing on preferential terms 
for such projects, in particular those to 
improve water resource management in 
the Mediterranean Countries. 

The dawn of the Single Market on 
1 Jan uary 1993, the large number of 
corresponding measures adopted and, 
to α great extent, their incorporation 
into national legislation should help 
strengthen the international competi-

Currency variations in relation to the ecu from 1982 to 1992 
(on the basis of statistical conversion rates — 1st quarter 1982 = 100) 
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tiveness of European enterprises and which led to parity realignments and to 
thus foster the revival of economic suspension of the Italian lira's and 
growth. pound sterling's membership. 

The importance attached to SMEs in 
creating jobs and promoting growth as 
well as the action taken in response to 
the programmes presented by the Com­
mission to encourage business competi­
tiveness, research, development and 
technology align with the measures 
instituted by the Bank. 

The volume of financing made available 
by the EIB in these various sectors 
amounted to 2.6 billion in 1992, more 
than half of which was accounted for by 
projects in the less f avoured regions. 

The ecu, which had been given fresh 
impetus by the Maastricht agreement, 
was also affected by this crisis. Over the 
year as α whole, total international ecu 
issues d ropped by α third. 

The Commission drew up α list of legal 
obstacles which needed to be overcome 
in the various Member States in order 
to boost use of the ecu in commercial 
transactions. 

In this difficult environment, the ecu 
remained the principal currency bor­
rowed by the EIB (almost 2 billion, or 
15% of the total). 

The Exchange Rate Mechanism of the 
European Monetary System experi­
enced considerable upheavals in 1992 
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INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FOR A BETTER ENVIRONMENT 

Since 1988, the EIB has been involved in international coop­
eration measures with vorious portners (') to foster the 
preporotion ond implementotion of projects torgeted ot en-
vironmentol protection ond sustoinoble development. These 
meosures supplement the Bank's own finoncing octivities both 
inside ond outside the Community, environmental protection 
or conservotion projects hoving occounted for 18% over the 
post five yeors. 

This opprooch is consistent with the Treoty on Europeon 
Union, which stresses the promotion of "measures at inter-
notionol level to deol with regional or worldwide environ­
mental problems". 

The ElB's moin contribution in this oreo is its continuing por-
ticipotion in the Mediterranean Environmental Technical 
Assistance Programme (METAP), olso Involving the IBRD, 
the Commission ond the UNDP. Phose One of this initiotive 
is neoring conclusion. To dote, oround sixty different initiot-
ives covering most countries bordering on the Mediterroneon 
hove tended to focus on pre-feosibility studies. Projects coor-
dinoted by the EIB and now completed include studies on the 
vorious olternotives for seweroge moins in Coiro, hozordous 
woste storoge ond hondling problems in Isroel ond the oper­
ation of wastewater treatment plants in the Po basin. Sev-
erol of these studies should result in the definition ond sub­
sequent finoncing of specific investment projects. 

(') Commission of the European Communities, World Bank (IBRD), United 
Nations Development Programme (UNDP), European Bank for Reconstruc­
tion and Development (EBRD), Nordic Investment Bonk (NIB). 

The current yeor will see the stort of Phose Two of METAP 
(1993-1995), with ο more intensive oction progromme ex­
tending to countries such os Lebanon ond Albonio. Porticulor 
attention will be poid to enhoncement of the urbon environ­
ment ond efficient use ond monogement of woter resources. 

A further initiotive in which the EIB is porticipoting concerns 
protection of the Baltic, ossocioting oil countries bordering 
on this seo os well os the Commission, the EBRD, the IBRD 
ond the NIB. In conjunction with the Commission, the EIB has 
been supervising ο study to define ο priority investment pro­ 
gromme in the Oder bosin, covering α third of Polond ond 
certoin ports of Germony ond the Czech Republic. The poten­ 
tiel for environmentol rehobilitotion of the Boltic was the sub­
ject of ο generol report presented to ο ministerial conference 
in Helsinki in April 1992. Implementotion of the conclusions of 
this report roises in porticulor the question of oppropriote 
finoncing touched upon by the ministériel conference in 
Gdonsk in Morch 1993. 

Another study opprooching completion relotes to protection 
of the Elbe. Supervised by the EIB in cooperotion with the 
Commission ond the Internotionol Commission for the Protec­
tion of the Elbe, this hos served to identify investment pri­
orities in the upper Elbe bosin ond complements the onolysis 
undertoken of the entire Elbe basin. 

Lastly, the EIB hos porticipoted in preporotions for the "En­
vironment for Europe" Ministeriol Conference held in Lucerne 
in April 1993 os well os the estoblishment of on environmen­
tol programme for the Donube. These initiotives build on 
experience goined in programmes for the Mediterranean 
ond the Boltic. 
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The EIB continues to be one of the lead­
ing ecu issuers on the international mar­
kets. Outstanding ecu borrowings at the 
end of 1992 amounted to 10.5 billion, or 
15.5% of the total, as against 15.7% one 
year earlier. In 1992, loan disbursements 
in ecus represented close on 18% of the 
total. Outstanding ecu loans came to 
13.4 billion at the end of the year. 

The European Council meeting in 
Edinburgh authorised the opening of 
negotiations during 1993 with EFTA 
countries seeking membership of the 
Community. 

The prospect of Austria, Sweden, Fin­
land and Norway becoming members 
was taken into account under the agree­
ment on establishing the European 

Economic Area (EEA). This agreement 
includes α financial mechanism to be 
managed by the EIB and designed to 
strengthen economic and social co­
hesion (see page 19). 

Cooperation with Central and Eastern 
European Countries should be ex­
tended to Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania 
which have signed trade and economic 
cooperation agreements with the Com­
munity (see box article, page 24). The 
EIB w ill be able to mount operations in 
these countries following α decision by 
its Board of Governors. 

In the Mediterranean Countries, 1992 
sow activation of the Redirected Medi­
terranean Policy. The Financial Protocols 
concluded with each country were sup­
plemented by "non-protocol" horizontal 
financial cooperation, aimed in particu­
lar at fostering regional cooperation 
and environmental protection. Projects 
supporting the latter objective may 
attract EIB lo ans with interest subsidies 
drawn from Community funds. 

The worsening conflict in the former 
Yugoslavia led to the continued suspen­
sion of financial cooperation. A cooper­
ation agreement with α financial com­

ponent, including loons from the EIB, is 
in the process of being concluded with 
Slovenia. 

The geographical scope of EIB opera­
tions has been widened to include coun­
tries in Latin America and Asia signa­
tories to cooperation agreements with 
the Community: in response to α request 
from the Council, the Board of Govern­
ors of the EIB d ecided on 22 February 
1993 to authorise the financing in these 
countries of projects of mutual interest, 
up to α ceiling amount of 750 million 
over three years. 

In order to strengthen the Community's 
budgetary guarantee on loons, particu­
larly those provided by the EIB, for pro­
jects in countries outside the Communi­
ty, the Member States have decided to 
establish α Guarantee Fund for Com­
munity loons and guarantees to third 
countries. 
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THE EIB IN CENTRAL AND EASTERN EU ROPE 

For the past three years, EIB loa ns totalling 820 million in 
Central ond Eastern Europe hove been contributing to these 
countries' transition towards α market economy. 

The EIB has provided financing for projects in the energy, 
telecommunications and transport sectors with several 
falling within the wider context of trons-Europeon networks, 
thereby furthering European integration. 

There has also been support for industrial projects, in partic­
ular SMEs, which account for an important part of Bank lend­
ing in Central and Eastern Europe. Such projects may involve 
investment or joint ventures by Community firms, α facility 
which should gain in importance with progress on reforms 
and with the European association agreements coming into 
force. Whether in infrastructure or industry, high priority has 
been given to improving the environment. 

EIB activ ity forms on integral part of the assistance provided 
by the Community and its Member States. In furnishing its 
specific expertise and knowledge of bonks, enterprises and 
European markets, the EIB completes the range of instruments 
at the disposal of the Community and amplifies the impact of 
Community aid. The Bank works in coordination with the 
Commission and has developed close cooperation with other 
institutions working in Central and Eastern Europe, in par­
ticular the EBRD of which it is α founder member. 

Access to EIB finance constitutes on important feature of the 
Community's assistance to third countries and the Treaty of 
Maastricht reinforces the Bank's position in implementing 

Community operations, on approach supported by the Euro­
pean Parliament. For the six countries in which the EIB is 
olreody operating, ratification of the association agreements 
will mark the start of α new and more structured phase of 
cooperation including these countries' continued access to EIB 
loons. Furthermore, the Bonk may be invited by the Council 
to extend its activity to Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania, the 
three Baltic States('). The area of Central and Eastern Europe 
covered by the EIB would thus correspond appreciably to 
that of the Community's PHARE Programme (grants from the 
Community budget). The Council is expected to be requested, 
following the opinion of the European Parliament, to fix α  
new blanket guarantee ceiling covering all EIB loans in Cen­
tral and Eastern Europe so that continuity of Community 
action in the area is assured. 

The new guidelines for the PHARE Programme, as adopted by 
the Council, will also allow Community grant aid and EIB loan 
aid to be closely ossocioted, so increasing the effectiveness 
of Community assistance. In addition, following the con­
clusions o f the European Council in Lisbon in July 1992, the 
Euratom facility could be extended to finance improvements 
to the efficiency and safety of nuclear power plants in the 
countries of Central and Eastern Europe and the Common­
wealth of Independent States. Subject to α favourable 
decision by the Council, the Bank's mandate for managing 
Euratom loons would accordingly be extended. 

(') Slovenia is c overed by the PHARE Programme and by the EEC-Slovenia 
Trade and Cooperation Agreement, the Financial Protocol to which 
provides for loons from the EIB. 
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FINANCING PROVIDED WITHIN THE COMMUNITY 

Contracts signed: 
The Bank signed 
finance contracts 
fora total of 16 140 
million in 1992 
as against 14 477 
million in 1991. 

The total breaks down as to 12 882 mil­
lion in individual loans (a figure includ­
ing 74 million in guarantees for one 

* N.B.: bar charts in billion ecus. 

loan) and 3 258 million in global loans 
concluded with banks and financial 
institutions. 

Financing provided: In order to give a 
more operational overview of activity 
during the financial year, the analysis 
of Bank operations presented below 
encompasses, on the one hand, individ­
ual loons signed (12 882 million) and, on 

the other, oiiocotions from globo! loons 
under drowdown (4 071 million) sub­
divided by sector and Community policy 
objective at the time when these alloca­
tions were finalised (see box article, 
page 26). 

Financing within the Community thus 
amounted to 16 953 million, compared 
with 13 710 million in 1991. 

SECTORAL A NALYSIS 

1992 sow ο shorp increose in funding 
(both individuo! loons ond globo! loon 
oiiocotions) for tronsport, wostewoter 
treatment ond solid woste disposo!  
infrostructure, ο downturn in financing 
for the energy sector ond ο levelling-off 
in support for industry (see Toble E, 
page 99). 

Infrastructure os ο whole occounted 
for 73% of finoncing during the yeor 
(66% in 1991). 

Finoncing for communications infra­
structure recorded vigorous growth 
(6 543 million as against 4 515 million in 
1991) and accounted for 38% of the 
totol. The transport sector ottrocted 
loons of 4 553 million for rood ond 
motorwoy networks, roilwoys, urbon 
tronsport — recording ο morked 
increose, oir transport ond shipping. 
Operotions in fovour of telephone 

systems and telecommunications vio 
internotionol coble ond satellite links 
omounted to 1 990 million. 

Funding for water and waste manage­
ment schemes omounted to 2 149 
million, double thot in 1991, with 

Financing provided in T992: 
sectoral breakdown 
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848 million going to smoll ond medium- 
scole copitol equipment works. 

Some 808 million benefited urban infra­
structure ond vorious loco! outhority 
schemes. 

In the energy sector, following the pro­
nounced recovery observed in 1991, 
funding ron to 2 872 million (17% of 
octivity) compored with 3 102 million in 
1991 ond 1 582 million in 1990. Opero­
tions focused on strengthening generot-
ing ond high ond medium-voltoge trons-
mission copocities (1 767 million) as well 
OS developing oil and noturol gos 
deposits ond gos tronsmission and dis­
tribution networks (1 074 million). 

As in 1991, finoncing for industry, 
the service sector and agriculture 
totolled 4 582 million (27% of octivity). 
individuo! loons occounted for 47% of 
the totol (2 152 million), sponning α wide 
ronge of projects, principolly in industry. 
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GLOBAL LOANS WITHIN THE COMMUNITY 

The EIB deploys global loons for the purpose of supporting 
small and medium-scale ventures which, for reasons of oper­
ational efficiency, it would not be possible to finance through 
individual loons. Global loons ore concluded with financial 
intermediaries operating at national, regional or even local 
level who allocate the proceeds in agreement with the Bonk 
and in keeping with its economic, technical and financial 
criteria (')• The scope of global loans has gradually been 
extended in order to adjust to changing needs and to 
broader-based Community policies. 

Global loans: annual amounts and as α proportion 
of activity by country 

(averages, 1988-1992) 
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A broad spectrum of operations ... 

Most global loans serve more than one Community policy 
objective. They provide funding: 
— in the less fav oured areas: for SMEs in industry, the ser­
vice sector (notably tourism) and agriculture and for small 
infrastructure projects; 
— outside these areas: for investment by SMEs in industry 
and tourism,· 
— in addition, irrespective of location: far small and 
medium-scale ventures furthering the Community's environ­
mental protection, energy, transport and advanced technolo­
gy objectives. 

Cooperation with the banking system has been steadily 
extended and links are maintained with close o n α hundred 
partners, financial institutions or commercial banks. 

In 1992, the EIB concluded global loans totalling 3 258 million 
(3 758 million in 1991 and 3 296 million in 1990). 

Altogether, 8 788 allocations totalling 4 071 million were 
advanced in 1992 (10 27 1 allocations f or 2 991 million i n 1991 ) 
from global loons already under drawdown ('). 

... In favour of small infrastructural works ... 

One of the salient features of the financial year was the scale 
of allocations advanced for small and medium-scale invest­
ment in the infrastructure sector, generally undertaken by 
local authorities. The 1 384 allocations totalling 1 642 m illion 
(475 million in 1991) accounted for 30% of the volume of glo­
bal loon allocations. In terms of amount, more than half (848 
million) was given over to water and waste management fa­
cilities and about one third to the transport sector, mainly for 
rood and urban infrastructure, while the balance was divided 
between sundry works and small e lectricity generating units. 

... and especially SMEs 

Three fifths of the amount of global loan credits supported 
SMEs located in nearly all of the Member Countries and 
mostly in the less developed regions. The breakdown of 
SMEs according to numbers employed shows α concentration 
among firms with fewer than 50 workers (over half the 
amount and almost three quarters of the number of alloca­
tions). Since 1988, close on 36 500 SMEs in all have received 
allocations totalling over 9.7 billion, representing more than 
half of lending to industry and the service sector. 

(') As th e period during which global loon proceeds ore committed con extend 
over several financial years, the total figure for new global loans contracted in 
1992 differs from that for allocations approved during the year. Moreover, as 
many global loons relate to more than one sector and serve more than one 
objective, α complete picture of the different sectors and objectives covered con 
be gained only after analysis of loons allocated in full. 

C) A breakdown of allocations by country, region, sector and objective is 
provided in Tables E, F, G, H, I and L (see pa ge 99 et seq.). 
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Funding for small and medium-scale 
ventures, undertaken mostly by SMEs, 
fell back slightly. In all, 7 404 allocations 
(2 430 million) were made available for 
such ventures from global loans under 
drawdown, largely in industry (5103 
allocations for 1 905 million), but also in 
the service sector (2 264 allocations for 
518 million). 

Covering on overage 30% of total costs, 
EIB financing provided for projects with­
in the Community helped to support 

overall investment estimated, on the 
basis of provisional figures, at some 58 
billion, corresponding to about 5.3% of 
aggregate investment within the Com­
munity. 

The private sector accounted for nearly 
half of investment financed in 1992. In 
the energy and infrastructure fields, 
25% of projects financed were within 
the private sector. 

Similarly, 80% of financing for projects 
in industry and services and all invest­

ment covered by global loan allocations 
fell within the private sector. 

Token as α whole, industrial and ser­
vice-sector projects financed by the EIB 
could, according to present indications, 
contribute directly to the creation of 
36 500 permanent jobs, nearly two 
thirds of them in the less favoured 
regions; three quarters of these jobs 
should be created through investment 
by SMEs. 

Table 2: Financing provided within the Community In 1992 
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans) 

Breakdown by country and sector (million ecus) 

Total 
Individual 

loans 
Global loan 

allocations 

Infrastructure 

Industry 
services, 

agriculture Total 
Individual 

loans 
Global loan 

allocations Transport 
Telecommu­

nications 

Environ­
ment and 

sundry Energy 

Industry 
services, 

agriculture 

Belgium 318.6 131.3 187.2 47.9 — 4.2 83.4 183.1 
Denmark 702.0 636.6 65.4 342.7 61.2 45.0 200.3 52.9 
Germany 2 164.1 791.3 1 37 2.7 263.9 97.9 842.1 104.0 856.1 
Greece 391.9 311.8 80.2 182.2 — 82.7 74.9 52.1 
Spain 3 195.3 2 948.4 246.9 1 38 6.3 659.6 491.5 316.8 341.1 
France 2 039.8 1 159.2 880.6 1 231 .6 — 130.4 9.5 668.4 
Ireland 291.1 290.4 0.6 64.9 46.0 106.3 23.9 50.0 
Italy 3 772.1 2 724.6 1 047 .5 69.4 737.6 280.1 1 05 0.4 1 634. 6 

Luxembourg 42.8 42.8 — — 30.9 — — 11.9 
Netherlands 165.0 67.7 97.3 — — — 67.7 97.3 

Portugal 1 30 3.6 1 210 .5 93.1 512.1 268.2 28.8 184.1 310.5 
United Kingdom 2 407 .2 2 407.2 — 451.9 — 945.6 685.7 324.0 
Other (') 159.7 159.7 — — 88.6 — 71.1 

Total 16 953.1 12 881.5 4 071.6 4 552.7 1 990.0 2 956.7 2 871.7 4 582.0 

I Financing akin to operations within the Community (see note 5(d}, page 115). 
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BREAKDOWN BY COMMUNITY POLICY O BJECTIVE 

As the Community's financial institution, 
the EIB has been given the task of 
financing investment helping to fulfil 
one or more of the general objectives 
enshrined in the Treaty of Rome, spelled 
out in the Treaty on European Union or 
embodied in specific Community policies 
drawn up over the years. 

This chapter highlights the ElB's contri­
bution to each of these Community poli­
cies furthered by individual projects. 

As illustrated by the diagram below, a 
number of projects financed by the 
Bank simultaneously serve several Com­
munity policy objectives. Consequently, 
no meaningful totals can be had from 
adding together the figures given here­
after, particularly those in the tables. 

Table 3: Regional development 

Uli 
88 89 90 91 92 

Regional devel­
opment: Individual 
loans and global 
loan allocations for 
investment contri­
buting to regional 
development total­

led 11 793 million (8 492 million in 1991 ), 
reflecting growth of almost 40%. Over α  
five-year period, this financing has 
more than doubled, with its proportion 
of aggregate funding growing from 
about 60% to almost 70%. 

Total 
Individual 

loans 
Global loan 

allocations 

million 
ecus 

million 
ecus 

million 
ecus number 

Grand Total 11 792.8 9 246.2 2 546.6 5 902 
Energy 1 47 5.0 1 40 6.5 68.5 37 
Transport 3 444 .2 2 940.6 503.6 624 
Telecommunications 1 55 2.7 1 552.7 — 
Water, sewerage 1 18 1.2 795.3 385 9 405 
Other infrastructure 708.4 582.3 126.1 55 
Industry, agriculture 2 989.9 1 911.4 1 078.5 3 056 
Services 441.4 57.4 384.0 1 725 

As in previous years, more than nine 
tenths of lending for regional develop­
ment (10 925 million) went to projects in 
regions qualifying for support under the 
Community's structural Funds. Regions 
lagging behind in their development 
(Objective 1) attracted 6 372 million. 

EIB funding in areas affected by indus­
trial decline or rural conversion (Objec-

Coverage of policy 
objectives financed in 1992 

Community 
infrastructure Environment 

Regional development 

tives 2 and 5(b)) amaunted to 4 553 mil­
lion. 246 million was lent for projects 
tying in with various other specific Com­
munity regional development measures 
(notably the Integrated Mediterranean 
Programmes). 

Since implementation of the reform of 
the structural Funds in 1989, EIB 
financing in areas eligible for Com­
munity structural support has reached 
30.7 billion. More than one fifth of this 
amount has been combined with α Com­
munity grant targeting all or part of 
α project. In Objective 1 regions, fund­
ing amounted to 17.9 billion. 

Regional development financing in 1992 
shows that the EIB ha s maintained and 
strengthened the priority attached to 
funding projects in Community struc­
tural support areas. The continuous 
adaptation of its operations in favour 
of other Community policies has not 
been to the detriment of this priority. 

Industry Energy 
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Many projects financed by the EIB in 
regional development areas also serve 
other specific Community objectives 
(see d iagram on previous page). 

About one third of funding in Objec­
tive 1 regions underpinned Community 
communications infrastructure, while 
15% met energy policy objectives and 
10%, environmental objectives. 

Regional development financing as α  
proportion of total activity varies 
according to the sector and country 
concerned, as can be seen from the 
graphs below. 

The large share of this financing de­
voted to the transport and telecom­
munications sectors is explained by the 
relatively underequipped level of 

Regional development financing 
as α proportion of overall activity 

by sector 
(1989-1992) 
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Table 4; Regional development and structural Fund action (') 

regional non-regional • Β Energy 
• ΙΙ Transport • Β Télécommunications Η Β Other infrastructure • m industry 

1989 1990 1991 1992 Total 

Financing within the Community 
from own resources (m illion ecus) 11 020 12 174 13 585 16 936 53 715 
of which: regional development 7 071 7 440 8 492 11 793 34 795 
% 64 61 63 70 65 

Breakdown of regional 
development (%) 
Areas targeted for Community action 89 89 92 95 92 
under the structural Funds 84 84 87 93 88 
in line with Objective 1 48 46 51 54 50 
in line with Objectives 2 and 5(b) 36 38 36 39 38 
under specific measures 5 5 5 2 4 
Other (areas attracting additional 
notional aid and multi-regional 
projects) η 11 8 5 8 

) See breakdown by country, Table G. page 101. 

regions lagging behind in their develop­
ment and also by the fact that most 
European communications networks 
serve assisted and non-assisted areas 
alike. 

The country-by-country breakdown 
shows regional development financing 
OS α proportion of total activity ranging 
from α quarter or α third in the Benelux 
countries to 100% in countries qualify­
ing OS α whole for operations under 
Objective 1 of the structural Funds. 

These differences between countries ore 
apparent when overall EIB financing is 
viewed in relation to aggregate capital 
investment (which includes sectors such 
as housing ineligible for EIB f inancing). 
It can be reckoned that individual loans 
and glabal loan allocations accounted 
in all for about 1.5% of gross fixed capi­
tal formation throughout the Communi­
ty in 1992. This figure is far higher in the 
less prosperous countries or regions: 
approximately 8% in Portugal, 4.7% in 
Ireland, 3.6% in Greece, 3.2% in Spain, 
3.5% in the Mezzogiorno (2% for Italy 

as α whole) and 1.4% in Germany's 
eastern regions (0.6% for the country as 
α whole). 

Regional development financing 
as α proportion of overall activity 

by country 
(1989-1992) 
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ELIGIBILITY: A FAC TOR SP ECIFIC TO TH E EIE 

To contribute to the balanced development of the Community 
while adhering to rigorous banking practice; this is the task 
entrusted to the EIB. Its activities have constantly adapted to 
the way in which the Community and the Community's 
policies have developed. 

To this end, and this is α factor specific to the EIB not shared 
by other financial institutions, only investment schemes ser­
ving α Community objective are eligible for Bank financing. 

The "eligibility" criterion requires the investment in question 
to contribute to regional development, to involve the 
modernisation or conversion of undertakings or the 
development of fresh activities called for by the pro­
gressive establishment of the common market or to offer on 
element of common interest for several Member States 
(Article 130 of the Treaty of Rome which has become Article 
198e of the Treaty on European Union). 

Regional development 

Laid down in the Treaty of Rome as the ElB's main objective, 
financing projects which help to boost the economies of less 
developed regions remains the Bank's foremost priority (see 
page 28). The Treaty on European Union reaffirms the ElB's 
objectives and specifies that it "should continue to devote the 
majority of its resources to the promotion of economic and 
social cohesion". 

The EIB therefore works unceasingly in support of investment 
in the various regions of the Community where development 
is lagging behind or which ore facing conversion problems. In 
recent years, in conjunction with the Community's structural 
Funds, it has devoted two thirds of its financing to this goal, 
particularly in the most disadvantaged areas accorded prio­
rity by the Community (mainly: Greece, Ireland, Portugal, 
the Italian Mezzogiorno, most of Spain and eastern 
Germany's Länder). 

Common interest 

The concept of common interest denotes that the Bank takes 
inta account objectives recognised as important at Com­
munity level, the subject of common policies or measures. 

Thus, rapid development of trade between Member States 
and with countries outside the Community, efforts to reduce 
the EC's dependence on external energy resources, concern 
to protect the environment and the need to boost the com­
petitive standing of European industry have gradually been 
translated into Community guidelines or policies. These hove 
provided the Bonk, within the framework of its operating pro­
cedures and subject to the approval of its Boards, with terms 
of reference for broadening the scope of its operations in 
support of the appropriate capital investment. 

Consequently, major European tronsport ond telecom-
municotions infrostructure has received EIB backing, with 
funding from the Bonk more than quadrupling since 1987. 
Large-scale infrastructural projects contribute towards estab­
lishing networks of prime importance for the Community. 

The three targets of the Community's energy policy form 
the basis of the ElB's corresponding eligibility criteria; devel­
opment of indigenous resources, import diversification and 
more efficient use of energy. With the advent of the Single 
Market, the accent is also being placed on the importance of 
interconnecting gas and power grids, both within the Com­
munity and with other countries. 

The EIB ensures that the capital investment it finances does 
not hove α detrimental impact on the environment and 
indeed its operations hove also been extended to focus on 
positive action in this area; installations for the collection and 
treatment of wastewater and solid waste, equipment to re­
duce atmospheric pollution. It also takes into account require­
ments relating to the quality of life, by financing urban trans­
port and urban renewal projects. 

Stimulating balanced regional development and boosting the 
competitive capacity of Europe's economy both imply appro­
priate support for industrial objectives, be it in the form of 
investment by major enterprises located in underprivileged 
areas, investment outside these areas enhancing the inter­
national competitiveness of Community industry and its 
integration at European level, or financing for SMEs, in 
partnership with the banking system. 
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iUll 
European 
communications 
infrastructure: The 
steady develop­
ment of major 
communications net­
works covering the 

whole of Europe is particularly valuable 
in furthering the Single Market. The 
importance of trons-Europeon networks 
was reaffirmed by the Edinburgh Coun­
cil (see box article, page 20). 

EIB financing for such projects has 
grown steadily to 4 533 million in 1992 
(3 803 million in 1991). During the post 
five years, funding has totalled close on 
16 billion, supporting capital investment 
worth around 65 billion (with 6 billion 
and 23 billion respectively involving 
overland transport alone). 

Lending for Community transport infra­
structure ran to 2 543 million in 1992. 
It was directed mainly towards trunk 
road and railway projects (in Spain, 
France, Portugal, Denmark, the United 

Kingdom, Greece and Italy) including 
major works such as the Channel Tun­
nel, the Great Belt and Severn bridges, 
motorway links and high-speed 

Table 5: Community 
communications infrastructure 

rai 
mes. 

In the air transport sector, the bulk of 
lending was devoted to uprating airport 
capacity in Germany and Portugal and 
fleet modernisation (United Kingdom, 
Ireland and Italy). Several operations 
also involved air traffic control and 
safety in European airspace. A number 
of loons were granted for upgrading 
port infrastructure (Italy, Spain, 
Denmark, Ireland and France). 

Financing for telecommunications 
amounted to 1 990 million with con­
tinued backing for programmes to mod­
ernise international telephone links 
in Italy, Spain, Denmark, Ireland, Ger­
many and Portugal and loans for satel­
lites relaying telecommunications 
and/or television signals and providing 
worldwide links with shipping and land-
based vehicles (Inmarsat satellites). 

(million ecus) 

Grand Total (') 4 533.1 

Transport 2 543.1 
Railways 937.2 
Roads and motorways 1 09 7.2 
Airlines 415.4 
Other 93.3 
Telecommunications 1 990.0 
Conventional equipment 1 481.9 
Special ne tworks 229.8 
Satellites and international 
cables 278.2 

('} Of which global loon allocations: 5.8 million. 

About 70% of financing for Com­
munity infrastructure related to projects 
located in or serving less developed 
regions, particularly outlying areas, 
thereby contributing to their economic 
growth and closer integration within the 
Community. 

Community communications 
infrastructure 

(1988-1992: 15 986 million) 

overland transport other 

airlines d] telecommunications 
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Protection of the 
environment: 
The growing 
aworeness of the 
economic and 
social cost of pol­
lution is reflected in 

the increasing volume and variety of 
investment to safeguard and enhance 
the environment. 

The EIB supported this trend with 
funding to the tune of 4 548 million; 
this contrasted with 1 888 million in 
1991 and covered on even wider 
range of capital investment, particu­
larly projects improving the quality 
of urban life and schemes implemen­
ted by local authorities. 

In many cases, concern to protect the 
environment goes hand in hand with 
other Community objectives. More than 
65% of financing to safeguard 
the environment involved projects in the 
less favoured regions of the Com­
munity and 12%, investment in the 
energy sector. 

Works to improve drinking water sup­
plies and the collection and treatment of 

Table 6: Environment and quality of life 
(million ecus) 

Individual Global loan 
Total loans allocations 

Grand Total 4 548.2 3 458.0 1 090.2 

Water conservation and management 2 261.3 1 556.7 704.6 
Waste management 132.7 39.5 93.2 
Measures to combat atmospheric pollution 760.3 683.5 76.8 
Urban development 968.2 922.1 46.1 
Other measures 425.7 256.2 169.5 

wastewater claimed half of the total 
advanced (2 261 million). These fre­
quently formed part of large pro­
grammes covering major river systems 
in the United Kingdom, Spain, Portugal, 
Greece and Italy. 

In Germany and France, numerous pro­
jects promoted by local authorities were 
funded through global loan allocations. 

Financing also covered domestic and 
industrial solid waste collection and pro­
cessing OS well OS various schemes to 
combat soil erosion and flooding. 

Loons were advanced for installing sys­
tems for reducing polluting emissions 
(smoke and ash) from cool-fired power 
stations, incineration plants and fac­
tories (760 million). 

In 1992, financing to enhance the urban 
environment rose sharply to 968 million. 
This principally centred on public trans­
port and α number of urban road pro­
jects. Loans were extended for conven­
tional underground roil lines, light roil 

networks, tram lines or bus systems in 
Athens, Lisbon, Valencia, Rouen, 
Nantes, Strasbourg and Manchester as 
well as for schemes to develop roads, 
tunnels, car parks and bypasses in sev­
eral other towns. 

Funding also contributed to the re­
newal of urban centres, some of 
which ore of historical and architec­
tural interest, such as in Barcelona, 
Dublin, Ferrara and Savona. 

The EIB s ystematically appraises all pro­
jects submitted to it for funding to 
ensure their compliance with national 
and Community environmental regu­
lations. 
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URBAN TRANSPORT 

The "Green Paper on the Urban Environment" drawn up by 
the Commission and α resolution by the European Parliament 
on "congestion and urban transport" underlined the environ­
mental consequences of the growth In road traffic and the 
need to take appropriate measures. 

Backing an integrated approach ... 

Although the situation is fa irly self-evident, the conclusions to 
be drown and the solutions to be applied are less obvi ous. 
Ways have to be found of facilitating access to major urban 
centres while avoiding costly traffic congestion. The co rre­
sponding development policies and capital investment must 
therefore provide α pragmatic and balanced approach both 
to individual and public modes of transport and to urban 
traffic and city centre parking. 

In accommodating growing demand for loans in these areas, 
the priority objective of the EIB is to enhance the urban 
environment and the quality of life of local residents. It 
supports projects to prevent through traffic, especially heavy 
vehicles, adding to local traffic and projects geared to the 
most suitable modes of public transport as well as road 
and parking projects to improve traffic flows and reduce 
associated pollution. 

Care is taken to ensure that such proj ects form port of an 
integrated transport plan for the conurbation as α whole. 

From 1988 to 1992, Bank financing for urban transport rose 
sharply, totalling around 2 b illion over this period. 

... to urban transport systems 

Several loans (363 million) were given over to constructing by­
passes and ring roads for Athens and Thessaloniki, Barcelo­
na, Bilbao and Valencia, Lyons, Athlone and Dublin, Naples, 
Lisbon and Oporto. Others assisted road schemes designed 
principally to ease traffic congestion in town centres, such as 
tunnels in Caserta and Marseilles, α bridge in Copenhagen, 
car parks in Athens, Lyons and Catanzaro, and sundry local 
authority works (463 mi llion). 

In addition, in recent years, the EIB has been increasing its 
support for the development of public transport systems. 
These take various forms, depending on the size and geogra­
phy of the towns, existing amenities and technological or 
political options. The Bank has thus provided finance (almost 
200 million) for suburban or regional railway lines in Barce­
lona, Madrid and Valencia, Naples and Rome, and Lisbon and 
Oporto, as wel l as for airport links. 

More recently, the EIB has contr ibuted towards the construc­
tion of conventional underground rail networks in Athens, 
Madrid, Valencia, Naples and Lisbon (477 million), light, 
mostly automated, rail systems in Toulouse, London and 
Manchester (225 million), tramlines in Stuttgart, Strasbourg 
and Nantes, interconnected underground railway and bus 
lines, such as in Rouen, funicular railways in Naples 
and Orvieto plus bus networks in smaller towns (275 million). 
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8a 89 90 91 92 

Energy objec­
tives: Financing for 
investment meeting 
the Community's 
energy objectives 
totalled 3 132 
million compared 

with 2 743 million in 1991 and some 
1 900 million on average over the 
previous five years. 

This growth, contrasting with the decline 
in funding for the energy sector as such, 
reflects the particularly large number of 
industrial projects of all sizes financed 
on account of their contribution to 
energy saving. 

Financing for capital investment 
in the gas sector 

(million ecus) 

1Ó00 

1200 -

800 -• 

400 -

Total funds advanced for projects pro­
moting more rational use of energy 
amounted to 1 553 million, including 
166 million for numerous smaller 
schemes. Loans concerned combined 

83 84 

Μ3 

• 

Development of natural gas deposits 

Transmission and supply 

Gas-turbine power stations 

Table 7: Energy objectives 
lillion ecus) 

Total 
individual 

loons 
Global loan 

allocations 

Grand Total 3132.4 2 966.8 165.6 

Indigenous resources 946.6 946.6 
Hydroelectric 383.6 383.6 — 
Nuclear 11.9 11.9 — 
Oil and natural gas deposits 551.1 551.1 — 
Import diverslflcotion 632.4 632.4 — 
Natural gas 433.5 433.5 — 
Coal 198.9 198.9 — 
Rotlonol use of energy 1 553.4 1 387.8 165.6 
Heat/power generation 746.6 726.6 19.8 
Heat/power transmission and distribution 233.4 218.3 15.1 
Natural gas distribution 88.3 39.2 49.1 
Waste processing/other 30.6 6.5 24.1 
More efficient consumption 454.7 397.2 57.5 

heat and power plants, electricity, heat 
and gas supply networks as well as 
installations at several refineries. Many 
projects financed included equipment 
designed to limit environmental ill-
effects. 

The EIB continued to support develop­
ment of the Community's indigenous 
resources. Loans (947 million) were pro­
vided, on the one hand, for the working 
of oil and natural gas deposits and 
associated transmission facilities in 
Italy, the Irish Sea and the British, 
Danish and Norwegian sectors of the 
North Sea and, on the other, for hydro­
electric schemes in Italy, Greece and 
Spain. 

Loans to promote 
energy supplies in 
(632 million) 
transmission. 

diversification of 
the Community 

centred on natural gas 

These went mainly to Italy, for sections 
of the new pipeline linking Algerian 
natural gas deposits to this country, 
and Germany, for networks in the 
eastern regions. 

Several power stations which can use 
natural gas as α firing medium were 
financed in Italy, the United Kingdom, 
Greece and the Netherlands, as well as 
others using imported cool. 
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THE GROWING USE OF NATURAL GAS 

Natural gas is establishing itself as α fuel with significant 
development potential in Europe. In particular, its use for elec­
tricity generation is expe cted to increase considerably. 

Natural gas o ffers α number of advantages: 

* it may be an attractive environmental option, for instance 
in reducing atmospheric pollution; 

* reserves a re plentiful. There are many deposits in the Com­
munity or on its continental shelf, especially in the North Sea, 
with other fields close to the Community: Norway, Algeria, 
Eastern Europe and the Middle East. Interconnected gasline 
networks have also been built or are under canstruction in 
Europe. 

In addition to these aspects, which favour the use of gas, new 
technologies have been developed for using gas turbines to 
generate electricity. These technologies ore highly fuel 
efficient, cost less to install than alternative equipment and 
generate less pollut ion. 

In the past, due to high operating costs, the use of gas tur­
bines for electricity generation was limited to covering peak 
loads. The introduction of combined cycle gas-fired power 
stations (gas turbine combined with α regenerative heat 
boiler and α steam turbine), and trends in gas prices com­
pared with those of other forms of energy, hove made the 
use of gas for base-load electricity generation more competi­
tive. In the future, these turbines will be able to operate 
with other fuels such as coal-derived gas. 

The EIB has there fore financed numerous projects in the gas 
sector: loans for exploiting natural gas and for its trans­
mission/storage/distribution hove totalled 3 514 million over 
the post five years. 

During this period, EIB support for the use of gas for energy 
production (867 million in all) has kept pace with technologi­
cal developments. The Bonk has financed α number of gas-
turbine combined heat and power stations, in Genoa and 
Milan in Italy and Ede in the Netherlands. Above all, how­
ever, it is incre asingly assisting the construction of electricity 
generating plant as such. 

Accordingly, since the privatisation of the electricity sector in 
the United Kingdom, various projects hove involved the 
building of gas-turbine power stations. Two of these have 
attracted loans: Barking in south-east and Teesside in north­
east England. In Italy, power stations financed now use 
natural gas, either as the sole firing medium (at Levante and 
Azotati near Venice, and Turbigo near Milan), or in combi­
nation with or as a n alternative to coal (Fusina near Venice 
and La Spezia on the Ligurian coast). The EIB has also funded 
power stations which can use gas as α firing medium, in 
Greece, at Lavrion (near Athens) and Chania (Crete), and in 
the Netherlands, at Buggenum in Limburg. 

Investment programmes reveal significant growth in these 
installations in several Member Countries. A similar trend is 
also likely in several Central European Countries equipped 
with gas grids and in certain developing countries with gas 
resources. 
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m Industrial objec­
tives: The slow­
down in investment 
in the productive 
sectors affected the 
volume of funds 
advanced to make 

firms mare competitive internationally 
and increase their integration on α  
European scale; many firms had antici­
pated the arrival of the Single Market 
and adapted their production facilities 
accordingly. 

Against this background, funding 
amounted to 2 623 million (3 332 million 
in 1991), 64% going to projects in the 
less developed areas. 

Ventures promoted by small and 
medium-sized enterprises in the 
Community as α whole attracted credit, 
from global loans already απ tap, total­
ling 2 138 million, drawn down in the 
form of 7 223 allocations (2 354 million 
and 9 548 allocations in 1991, 1 976 
million and 7 447 allocations in 1990); 

Table 8: Industrial objectives 
(million ecus) 

Grand Total 2 622.8 

International competitiveness 
and European integration 
of large firms 477.1 

Small ve ntures developing 
advanced technology 7.5 

Investment by SMEs 2 138.2 
assisted areas 1 334.9 

non-assisted areas 803.3 

million ecus 

• 0,1 - 25 
• 25.1 - 100 
• 100.1 - 250 
• 250.1 - 750 

750.1 - i 250 

Lending to industry from 1988 to 1992: regional breakdown 
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1 335 million (57%) supported 4 693 
ventures undertaken by SMEs in 
assisted areas. 

SMEs represent α key component of the 
productive apparatus in every Member 
Country. Their economic importance, 
especially in the case of the smallest 
among them, is particularly great in 
numerous regions lagging behind in 
their development and there are many 
links between support for SMEs and 
regional development. 

SMEs w ith less than 250 employees and 
with an annual turnover under 20 

million received allocations worth 1 700 
million, or 80% of the total. Around four 
fifths of the SMEs funded hod α work­
force of less than 50 and attracted 
about 60% of aggregate allocations. 

Individual loans targeting projects 
designed to strengthen the inter­
national competitiveness of larger 
firms or to increase their integration 
on α European scale totalled 477 
million compared with 924 million in 
1991. These were concentrated in the 
motor vehicle and aeronautical engin­
eering, pharmaceuticals, electronics 
and service sectors. 

About 62% of the amount of these loons 
benefited projects in assisted areas and 
almost two thirds related to cooperative 
ventures between companies in several 
Member States, sometimes in associ­
ation with partners from non-member 
countries. More often than not, these 
loons centred on projects introducing or 
disseminating innovative technology 
and processes for the sector in question. 

In addition, α number of small-scale 
ventures developing advanced 
technology in α variety of sectors 
attracted global loan allocations total­
ling 7 million. 

Table 9: Financing provided for small and medium-sized enterprises 
Allocations in 1992 from ongoing global loans 

Country 

Total 
Assisted 

areas 
Non-ossisted 

areas 

Country number 
million 

ecus number 
million 

ecus number 
million 

ecus 

Total 7 223 2 138.2 4 694 1 334.9 2 529 808.3 (') 

Belgium 287 183.1 92 48.5 195 134.6 

Denmark 155 52.0 43 24.1 112 27.9 

Germany 403 320.8 351 276.2 52 44.6 

Greece 44 48.1 44 48.1 — — 
Spain 661 162.0 440 101.6 221 60.4 Γ) 
France 3 557 317.9 2 234 214.2 1 323 103.7 

Ireland 1 0.6 1 0.6 — 
Italy 1 855 913.0 1 385 552.9 470 360.1 

Netherlands 202 97.2 46 25.2 156 72.0 

Portugal 58 43.5 58 43.5 — — 

(') ot which 16.8 million from NCI resources. 
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Financing operations by country 

Individual loons ond ollocotions from ongoing globol loons (see Toble H, poge 101) 

BELGIUM 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 396.6 million (1991: 115.6 million) 
Individual loans: 131.3 million — Global loans: 265.3 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 187.2 million 

Lending in Belgium was divided between 
funding for small and medium-sized 
enterprises and individual loons for tfie 
energy sector and air traffic control 
facilities. 

In the course of the year, 287 SMEs 
attracted global loan finance. In the 

energy sector, loans totalling 83 million 
went towards construction of α gas ter­
minal in Zeebrugge and α gasline to 
convey natural gas from the North Sea 
to France and subsequently Spain and 
Italy. In addition, the Bank financed α  
centre for processing low-level radio­
active waste, mostly from industrial 

The EIB continued to provid e support for 
improved air traffic control facilities 
(48 million), by funding installations for 
the national air traffic control centre 
and Eurocontrol's operational centre, 
both close to Brussels airport. Eurocon-
trol also received α loan for developing 
and harmonising European air traffic 
control systems. 

DENMARK 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 690.8 million (1991: 538.6 million) 
Individual loans: 636.6 million — Global loans: 54.2 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 65.4 million 

Activity in Denmark was concentrated 
largely on communications and 
energy infrastructure. 

In the transport sector (343 million), the 
EIB provided further funding towards 

the bridge over the Great Belt and its 
connecting rood to Copenhagen, as well 
as several sections of the main North-
South motorway (E45). Finance was also 
made available for the country's railway 
modernisation programme. 

Other projects supported include the 
purchase of ferries for the Oresund ser­
vice between Elsinore and Sweden, 
improvements to the Port of Ârhus  
(under α global loan) and rehabilitation 
of α bridge between Copenhagen and 
the island of Amoger. 

Denmark: 1973-1992. 

The amount of loan contracts signed in 
Denmark since this country's accession 
to the Community now totals 5 150 mil­
lion ecus (40 582 million Danish kroner). 
The funds have gone in support of 
investment worth around 14 billion in 
all (113 billion Danish kroner). More 
than half of this finance has benefited 
investment in less prosperous areas 
such as no rthern Jutland. 
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A significant share of the loans has 
helped in developing the country's oil 
and, above all, natural gas resources, in 
terms of supply, storage, transmission 
and distribution networks, as well as 
expansion of district heating. 

Communications infrastructure finan­
ced concerns improvements to telecom­
munications installations and upgrad­
ing of major roads and railway lines. 
Funding for industry has been more lim­
ited and concentrated largely on SMEs. 
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A loan of 61 million went towards mod­
ernisation of telecommunications facili­
ties. 

Individual loans totalling 155 million 
were advanced for new work on the 
North Sea gas storage, transmission 
and distribution network. 

Other financing operations supported 
combined heat and power production 
projects, in some cases based on waste 
incineration, and collection and treat­
ment of wastewater and urban refuse 
(notably in Odense, Amager and Ârhus).  
These schemes, which mostly also offer 
significant environmental benefits, 
attracted funding totalling 90 million. 

Lastly, some 155 small and medium-
sized industrial enterprises received 
funds totalling 53 million under global 
loans. Slightly more than half the ven­
tures financed in 1992 were located in 
assisted, predominantly rural, areas. 

GERMANY 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 1 663.9 million (I99h 1 300.1 million) 
Individual loans: 791.3 million — G lobal loans: 872.6 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 1 372.8 million 

Activity in Germany grew strongly in 
the woke of sustained demand for 
investment financing in the eastern 
Länder (713 million) and for environ­
mental protection. 

In the eastern Länder, individual loans 
mostly went towards supporting indus­
try and the service sector (319 mil­
lion) : engine and car assembly plants, 
recycled paper factories, installations to 
produce road resurfacing materials. In 
addition, 350 global loan allocations 
(279 million) helped to finance smaller-
scale ventures in industry and the ser­
vice sector, especially tourism. 

In the field of infrastructure, individual 
loans (49 million) were advanced for α  
natural gas conversion project and α  
wastewater collection scheme in Bitter­ 
feld and Wolfen. Global loan alloca­
tions amounting to 66 million were 
deployed for construction of installa­

tions for wastewater treatment, collec­
tion and storage of solid waste and to 
reduce emissions and exhaust gases. 

In other parts of the country, funds 
totalling 1 089 million were given over 
to infrastructure. Substantial financing 
(739 million) was provided for projects 
helping to protect the environment, not­
ably sewerage works in Cologne, near 
Aachen and in the Breisgau region, and 
nearly 300 smaller-scale installations 
(632 million) designed to improve drink­
ing water supplies as well as facilities 
for collection and treatment of waste­
water and domestic and industrial waste 
and to reduce pollution end disturbance 
caused by industrial plant. 

Elsewhere, individual loans were 
advanced for financing airport infra­
structure at Hamburg, Munich and 
Frankfurt. The EIB als o financed instal­
lation of the Kopernikus satellite trans­

mission system which will provide radio 
and television links throughout the 
country. 

In the energy sector (104 million), indi­
vidual loans were made available for 
installation of new combined-cycle gen­
erating equipment at Mannheim power 
station and α district heating system in 
Saarland. 

Lastly, in the productive sectors (258 
million), the Bank funded α project to 
upgrade and fit anti-pollution equip­
ment to α refinery in Gelsenkirchen and 
167 small and medium-scale ventures 
attracted global loan finance (238 mil­
lion). 
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GREECE 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 377.5 million (1991: 366.9 million) 
Individual loans: 311.8 m illion — Global loons: 65.8 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 80.2 million 

In Greece, α country eligible in full for 
regional development assistance 
(Objective 1 area), EIB funding was con­
centrated mainly on transport infra­
structure, power generating plant and 
tfie industrial sector. 

For tfie most port, these operations fall 
within the measures adopted under the 
Community Support Framework or form 
part of specific structural action pro­
grammes. More than half the invest­
ment schemes financed also attracted 
Community grants. 

Backing for infrastructure mainly con­
cerned transport {182 million); improve­
ments to the Athens - Katerini motor­
way, upgrading and modernisation of 
the railway line between Athens and 
Thessaloniki, improvements to air traffic 
control installations and the first phase 
of the Athens underground rail system. 

Individual loans (54 million) were also 

advanced for irrigation projects, sewer­
age schemes in several Greek towns, 
improvements to drinking water supplies 
in Athens and further reconstruction 
work in the Kolamota area, hit by an 
earthquake in 1986 (loans subsidised 
from the General Budget of the Euro­
pean Communities). 

Two global loans, totalling 50 million, 
will contribute towards financing numer­
ous smaller-scale infrastructural 
schemes to improve communications 
and protect the environment, comple­
menting Community grant aid. These 
operations fall within the Interreg and 
Envireg Community initiatives, relat­
ing to development in areas on the 
periphery of the Community and protec­
tion of the environment. 

Under the "Greece CSF" framework 
loan signed in 1991, six allocations for 
α total of 27 million were deployed in 
support of small and medium-scale 

projects in the fields of transport, water 
supplies and sewerage, as well as for 
tourist amenities and vocational train­
ing institutes. The infrastructure global 
loan, arranged as part of the Integrat­
ed Mediterranean Programmes, was 
drawn on to finance some 280 schemes 
in the water and transport sectors. 

In the field of energy, individual loans 
(75 million) went to fund three power 
stations, two gas-turbine plants at 
Chania in Crete and Lavrion near 
Athens and one hydroelectric plant at 
Pournari, in Epirus, as well as instal­
lation of electrostatic filters at several 
power stations and improvements to the 
power generation and transmission 
management system. 

Finally, in the industrial sector, α fac­
tory producing chipboard panels and 44 
small and medium-sized enterprises 
attracted funding of 52 million in all. 

SPAIN 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 3 020.6 million (1991: 2 342.5 million) 
Individual loans: 2 948.4 million — G lobal loans 72.2 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 246.9 millian 

Support for projects fostering regional 
development (2 970 million) accounted 
for more than nine tenths of EIB financ­
ing in Spain. Investment schemes locat­

ed in areas eligible for support under 
the structural Funds (2 929 million) 
absorbed virtually all of this financing, 
with α predominance (2 023 million) in 

Objective 1 areas. About half of the 
projects in question also received Com­
munity grant aid. 
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Infrastructure took up the major shore 
of financing: 2 854 million, including 
1 386 million for transport. Support for 
this sector largely concerned motorway 
and road schemes; the Castelldefels-
Sitges motorway south of Barcelona, 
expressways on various major routes, 
the new Madrid-Valencia motorway 
and α number of rood improvement 
works in Andalusia, Murcia, Castilla-
Léon and Extremadura. Funding was 
also provided for the Madrid-Seville 
high-speed rail line and, in Barcelona, 
construction of on intermodal freight 
centre and development of container 
terminals at the port. 

A substantial part of the financing also 
went towards upgrading urban trans­
port in the form of rood improvements. 

the Barcelona motorway by-pass with 
the link road to the Sitges motorway 
and construction of the Valencia under­
ground. 

In the telecommunications sector, the 
Bonk financed continued modernisation 
of the telephone network and commis­
sioning of satellites also broadcasting 
television and radio programmes (660 
million). 

Funding (491 million) was advanced for 
water supply works, wastewater collec­
tion and treatment schemes, particular­
ly in Madrid, Andalusia, Catalonia, 
Galicia, Asturias and Castilla-La 
Mancha and for urban development 
and renovation works in the centre and 
old port area of Barcelona. 

In the energy sector, financing (317 mil­
lion) centred on modernisation and 
extension of power transmission and 
distribution networks and on develop­
ment of small hydroelectric power 
plants. 

In the industrial sector (341 million), 
modernisation of oil refineries, including 
modifications for production of unlead­
ed fuel, accounted for most of the indi­
vidual loans. Funds were also advanced 
for on air separation unit to produce 
industrial gases and for modernisation 
of six household appliance factories. 
Furthermore, some 660 small and 
medium-scale ventures in industry and 
tourism received allocations from global 
loans. 

FRANCE 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 1 895.1 million (1991: 1 924.4 million) 
Individual loans: 1159.2 million — Global loans: 735.9 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 880.6 million 

More than two thirds of Bonk financing 
in France went to assisted areas (1 371 
million), mainly for investment sited in 
regions eligible under Objectives 2 and 
5(b) of the structural Funds, as well as 
various small and medium-scale projects 
in Corsica and the Overseas Depart­
ments qualifying under Objective 1. 

In sectoral terms, support for infra-
structural schemes amounted to 1 372 
million, of which half was channelled to 
projects in assisted areas, centring on 
three categories of investment: 

— large-scale rail and road infrastruc­
ture, important both for serving the 
regions and as major links at European 
level (488 million). These focused on 
continued work on two major projects, 
the Channel Tunnel and the "TGV-
Nord", as well as on sections of the 
motorway network; 

— urban transport projects, α sector of 
Bonk activity developing rapidly, with 
total funding of 302 million, in support 
of underground railway or tram lines in 
Rouen, Nantes and Strasbourg as well 

as construction of cor porks and road 
improvement schemes in Lyons; 

— smaller-scale investment schemes 
(582 million) financed mainly via global 
loans and carried out by local authori­
ties. These concern rood improvements, 
sewerage networks and α combined 
heat and power plant in Grenoble. 

The remaining financing was given 
over to industry and the service sector 
(668 million). Individual loans in the 
industrial sector were advanced for α 
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Franco-Italian car and light van assem­
bly plant and α factory producing 
artificial sweeteners, both in the Nord-
Pos-de-Colois region, as well as for 
aircraft construction facilities in Midi- 
Pyrénées and the Paris area. In addition. 

2 233 smaller-scale ventures attracted 
global loon funding amounting to 197 
million in oil. 

In the service sector, the Euro Disney­
land theme park and 1 350 ventures 

mounted by SMEs, mainly in private-
sector services and tourism, received 
Bank support. 

IRELAND 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 303.5 million (1991: 237 million) 
Individual loans: 290.4 million — Global loans: 13 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 0.6 million 

Financing in Ireland, the whole of which 
is eligible for support from the structu­
ral Funds under Objective 1, was large­
ly devoted to infrastructure (241 million). 

Assistance was provided for the trans­
port sector, with α large number of rood 
schemes, modernisation and expansion 
of the airline fleet serving routes with 
other Community countries and instal­
lation of α container terminal in 
Waterford harbour. 

EIB backing was given over to further 
work on the programme to upgrade 
domestic and international telecommu­
nications as well as to renovation and 
development of Dublin's Temple Bar 
area. 

The Bank also funded numerous small 
schemes centred on transport amenities, 
upgrading of water supplies and waste­
water collection and treatment. 

A loan in the energy sector helped to 
finance expansion of the power trans­

mission and distribution network. 

Loans were also advanced for moderni­
sation and extension of several higher 
education institutes (49 million). 

The bulk (96%) of funding in Ireland con­
cerned investment falling within the 
ambit of measures included in the pro­
grammes for implementing the structu­
ral Funds. Several of the projects also 
attracted Community grants. 

Ireland: 1973-1992. 

Finance contracts signed in Ireland 
since this country's accession to the 
Community total 4 billion ecus (more 
than 2.8 billion Irish pounds), of which 
almost half of those concluded over the 
period 1979 to 1983 took the form 
of loans subsidised from Community 
resources. These funds hove helped to 
finance investment amounting in all to 
9.2 billion ecus (6.5 billion Irish pounds). 
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The c apital investment in question pri­
marily concerns infrastructure essential 
for the country's development or for its 
links with the United Kingdom and the 
rest of the Community: roads, tele­
phones, water supplies, power and gas 
grids, as well as vocational training 
centres. Support has also been provid­
ed for some 1 700 generally smaller-
sized enterprises. 

1992 
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ITALY 
Finance contracts signed in 1992: 3 796.9 million (1991: 4 000.7 million) 
Individual loans: 2 724.6 million — Global loans: 1072.4 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 1 047.5 million 

In Italy, more than three fifths of financ­
ing in the form of individual loons ond 
globol loon ollocotions supported 
investment contributing to development 
of less prosperous regions (2 386 million 
out of ο totol of 3 772 million). The 
breokdown in these regions shows 1 169 
million (including 48% for SMEs) pro­
vided for industry ond 1 217 million for 
energy infrostructure. 

Neorly 75% of the funding went to pro­
jects in the Mezzogiorno (1 754 million). 
Of this amount, 1 559 million helped to 
finonce investment in Objective 1 oreos 
under the structurel Funds, 94% tying in 
with priorities under the Community 
Support Fromeworks. About 22% con­
cerned projects olso ottrocting Commu­
nity grant oid. 

In the Central and Northern areas, 
funding odvonced in support of regione!  
development omounted to 632 million. 

Broken down by mojor sector, funding 
wos divided between industry and ser­
vices (1 635 million) ond infrastructure 
(2 137 million). 

In the industrial and service sectors, 
individuel loons (639 million) chiefly 
concerned the oircroft construction ond 
motor vehicle industries (oeroengines, 
motorcycles ond pointshops), industries 
reloted to the communicotions sector 

(foctories producing colour television 
screens, printers, opticol fibre cobles 
ond telecommunicotions equipment) ond 
the chemicals, phormoceuticols and 
petrochemicals sector. 

In oddition, ongoing global loans were 
drown on to support some 1 850 
smoller-scole investment schemes (996 
million), mostly undertoken by smoll ond 
medium-sized enterprises. 

Lending for communications infrostruc­
ture (807 million) wos chonnelled large­
ly to continued work on upgrading the 
telecommunications network in the 
Mezzogiorno and in severo! Centro!  
ond Northern regions; funding for the 
transport sector was given over to the 
ocquisition of oircroft for both commer­ 
cio! use ond civil defence purposes, con­
struction of new sections of the tunnels 
motorwoy heading towords Switzerlond 
ond expansion of the port of Livorno. 

The BIB also continued its support for 
investment in upgrading drinking woter 
supplies, expanding wastewater collec­
tion and treatment networks ond 
domestic ond industrio! solid waste dis­
posal focilities; some of these projects 
olso included works to prevent erosion 
ond flooding (lond consolidotion, reof-
forestotion, construction of embonk-
ments, etc.). 

Such funding (265 million) mostly con­
cerned mojor river valleys (the Po, Tiber, 
Arno), large urbon areos (Rome, Aosta, 

Genoa, Livorno) or important naturo!  
heritoge oreos (the Adriotic coost, Lokes 
Gordo and Moggiore, the Venice 
lagoon). 

The BIB a lso financed urban renovotion 
schemes in the historic centres of 
Ferroro, Bologno ond Moceroto (15 mil­
lion). 

In the energy sector (1 050 million), 
funds were given over to uproting 
power generoting capacity (thermal, 
hydroelectric and gas-turbine power 
stations ond combined heot ond power 
plonts), with consideroble emphosis on 
environmental factors. Investment in 
power tronsmission ond distribution 
lines olso ottrocted support. 

Other loons went towords developing 
onshore ond offshore oil ond naturo!  
gas deposits os well as natural gas sup­
ply ond distribution networks, in portic-
ulor sections of the second Algerio-
Tunisio-ltoly gosline. 

Neorly ο fifth of totol financing in Itoly 
(671 million, including 450 million in the 
assisted areos) concerned investment 
contributing to protection of the en­
vironment ond enhoncing the quolity of 
life, such OS w ater and waste monoge-
ment and anti-pollution equipment in 
power stations and numerous industrio!  
plants. 
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Financing provided in 1992: 
Sectoral and regional breakdown 

>0 
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LUXEMBOURG 
Finance contracts for individual loans signed 1992: 42.8 million 
(1991: 28.6 million) 

Two loans were concluded for projects 
in Luxembourg, one for α factory pro­
ducing audio and video tapes, located 

in an industrial conversion area in the 
south of the country, and one for the 
purchase and launch of α broadcasting 

satellite, offering channels to be used by 
several European companies. 

NETHERLANDS 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 154.5 million (1991: 175.4 million) 
Individual loans: 67.7 million — G lobal loans: 86.8 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 97.3 million 

In the Netherlands, all the individual 
loans (68 million) went to the energy 
sector. The EIB funded construction of 
two natural gas-fired power plants, one 
at Ede, producing both heat and power. 

and the other at Buggenum, equipped 
for dual firing with either natural or 
cool-derived gas. A loan was also mode 
available for on offshore gosline linking 
the Morkhom field, on the Dutch conti­
nental shelf, with the coast. 

In addition, 202 small and medium-sized 
industrial enterprises received global 
loan funding totalling 97 million, 46 of 
these (25 million) located in the country's 
less d eveloped areas. 

PORTUGAL 
Finance contracts signed 1992: 1230.4 million (1991: 1 002.1 million) 
Individual loans: 1210.5 million — Global loans: 19.9 million 
Allocations from ongoing global loans: 93.1 million 

Lending in Portugal, the whole of which 
qualifies for regional development 
assistance (Objective 1 area), related 
for the most part to projects falling 
within the ambit of the Community Sup­
port Framework. Half of these also 
received Community grant aid. 

Nearly three quarters of the amount of 
financing was devoted to infrastruc­
ture (993 million), mainly in the fields 
of transport and telecommunications. 
These various investment schemes will 
help to strengthen Portugal's basic 
infrastructure and strengthen links with 
other Community countries. Funding 
was advanced for various sections of 
motorway, the Al Lisbon-Oporto, 

A3 Cruz-Braga, A7 Braga-Famalicào, as 
well as α number of rood improvement 
schemes throughout the country, further 
work on upgrading and renovating the 
railways and modernising the air traffic 
control system. Also in the transport 
field, the EIB financed construction of 
the Lisbon underground. 

In telecommunications, new loans were 
concluded for the telephone network, 
particularly in the Lisbon and Oporto 
areas, and the EIB als o funded installa­
tion of α mobile telephone system. 

Other financing for infrastructure went 
towards upgrading hydroelectric power 
generation and the electricity transmis­

sion and distribution system, as well as 
water supply and sewerage networks, in 
many cases under current global loans. 

Support for industry (311 million) 
focused chiefly on modernisation of on 
oil refinery at Sines to produce lighter-
grade fuels and reduce pollutant emis­
sions. Other projects financed included 
equipment to manufacture chorine-free 
paper pulp, in line with environmental 
regulations, two factories producing 
motor vehicle components and electrical 
equipment and about fifty ventures pro­
moted by small and medium-sized 
enterprises. 

45 



UNITED KINGDOM 
Finance contracts for individual loans signed 1992: 2 407.2 million 
(1991: 2 090.5 million) 

Nearly two thirds of lending in the 
United Kingdom concerned investment 
in assisted areas (1 472 million, com­
pared with 700 million in 1991); virtual­
ly all located in Objective 2 areas, the 
projects tied in for the most port with 
Community Support Framework meas­
ures. 

Almost half of funding for infrastruc­
ture (2 083 million) focused on environ­
mental schemes, notably drinking water 
supply and sewerage networks, as well 
OS wastewater treatment and refuse col­
lection/disposal facilities (946 million). 

Aggregate financing for the water 
industry, throughout the country, since 

1989 amounts to 2 230 million, of which 
690 million relates to operations moun­
ted in 1992. 

Lending in the transport sector (452 mil­
lion) went towards further work on the 
Channel Tunnel, construction of the se­
cond Severn bridge and various road 
improvement schemes, particularly in 
Wales. The EIB also advanced α loan 
for construction of α light railway in the 
centre of Manchester and funded air­
craft fleet modernisation. 

Loons for energy sector equipment (686 
million) centred principally on electricity 
generation, with two gas-turbine power 
stations, one on Teesside, in the north­

east, and one in Barking, in the south­
east. Financing was also provided for 
development of oil and natural gas 
deposits in the North Sea. 

In the industrial and service sectors, 
324 million was made available, primar­
ily for modernisation of motor vehicle 
plants, in Wales and Northern Ireland, 
and for the chemicals sector, in particu­
lar production units for industrial gases 
and semi-conductor silicon chips. 

United Kingdom: 1973-1992. 

The amount of contracts signed since 
the United Kingdom's accession to the 
Community totals 18 600 million ecus 
(12 300 million pounds), two thirds of 
which have been concluded since 1985. 
The funding has gone in support of 
investment worth in all about 71 billion 
ecus (47 billion pounds), half of this 
located in less developed areas. EIB 
lending has underpinned major pro­
grammes designed to enhance water 1992 

quality and improve its distribution and 
treatment. Bank finance has also helped 
to build up the transport network, the 
Channel Tunnel being α particularly 
notable example. Substantial funding 
has been advanced to develop oil and 
natural gas resources in the North Sea 
and to boost power generation. 

A very wide range of enterprises in 
industry and the service sector have 
also benefited from EIB lending . 

Outside the territory of the Member 
States, the EIB supported implementa­
tion of projects of interest to the Com­
munity, under the second parogroph of 
Article 18 (1) o f its Statute. 

In the telecommunications sector, α  
loon of 15 million end guarantee cover 
of 74 million was made available to 
INMARSAT for α programme deploying 
four satellites providing α global tele­
communications system for ships, air­
craft and land-based vehicles. 

In the energy sector, funding was also 
given over to development of the Snorre 
and Veslefrikk oil and natural gas fields 
in the Norwegian sector of the North 
Sea (71 million). 
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OPERATIONS OUTSIDE T HE COMM UNITY 
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Financing outside 
the Community: 
Totalling 892.8 mil­
lion, this comprised 
764.3 million in 
loans from EIS own 
resources, all of 

which are guaranteed by the Member 
States or the Community budget, and 
128.5 million in operations using risk 
capital drawn from Community or Mem­
ber States' budgetary funds. 

In the African, Caribbean and Pacific 
(ACP) States and in the Overseas Coun­
tries and Territories (OCT), financing 
came to 252 million (389.5 million in 

1991) and broke down as to 130.5 mil­
lion in loans from own resources carry­
ing interest subsidies and 121.5 million 
in risk capital from Member States bud­
getary resources through the European 
Development Fund (EOF). 

In the case of the Mediterranean Coun­
tries, the year heralded implementation 
of the Redirected Mediterranean Policy, 
including, in particular, conclusion of the 
fourth generation of financial protocols 
with most of the countries concerned. A 
total of 320.8 million was made avail­
able (241.5 million in 1991), consisting of 
313.8 million from own resources and 
7 million from Community budgetary 
resources. 

The Bank provided a total of 320 million 
(285 million in 1991) in the Central and 
Eastern European Countries. 

Most of the projects in question were 
covered by co-financing arrangements 
concluded with Member States' bilateral 
financial institutions, the Commission, 
the World Bank and other development 
aid agencies; there has been very close 
cooperation with the EBRD w ith a view 
to coordinating financing activities in 
the Central and Eastern European 
Countries concerned. 

ACP STATES AND OCT 

The EIB p rovided backing for projects in 
26 ACP States and 4 OCT. Funds were 
advanced partly under the Fourth Lomé  
Convention (130.5 million from own 
resources and 110.4 million in risk capi­
tal) and partly under the Third Conven­
tion (11.1 million in risk capital) (see also 

summary review of this Convention on 
page 46 of Annual Report 1991). 

Four countries received loans solely 
from the Bank's own resources (97 mil­
lion, or 39% of the total). All other 
countries attracted risk capital assist­
ance, either exclusively in 22 cases (118 
million, or 47%) or in conjunction with 
loans from own resources in four others 
(37 million, or 14%). 

The industrial and service sectors 
absorbed 60% of financing, with the 
emphasis on SMEs which claimed 143 
allocations (72 million) from global loans 
deployed by the EIB in conjunction with 
national or regional development 
banks. Loans for electricity generation 
and distribution installations represent­
ed 22% of the total, while transport, 
telecommunications and water supply 

and sewerage infrastructure accounted 
for 18%. 

Almost three fifths of funding related to 
private-sector projects, which have 
played an increasing role in the devel­
opment process in recent years. The EIB 
also continued to support rehabilitation 
of existing industries end infrastructure. 
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Table 10; Conventions, financial protocols and decisions in force or under negotiation at 31 March 1993 
(million ecus) 

Operations mounted from 
budgetary resources 

Loans from 
own Risk capital Grant 

Agreement Duration resources (') operations P) aid 0 Total 

ACP States-OCT 
ACP Fourth Lomé Convention 1990—1995 1 2 00 825 9 975 (') 12 000 
OCT Council Decision 1990—1995 25 25 115 π 165 

Mediterranean Countries (^) 

Turkey Fourth Financial Protocol not yet in force 225 — 50 600 (') 

Slovenia Financial Protocol not yet in force 150 — 20 0 170 

Algeria 1992—1996 280 18 52 350 
Morocco 1992—1996 220 25 193 438 
Tunisia 

Fourth Financial Protocol 
1992—1996 168 15 101 284 

Egypt 
Fourth Financial Protocol 

1992—1996 310 16 242 568 
Jordan 1992—1996 80 2 44 126 
Israel 1992—1996 82 — — 82 

Lebanon Exceptional aid for reconstruction 50 — — 50 
Lebanon Second Financial Protocol 34 — — 34 
Lebanon Third Financial Protocol 53 1 19 73 
Lebanon Fourth Financial Protocol 1992—1996 45 2 22 69 

Syria Third Financial Protocol 1987-1991 110 2 34 146 
Syria Fourth Financial Protocol not yet in force 115 2 41 158 

Malta Third Financial Protocol 1988—1993 23 2.5 12.5 38 

Cyprus Third Financial Protocol 1988—1993 44 5 13 62 

"Non-protocol' horizontal 
financial cooperation Council Decision 1992—1996 1 800 25 205 (·) 2 030 

Central and Eastern 
European Countries (') Council Decisions 
Poland, Hungary 1990—1993 1 000 1 00 0 
Czech Rep., Slovakia, 1991—1993 
Bulgaria, Romania 1991—1993 700 700 
Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania under negotiation 1993—1996 200 200 

Latin American and 
Asian Countries Council Decision 1993-1996 750 750 

(') Loans attracting interest subsidies from the Européen Development Fund in 
the case of projects in the ACP States and the OCT and from the General 
Budget of the European Communities in the cose of projects in certain Med­
iterranean countries. Amounts required for interest subsidies ore financed 
from grant aid. 

(') Granted and managed by the EIB. 
0 Granted and managed by the Commission. 
(') Including amounts reserved for Interest subsidies on EIB l oons, 
f) Balances remaining under earlier financial protocols or, in the cose of 

Lebanon and Syria, the entire amounts originally provided for may be 
drown on concomitantly. 

(') Including 325 million in loons on special conditions from budgetary re­
sources. 

(') Solely for interest subsidies on EIB l oons in favour of transport projects of 
common interest. 

(·) Including about 100 million in interest subsidies for EIB loons for the 
environment. 

(') Budget appropriations provided by the Commission (PHARE) for α total of 
2 270 million for the period 1990-1992 and approximately 1 billion for 1993. 

48 



In Africa, financing involved 24 coun­
tries ond totolled 235.6 million (121 mil­
lion from own resources ond 114.6 mil­
lion in risk copitol), including maiden 
EIB operotions in Sierro Leone ond 
Nomibio. 

Neorly two thirds went to West Africa 
(152.6 million). 

A number of projects funded will help 
to improve power supplies: uproting 

of Tombo power stotion in Conokry, 
Guinea (20 million); rehobilitotion of 
King Tom power plont in Freetown, 
Sierra Leone (15.5 million); ond gener­
ating focilities in Guinea-Bissau (7 mil-
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APEX LENDING 

Global loons in the form of "APEX" facilities have been α fea­
ture of EIB operations outside the Community for several 
years. Starting in the African, Caribbean and Pacific coun­
tries signatories to the Lomé Convention, they have been pro­
gressively extended, first, in the Mediterranean region and, 
more recently, to the countries of Central and Eastern Europe. 

The aim of an APEX o peration is t o support the financing of 
small and medium-sized productive enterprises through 
domestic credit institutions. This indirect form of lending both 
depends upon, but is also designed to support and promote, 
healthy financial intermediaries. 

Whereas α conventional global loan is channelled through α  
single credit institution, often α development bonk, in the case 
of on APEX o peration the EIB makes th e loan amount avail­
able to on agency of Government, typically the Central Bank 

or the Ministry of Finance, which on-lends to qualified "par­
ticipatory banks", enabling the latter to provide credit for 
manufacturing and other enterprises, according to project 
viability and eligibility criteria agreed with the EIB. APEX 
loans take their name from this multi-tiered procedure. 

The benefits of APEX lending are, on the one hand, improved 
efficiency through greater competition within the local 
financial system and α wider distribution of term finance 
throughout the economy and, on the other, the opportunity 
better to assess the local financial sector, thereby enhancing 
the ElB's effe ctiveness. 

Although more practical experience is needed before these 
advantages can be fully substantiated, the initial results are 
encouraging. A number of other multilateral financial insti­
tutions, notably the IBRD, also apply APEX lending tech­
niques, sometimes on α co-financing basis with the EIB. 

lion) and Cape Verde (5.4 million). In 
Senegal, the EIB helped to modernise 
telecommunications in the north of the 
country (13 million). 

Other operations benefited industry 
with ο large global loan for ventures 
mounted by SMEs in Nigeria (75 mil­
lion) OS well as financing for cotton gin­
ning in Mali (10 million), fish canneries 

in Côte d'Ivoire (6.5 million) and 
aluminium production in Ghana 
(0.2 million). 

In Southern Africa (59.1 million), apart 
from α loon for 15 million for sewage 
collection in Harare, Zimbabwe, funds 
were given over to the following pro­
ductive-sector projects; α pharmaceuti­
cals plant and α cotton-spinning mill in 
Zambia (11 million), α shrimp form in 
Madagascar (6.5 million), black granite 
quarries in Angola (3.1 million), cashew 
nut processing plants in Mozambique 
(3 million), α dairy products factory in 
Mauritius (2.6 million) and tanneries in 
Namibia (2.5 million); in addition, glo­
bal loans were extended to develop­
ment bonks and equity participations 

acquired in Zimbabwe, Botswana and 
Swaziland, mainly in support of SMEs 
(15 million). 

Some 0.65 million were advanced for 
two feasibility studies on α plant har­
nessing power from the Victoria Falls 
(Zambia) and on scope for working 
copper and zinc deposits at Sanyati, 
Zimbabwe. 
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In East and Equatorial Africa, financ­
ing (23.9 million) covered extension of 
the port of Dor-es-Solaom, Tanzania 
(11 million), end rehabilitation of part of 
the telecommunications network in 
Ethiopia (6 million) as well as loans 
to development banks (6 million) in 
Uganda and Kenya for small, mainly 
industrial, ventures. 

The EIB provided 0.9 million for feasibil­
ity studies on α pilot eel farm in 

Uganda and the electricity master plan 
in Sao Tomé. 

In the Caribbean, global loans were 
concluded with banks in the Dominican 
Republic (3 million) and Dominica (2.5 
million), while 0.3 million were given 
over to α study on constructing α caus­
tic soda p lant in Jamaica. 

Lastly, loans were made available in 
four OCT: the Netherlands Antilles 

(7 million), for uproting α power station 
on the island of Bonaire and for cater­
ing facilities at Curaçao airport; the 
Falkland Islands, for constructing fuel 
storage installations (2.5 million); 
Mayotte, for extending electricity gen­
erating capacity (1 million); and 
Montserrat, for an energy-sector study 
(0.15 million). 

MEDITERRANEAN COUNTRIES 

Lending in non-member Mediterranean 
Countries arfiounted to 321 niillion, 
including 7 million from budgetary 
resources. 

Although financing was provided most­
ly under the Financial Protocols, two 
projects were funded, for the first time, 
as part of non-protocol horizontal 
financial cooperation supplementing 
activity under these Protocols. A feature 
of the Community's new Mediterranean 
policy, such horizontal cooperation 
takes the form of EIB loans up to α ceil­
ing of 1 800 million and budgetary funds 
of 230 million ('). 

The loans are intended largely for pro­
jects of mutual interest, particularly in 
the transport, energy and telecommuni­
cations sectors and environmental 
schemes, the latter carrying interest 
subsidies from budgetary funds. 

A large proportion of lending in these 
countries focused on projects designed 
not only to harness local water resourc­
es with α view to improving domestic 
and industrial supplies and irrigation of 
farmland but also to ensure more satis­
factory wastewater collection and treat­
ment. 

The emphasis placed by the Community 
on action promoting sustainable devel­
opment of the Mediterranean region is 
consistent with the conclusions of the 
United Nations Conference on the 
Environment and Development held in 
Rio de Janeiro in June 1992 (see box 
article, page 22). 

Other projects centred on basic trans­
port, telecommunications and power 
supply infrastructure and support for 
capital investment by private enterprise, 
notably by means of joint ventures with 
firms in Community countries. In 1992, 
α total of 29 million was advanced for 
such investment in the form of 214 allo­
cations from global loans under draw­
down. 

Algeria 

Construction of α dam at Taksebt on the 
Oued Aïssi near Tizi-Ouzou will help to 
boost water supplies to the capital and 
to four towns to the east in the Tizi-
Ouzou area. This dam forms part of α  
project for conveying water for drinking 
and industrial purposes to Algiers and 
to towns in the Kabylie region and for 
developing irrigation in the Mitidja 
plain (53 million). 

Morocco 

A loan for 80 million was advanced 
under non-protocol horizontal cooper­
ation for expanding telecommunications 
vital for the country's economic devel­
opment. 

) 205 million in gran t aid, including 105 million for 
interest subsidies, plus 25 million for joint ven­
tures using risk capital resources. 
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The project involves both improving the 
local network end upgrading links with 
Europe by laying new optical-fibre 
cables between Morocco's seven main 
economic centres (the European com­
ponent of this scheme having attracted 
financing previously; see A nnual Report 
1991, page 29). 

Tunisia 

Support was provided, firstly, for invest­
ment by SMEs in industry and tourism 
by means of two global loans (32 mil­
lion, including 7 million from budgetary 
resources) and, secondly, for sewerage 
networks and treatment plants in three 

coastal towns under α non-protocol 
operation (17 million). 

Egypt 

Lending (95.4 million) focused on estab­
lishing sewerage systems to handle part 
of the wastewater generated by inhabi­
tants af Cairo's east bank and on 
increasing electricity transmission 
capacity in northern Upper Egypt 
through the construction of α new 
power line and substations. 

Jordan 

Financing (23 million) was devoted to 
upgrading and widening α section of 

the highway linking the capital, Amman, 
to Aqoba, the country's only outlet to 
the sea, rehabilitating the water supply 
networks in two large towns in the north 
and extending an industrial estate near 
Amman. 

Syria 

With α view to developing over 
10 000 ha of farmland in the coastal 
area of Lattakio district, α loon for 20.4 
million, from the balance available 
under the Second Financial Protocol, 
went towards building the Al Thawra 
dam on the River Snobar and carrying 
out irrigation works. 

Table 11: Financing provided outside the Community 

(million ecus) 

Total 
Own 

resources 
Budgetary 
resources Energy 

Individual loans 
Transport, 

telecommu-
nications Water 

Industry, 
agriculture, 

services 
Global 

loans 

ACP-OCT 252.0 130.5 121.5 55.4 30.0 15.0 49.3 102.3 

Africa 235.6 121.0 114.6 47.9 30.0 15.0 45.9 96.8 
Caribbean 5.8 — 5.8 — — — 0.3 5.5 
OCT 10.6 9.5 1.1 7.5 - 3.1 — 
Mediterranean 320.8 313.8 7.0 50.4 95.0 140.4 3.0 32.0 
Algeria 53.0 53.0 — 53.0 
Morocco 80.0 80.0 — — 80.0 _ 
Tunisia 49.0 42.0 7.0 — — 17.0 32.0 
Egypt 95.4 95.4 — 50.4 45.0 _ 
Jordan 23.0 23.0 — 15.0 5.0 3.0 
Syria 20.4 20.4 20.4 — — 
Central and Eastern 
Europe 320.0 320.0 — 45.0 190.0 — — 85.0 
Bulgaria 115.0 115.0 45.0 70.0 
Hungary 70.0 70.0 — 70.0 
Poland 50.0 50.0 — 50.0 _ 
Former Czech and Slovak 
Fed. Rep. 85.0 85.0 — — — 85.0 
Total 892.8 764.3 128.5 150.8 315.0 155.4 52.3 219.3 
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CENTRAL AND EASTERN 
EUROPEAN COUNTRIES 

Following initial operations in Bulgaria 
and the former Czech and Slovak 
Federal Republic, financing has now 
been made available in all countries 
covered by current agreements. 

The majority of loans advanced in 1992 
benefited basic infrastructure (235 mil­
lion out of α total of 320 million). In 
addition, 17 allocations worth 42 million 
were authorised from global loans 
already activated. 

Bulgaria 

Two loans were extended, together 
worth 115 million. One helped to mod­

ernise international telecommunications 
through installation of α network for 
major commercial and industrial users, 
thereby also relieving congestion on 
the local network. 

The other assisted completion of α unit 
at Maritsa power station and will 
improve the country's energy supplies. 
This lignite-fired plant will be equipped 
with anti-pollution facilities. 

Former Czech and Slovak Federal 
Republic 

A global loan for 85 million will under­
pin investment in the various regions by 
enterprises in the industrial, service and 
tourism sectors, including environmental 
protection and energy-saving schemes. 

In early 1993, this loan was subdivided 
into two separate loans in order to take 
account of the creation of the two 
Czech and Slovak republics with which 
the EIB is continuing operations under 
the current agreements. 

Hungary 

Lending in this country (70 million) was 
designed to strengthen transport infra­
structure: construction of bypasses and 
various road improvement works; 
installation of modern facilities guaran­
teeing adequate air traffic safety and 
enabling Hungary to be integrated into 
the European air traffic control and 
management system. 

Poland 

A loan for 50 million was devoted to 
upgrading amenities at Warsaw air­
port: new buildings and passenger facil­
ities, runway extensions and improve­
ments to various installations will help 
to cater for α doubling in passenger 
traffic expected by 2005. 
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2^ Trans-European communications networks ploy α  
^ key port in building α fully-fledged Single Market; 

transport infrastructure financed by the EIB in 19 92 
included major works designed to overcome natural 
barriers, notably the Channel Tunnel (1 : "Transmanche  
Speed Train") and completion of the fixed link over the 
Great Belt in Denmark (2; foundations of eastern section 
of motorway suspension bridge). Outside the Community, 
60 % o f Bonk fun ding in 1992 went to industry and the 
service sector (3 : dairy in Mauritius; 4; cotton ginning 
plant at Koutiala in Mali). 
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' RESOURCES RAISED IN 1992 

Resources < raised; 
Borrowings on the 
markets totalled 
12 920 million, as 
against 13 671 
million in 1991. This 
comparative down­

turn is consistent with the slowdown in 
loan disbursements during the year 
(14 798 million, compared with 15316 
million in 1991). 

In a period of volatility on the financial 
markets especially during the second 
half of the year, the EIS endeavoured to 
accommodate disbursement requests 
through its active presence on the 
markets and a high level of swap oper­
ations (3 194 million, compared with 
1 334 million in 1991). 

After swaps, funds raised amounted to 
12 974 million, mainly fixed-rate long 

and medium-term operations (8 886 
million). The volume of resources 
obtained at floating rates came to 4 08^ 
million, or one third of the total. 

The breakdown by currency of funds 
tapped shows a fall in Community cur­
rencies, which still accounted for 70% of 
the total after swaps; the ecu continued 
to hold first place, followed by | the 
Deutsche Mark and the US dollar. ( 

EVOLUTION OF CAPITAL 
MARKETS 

Interest rates in the principal OECD  
countries followed differing trends. 
Despite the marked easing in monetary 
policy in 1992, as in 1991, the American 
economy remained sluggish for most of 
the year. Short-term interest rates 
remained at an all-time low. In contrast, 
long-term bond rates were kept high 
under the combined influence of strong 
demand for capital and fears of re­
surgent inflation. However, bond rates 
dropped slightly during the second half, 
with operators considering that in­
flationary pressures would be held in 
check by weak worldwide economic 

activity and the seriousness of the 
American federal deficit. 

In Japan, the economic climate con­
tinued to deteriorate despite the pro­
gressive relaxation of monetary policy 
and bond rotes declined as α conse­
quence. 

In the European Community, interest 
rotes remained high. The tensions which 
appeared in the European Monetary 
System reflecting the difficulties beset­
ting several countries were intensified 
by the Danish rejection of the 
Maastricht Treaty and led to major 
upheavals on the financial markets. The 
convergence of short and long-term 
interest rotes observed in previous 
years gave way to growing interest rote 
differentials. 

of the Exchange Rate Mechanism of the 
European Monetary System. 

In line with the trend recorded in the 
preceding year, the volume of bond 
issues on international and foreign mar­
kets grew steadily. The total amount of 
funds raised through public issues of 
straight bonds and floating-rate notes 
rose by 12% in 1992 to 334 billion dol­
lars. 

Low short-term interest rates in the 
United States and the prospect of α  
drop in interest rates in Europe in the 
near future resulted in α sharp increase 
in floating-rate note issues, accounting 
for 13% of new issues. 

In the circumstances, several Scandina­
vian countries unpegged their cur­
rencies from the ecu. Spain and 
Portugal were obliged to devalue their 
currencies, whilst the United Kingdom 
and Italy suspended their membership 
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The turbulence on foreign exchange 
markets led to α substantial rise in bor­
rowings by several countries anxious to 
replenish their foreign exchange 
reserves. 

The share of issues launched by bor­
rowers resident in the OECD countries 
grew significantly, while the return of 
Latin American and certain Eastern 
European borrowers was confirmed. 

Continuing α trend evident for several 
years, international bank lending ac­
tivity accounted for α still lower pro­
portion of borrowing. However, total 
international bank lending stabilised at 
125 billion dollars. This can be attri­
buted both to the reluctance of banking 
institutions to increase their interna­
tional loans when confronted with more 
restrictive solvency ratios and to bor­
rowers seeking out the best terms. 

The currency breakdown of bond ac­
tivity changed radically in 1992. As α  
result of the steady liberalisation of 
numerous capital markets, issues in cur­
rencies previously less us ed, such as the 
ecu, the French franc, the Italian lira and 
the Spanish peseta, continued to grow 
substantially in the first half. The sub­
sequent crisis on the financial markets 
saw issuers turning towards the more 
traditional currencies. The US dollar, the 
Deutsche Mark and the Swiss franc were 
the principal beneficiaries of this 
change of focus. 

Over 1992 as α whole, the US dollar 
reinforced its dominant position on the 
international bond market. Aggregate 
funds raised in dollars grew by 40% and 
their relative share, which had tended to 
decline, accounted for around 38% of 

total market volume. The amount of 
funds raised in Japanese yen remained 
stable and this currency held on to se­
cond place, accounting for 12% of the 
market. 

Rankings among European currencies 
changed considerably. The ecu, which 
had made α very strong showing in 
earlier years, fell back by more than 
30% over the year as α whole. There 
was α distinct revival in interest in the 
Deutsche Mark, on the other hand, 
which, up by almost 70%, became the 
third most popular currency for interna­
tional issues, followed by the French 
franc, the pound sterling and the Swiss 
franc. 

The trend towards issuing larger vol­
umes of bonds (such as "global bonds"), 
with scope for taking advantage of 
greater liquidity on the secondary mar­
kets, was confirmed in 1992. However, 
the crisis in the second half curbed this 
trend on certain European markets. 

EIB BORROWING OPERATIONS 
ON THE FINANCIAL MARKETS 

In 1992, with the slight fall in loan dis­
bursements, the Bank reduced the 
volume of its calls on the financial 
markets from 13 671 million in 1991 to 
12 920 million. Because of the difficulties 
encountered on some capital markets, in 
particular during the last quarter, the 
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proportion of funds borrowed on Com­
munity morkets fell substantially, to the 
benefit of non-Community currencies. 

Medium and long-term borrowings 
accounted for the bulk of funds raised 
(12 808 million, as against 12 538 million 
in 1991). 

To command resources matching 
requirements when access to α number 
of capital markets proved difficult, the 
Bank was obliged to make use of swaps 
and total funds raised in 1992, after 
corresponding adjustments, came to 
12 974 million, as against 13 672 million 
in 1991, α drop of 5%. 

The bulk of these funds were obtained 
at fixed rotes (8 886 million). Floating-
rate borrowings continued to grow, 
accounting for α third of the total, com­

pared with α quarter in 1991. These 
funds were mainly raised through 
interest-rate swaps (fixed rate against 
floating rate) and the issue of floating-
rate notes; funding through commercial 
paper was increased for only one cur­
rency, the Italian lira, with α new 
tranche offered for 112 million. 

Currency and/or interest-rote swaps 
represented α major proportion of Bank 
activity. These swaps were designed to 
obtain funds on attractive terms, to 
raise currencies not available on the 
capital markets, to offer fixed-rate 
issues from the proceeds of floating-
rate borrowings or vice versa and to 
ensure that fixed-rate borrowings ore 
hedged against interest rate fluctua­
tions. Swaps represented α total of 
3 671 million; however, after adjustment 
for reverse swop operations for hedging 
purposes, the effective total was 3 194 
million. 

Bonk made the fullest possible use of its 
customary hedging instruments: the 
deferred rate-setting contract and 
straight or reverse fixed/floating 
interest-rate swaps. These hedging 
operations, adopted for numerous cur­
rencies (ecu, DEM, FRF, GBP, ITL, NLG,  
ESP, USD and JPY) a llowed the Bank to 
hedge between 50% and 100%, depend­
ing on the currency, of the amount of 
resources intended for fixed-rate loan 
disbursements. 

The use of these hedging instruments 
enabled the ElB, in the case of α large 
proportion of its currencies, to schedule 
borrowings separately from disburse­
ments; it also built up α treasury bond 
portfolio which can be drawn on sub­
sequently to generate liquid funds for 
loan disbursements. Thus, during 1992, 
the ElB was able to continue offering 
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Loan disbursement needs accounted for 
the bulk of swap operations (2 781 mil­
lion). The latter allowed the Bank to 
command currencies such as the ecu, 
DEM, GBP, ITL, ESP and USD on favour­
able terms. In particular, following the 
change in Italian tax provisions govern­
ing Eurobonds issued by the State and 
equivalent bodies such as the ElB, the 
Bank had to avail itself of opportunities 
on the market to raise resaurces at α  
lower cost. In α climate troubled by the 
deteriorating financial soundness of α  
good number of financial institutions, 
the ElB did not depart from its strict pol­
icy towards swap operations, in partic­
ular the choice of counterparties. 

Faced with the extreme volatility of 
long-term market rates throughout 
1992, particularly in the last quarter, the 
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Table 12: Resources rai sed 

(million ecus) 
Before swops After swops 

Amount 

2. SHORT-TERM OPERATIONS 
Commercial poper 
ITL 

TOTAL (1-H2) 

1. MEDIUM AND LON G-TERM OPERATIONS 
Fixed-rote borrowings 11 156.0 86.3 
Community 6 707.5 51.9 
FRF 1 461 .0 11.3 
DEM 1 43 6.5 11.1 
ECU 1 130.0 8.7 
GBP 953.3 7.4 
ITL 798.3 6.2 
ESP 463.5 3.6 
BEE 237.9 1.8 
NLG 86.6 0.7 
PTE 85.2 0.7 
LUE 49.3 0.4 
Non-Community 4 454.5 343 
CHE 946.8 7.3 
USD 1 23 3.6 9.5 
JPY 1 22 8.3 9.5 
CAD 716.9 5.5 
AUD 194.7 1.5 
SEK 134.2 1.0 
Floating-rote borrowings 1 432.1 11.1 
ECU 500.0 3.9 
GBP 
ITL 
DEM 146.4 1.1 
ESP _ 
NLG 216.5 1.7 
ERE 
JPY 211.6 1.6 
USD 357.7 2.8 
Medium-term USD-denominated notes 219.8 1.7 
TOTAL 12 807.8 99.1 

111.9 

12 919.7 
0.9 

100.0 

Swaps 
Amount 

- 2 453.7 

- 739.5 
- 72.2 
- 183.4 

- 254.0 
- 129.7 
- 100.3 

- 7 7 74.2 

- 309.6 
- 358.9 
- 716.9 
- 194.7 
- 134.2 

2 543.3 
306.5 
728.9 
545.2 
183.4 
284.9 

72.2 
358.9 
63.4 

- 35.8 

53.8 

Amount 

8 702.3 

5 961.9 
1 38 8.7 
1 25 3.2 
1 13 0.0 

699.3 
668.6 
363.3 
237.9 
86.6 
85.2 
49.3 

2 740.3 
946.8 
924.0 
869.4 

3 975.4 
806.5 
728.9 
545.2 
329.8 
284.9 
216.5 
72.2 

570.4 
421.1 

184.0 

12 861.7 

111.9 

67.1 

46.0 
10.7 

9.7 
8.7 
5.4 
5.2 
2.8 
1.8 
0.7 
0.7 
0.4 

27.7 
7.3 
7.1 
6.7 

30.6 
6.2 
5.6 
4.2 
2.5 
2.2 
1.7 
0.6 
4.4 
3.2 

1.4 

99.1 

0.9 

(') Exchange adjustments. 

53.8 (') 12 973.6 100.0 
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Table 13: Pattern of resources raised 
(million ecus) 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 

Medium and long-term operations (after swaps) 7 413.6 8 764.9 9 804.3 12 539.7 12 861.7 
Public issues 5 772.0 7 791.3 8 217.7 11 614.9 12 103.4 
Privote borrowings 1 274.9 973.6 1 23 0.3 575.5 535.9 
Interbank operations 311.2 — — — 
Medium-term notes 55.5 356.3 349.3 222.3 

Short-term operations — 200.0 1 145.7 1 132 .6 111.9 
Commercial paper — 200.0 1 14 5.7 1 132.6 111.9 

Third-party participations in Bonk loons — 32.1 35.6 — — 

Total 
of which cer tificates of depo sit 

7 666.1 
252.5 

9 034.5 
37.5 

10 995.6 
10.0 

13 672.3 12 973.6 

promoters most of the 
sought by them. 

currencies 

The drop in long-term rotes, in particu­
lar for the BEF, USD and JPY, prompted 
the EIB again to undertake early 
redemptions of borrowings by invok­
ing the corresponding clauses appli­
cable to some of its issues. A total of 
1 107 million was raised for this purpose 
through the issue of paper under α  
medium-term USD note programme on 
the American market, as well as through 
new borrowings. 

A total of 9 058 million was abtained in 
Community currencies despite α difficult 
climate, especially as regards those cur­
rencies under the greatest pressure dur­
ing highly volatile market conditions in 
the second half. 

Before the Danish rejection of the 
Maastricht Treaty, the ecu was in heavy 
demand by investors hoping for the 
convergence of European currencies in 
relation to the ecu. The Bank had no dif­
ficulty in arranging two large issues, one 
for 500 million at floating rate and the 
other for 400 million at fixed rate, as 
well as two private placements (180 mil­
lion) reserved for Italian investors. 

Opportunities were subsequently much 
more limited and aside from one fixed-
rate issue for 300 million — l ater raised 
to 550 million — floated just after the 
favourable outcome of the Irish refer­
endum on the Maastricht Treaty, the 
bulk of funds were raised through non-
Community currency swaps. During this 
period, the EIB was one of the few 
borrowers able to entertain futures 

contracts in ecus. Notwithstanding the 
increasingly bleak market, the Bank 
remained an active operator, in par­
ticular by continuing to issue short-term 
notes through its ecu-denominated com­
mercial paper programmes. Overall, for 
the fourth year in α row, the ecu main­
tained its position OS th e principal cur­
rency raised by the EIB (1 937 million). 

By virtue of α buoyant market through­
out the year, the Deutsche Mark 
regained second place on the list of cur­
rencies borrowed, with 1 583 million 
obtained, mainly during the second half. 
During the first half, relatively little 
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recourse was had to the market, with 
two issues totalling 393 million. Sub­
sequently, fresh demand for disburse­
ments at α time when the Bundesbank 
was liberalising the international 
Deutsche Mark market triggered an 
increase in issues, with the floating of 
two borrowings for one billion DEM 
each. The size of these issues was aimed 
at increasing market liquidity and thus 
improving conditions for future calls by 
the Bank. A large portion of one of 
these fixed-rate issues was swapped 
against floating-rate funds. 

The volume of resources raised in 
French francs came to 1 461 million, the 
proceeds of five issues spread evenly 
throughout the year, mostly on the 
Eurofranc market. The Bank was the first 
to reopen this market after the franc 
came under fire on the foreign ex­
changes during the last quarter. It also 
continued its policy of consolidating 
existing issues by adding new fungible 
tranches to boost market liquidity. In 
contrast, EIB activity on the domestic 
market was limited to α single issue of 
FRF 2 billion (289 million). 

Funds raised in pounds sterling 
totalled 1 428 million. Four issues on the 
Eurosterling market brought in 953 mil­
lion. Three of these were floated during 
the first half, taking advantage of the 
improvement in the differential between 
the yield on the Bank's bonds and gilts. 
After the withdrawal of sterling from 
the European Monetary System, the 
ensuing downturn in rates made it poss­
ible to float α final issue in Eurosterling.  
The balance of sterling resources was 
obtained through swaps against the 
Australian and Canadian dollars. 

Funds raised in Italian lire amounted to 
1 326 million. During the first nine 
months, the EIB co ncentrated its efforts 
on the Eurolira sector, where it was able 
to float two large issues (each for ITL 
500 billion) totalling 647 million. 
Changes in tax arrangements appli­
cable to Eurobonds and currency up­
heavals temporarily restricted access to 
this market. Nevertheless, the Bank 
returned to the Eurolira market at the 
end of the year with α smaller oper­
ation. It also increased its lira-denomi­
nated commercial paper programme. 
The balance of resources was provided 
by currency swaps against US and 
Canadian dollar issues (416 million) and 
α private placement on the Eurolira  
market at the beginning of the year. 

DISBURSEMENTS A ND LOANS 
OUTSTANDING 

The to tal amount disbursed in 1992 on 
loans from the Bank's own resources 
come to 14 798 million, comprising 
14 384 million mode available within 
the Member States and 414 million out­
side the Community. 

The a ggregate amount outstanding in 
respect of loons from own resources 
and guarantees climbed from 72 713 
million at 31 December 1991 to 84 273 
million at 31 December 1992. 

Disbursements made in 1992 on financ­
ing operations from Community or 
Member States' resources ran to 
100 million, consisting of 9 million in 
loans provided under the NCI facility 
and 91 million for operations in the 
African, Caribbean and Pacific States 
and α number of non-member Mediter­
ranean Countries. The amount out­
standing on Special Section operations 
dipped from 6 338 million in 1991 to 
5 414 million at the end of 1992. 

Borrowings in pesetas were limited by 
difficulties encountered by the Bank in 
approaching the domestic capital mar­
ket for foreign issuers ("matador" mar­
ket). Total borrowings ran to 648 million, 
raised during the first half. Three issues 
of between ESP 15 billion and 25 billion 
brought in the equivalent of 464 million. 
Subsequently, the Bonk hod recourse to 
currency swaps to meet its additional 
peseta requirements, using either the US 
dollar proceeds of Eurobond issues or 
medium-term notes, or the Conodion 
dollar. 

Borrowings in the Benelux countries, vir­
tually unchanged compared with the 
previous year, came to 590 million. Two 
issues totalling 303 million were floated 
on the Dutch market, one at fixed rate 
and the other at floating rate. On the 
Belgian market, the EIB c onfined itself 
to α single, relatively large public issue 
of 238 million (BEF 10 billion). In 
Luxembourg, the Bank launched α  
public issue for 49 million, α higher 
amount than in previous years. 

While not achieving the same volume as 
in 1991, the EIB maintained its presence 
on the domestic market for escudo-
denominoted foreign bonds in Portugal 
(the "navegador" market). One fixed-
rate issue for 85 million (PTE 1 5 billion) 
was floated in the second quarter. Here 
again, financial market difficulties ruled 
out further borrowing operations. 

In 1992, the US dollar ranked third 
among currencies borrowed, with α  
sizeable portion of the 1 811 million 
raised being used in swap operations. 
Consequently, the total given over to 
loon disbursements and early redemp-
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Table 14: Breakdown by currency of resources raised 
(amounts in million ecus} 

ECU DEM FRF GBP ITL ESP NLG BEF PTE LUF USD JPY CHF Total 

T992 
amount 

% 
1 937 

14.9 
1 583 

12.2 
1 46 1 

11.3 
1 428 

11.0 
1 32 6 

10.2 
648 
5.0 

303 
2.3 

238 
1.8 

85 
0.7 

49 
0.4 

1 529 
11.8 

1 440 
11.1 

947 
7.3 

12 974 
100.0 

1991 
amount 

% 
2 500 

18.3 
1 198 

8.8 
1 378 

10.1 
1 83 7 

13.4 
1 466 

10.7 
813 
5.9 

369 
2.7 

166 
1.2 

250 
1.8 

24 
0.2 

2 26 2 
16.5 

627 
4.6 

782 
5.7 

13 672 
100.0 

tion of borrowings come to 1 529 
million. During the first quorter, the 
foil in USD rotes ond ο degree of stob-
ility in the dollar's volue ogoinst the 
Europeon currencies resulted in sig­
nificant demond for both fixed ond 
flooting-rote dollors. 

Two issues totolling 775 million were 
therefore flooted on the Eurodollor 
morket, which, with moturities of less 
thon ten yeors, offered better terms 
thon the domestic "Yonkee bond" mor­
ket. At the close of the yeor, the dollor 
wos used for currency swops on both 
the internotionol ond, to ο lesser extent, 
the Americon market. A collored FRN 
issue (with moximum and minimum cou­
pon rotes) for USD 400 million wos 
swopped ogoinst flooting-rote ecus ond 
subsequently ougmented by ο 100 
millon tranche swopped ogoinst 
flooting-rote Itolion lire. Similarly, α  
USD 120 million issue was swopped 

ogoinst flooting-rote pesetos. The EIB 
olso took odvontoge of fovouroble 
conditions on the Swedish krono ond 
Conodion dollor morkets to obtoin 
US dollors ot flooting rotes vio swop 
operotions. 

On the Japanese yen morket which 
wos relotively buoyont ond sow ο sub-
stontiol foil in rotes, the Bonk was oble 
to roise 1 440 million. Six issues were 
flooted on the Euroyen morket. These 
were spreod over the yeor and were for 
foirly high omounts of between 20 bil­
lion ond 60 billion yen, with the oddition 
— whenever possible — of fungible 
tronches creoting benchmork issues 
comporoble in terms of liquidity to the 
globol bonds of mojor borrowers. A 
lorge portion of the Bonk's issues wos 
designed to refinonce borrowings 
redeemed eorly. 

There wos ο steep rise, to 947 million, in 
EIB borrowings in Swiss francs. This 
enobled the Bonk to coter for strong 
demond during the second holf when 
fixed rotes were porticulorly ottroctive 
for investors. The mojority of funds were 
obtoined through four public issues 

for nominol omounts of between 
CHF 200 million ond 500 million, os well 
OS on e privote plocement for CHF 150 
million. 

Colls on the Canadian dollar morket 
contributed significontly to overoll EIB 
borrowings. Three internotionol issues 
totolling 717 million helped the Bonk to 
obtain Community currencies through 
swop operotions. 

On the Australian domestic copitol 
morket, the EIB flo oted on issue for 195 
million (AUD 350 million) under the 
progromme initioted in 1991. The 
proceeds of this issue were swopped 
ogoinst flooting-rote sterling. 

Finally, the Bonk bunched its moiden 
operotion on the Swedish krona mor­
ket ot the beginning of the year with ο  
public issue for 134 million, swopped 
ogoinst flooting-rote US dollors. 
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Results for the Year 

For ease of comparison between figures 
in this section and thase for preceding 
years and for greater transparency, the 
results for the year are presented on the 
basis of items selected from the profit 
and loss account which best illustrate 
Bank activity. 

An amount of 150 million has been 
transferred from the profit and loss 
account to α Fund for general banking 
risks. 

In 1992, as in the past, own funds 
remained the principal source of EIB 
revenue. Receipts of interest and com­
mission on loans ran to 6 596 million 
compared with 5 724 million in 1991, 

while interest and charges on borrow­
ings totalled 5 780 million as against 
5 020 million the previous year. Man­
agement commission amounted to 16 
million, as in 1991. 

Investment income (interest and com­
mission) climbed from 496 million in 
1991 to 548 million in 1992, as α result 
of the increased volume of funds 
employed. 

Financial income showed α surplus over 
financial charges of 1 million compared 
with 36 million in 1991. 

Taking into account exchange differ­
ences and after providing for amortis­
ation of issuing charges and redemption 
premiums (105 million), administrative 
expenses and charges plus depreciation 
of buildings, furniture and equipment, 
the Bank's operating surplus amounted 
to 1 175.3 million. After due allowance 

for the effect of changes in conversion 
rotes vis-à-vis the ecu, i.e. —56.2 
million, and the transfer of 150 million 
to the Fund for general banking risks, 
the profit for the financial year 
amounted to 969.1 million in 1992 as 
against 1 083 million in 1991. 

The Board of Directors has decided to 
recommend that the Governors appro­
priate the profit for the financial year, 
i.e. 969.1 million, to the Additional 
Reserves. 

At 31 December 1992, the balance sheet 
total stood at 84 667 million compared 
with 74 290 million at 31 December 
1991, α rise of more than 14%. 
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MANAGEMENT AND STAFF 

DECISION-MAKING BODIES 
(Situation at 1 Ju ne 1993) 

Board of Governors 

Mr Bertie AHERN held the office of 
Chairman of the Board of Governors 
until the Annual Meeting on 9 June 
1992, after which, in accordance with 
the system of annual rotation, he was 
succeeded by Mr Guido CARLI,  
Governor for Italy. 

Having replaced Mr Guido CARLI as 
Governor for Italy, Mr Piero BARUCCI 
succeeded him as Chairman of the 
Board of Governors as from 28 June 
1992. 

Board of Directors 

Since publication of the Annual Report 
for the financial year 1991, Mrs Ariane  
OBOLENSKY and Mr Manuel PINHO 
have been appointed Director to 
replace Mr Denis SAMUEL-
LAJEUNESSE and Mr Manuel E. 
FRANCA E SILVA, who left the Board in 
July 1992. 

The Board of Directors wishes to thank 
all outgoing members for their highly 
valued contributions towards Bank 
activity. 

Management Committee 

The Board of Governors appointed 
Sir Brian UNWIN President of the Euro­
pean Investment Bank from 1 April 
1993. A Director of the EIB from 1983 to 
1985, Sir Brian UNWIN was Chairman 
of the UK's Board of HM Customs and 
Excise. He succeeds Mr Ernst-Günther  
BRUDER, President since 1984. 

The Board of Governors also appointed 
as Vice-President, from 1 April 1993, 
Mr Wolfgang ROTH, an economist and 
spokesman on economic policy for the 
social democratic parliamentary party 
in the Bundestag. He replaces Mr Roger 
LAVELLE, Vice-President since 1989. 

The Board of Governors and the Board 
of Directors expressed their sincere 
gratitude to both Mr Ernst-Günther  
BRODER and Mr Roger LAVELLE for 
their contributions to Bank activity as 
President and Vice-President of the EIB. 

In recognition of their distinguished 
service, the Board of Governors has 
conferred the titles of Honorary-
President and Honorary Vice-President 
respectively on Mr BRODER and Mr 
LAVELLE. 

Mr Albert HANSEN, outgoing Chair­
man, was reappointed α member of the 
Audit Committee for the 1992, 1993 and 
1994 financial years. In accordance with 
the customary system of rotation, 
Mr Joôo PINTO RIBEIRO has taken over 
chairmanship of the Committee until the 
Bank's end-of-year accounts ore 
approved at the 1993 Annual Meeting. 

In 1992, the Committee continued its 
customary work of auditing the Bank's 
books and accounts, with the support of 
the ElB's own monitoring staff, in par­
ticular the analysts in the Internal Audit 
Division, and the external auditors. 
Price Waterhouse. As port of its inves­
tigations, the Committee conducted on-
the-spot visits to projects financed in α  
number of countries. 

The 1989 tripartite Agreement between 
the Commission, the Court of Auditors 
and the Bank was renewed in Decem­
ber 1992. It concerns the practical 
aspects of control of operations covered 
by the guarantee of the Community 
budget and those administered by the 
Bank under mandate from the Com­
mission OS representative of the 
European Communities. 

Audit Committee 

At its Annual Meeting on 9 June 1992, 
the Board of Governors renewed the 
appointment of the member of the Audit 
Committee whose term of office was 
then coming to on end. Hence, 
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MANAGEMENT OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

Organisation structure 

The changes which have occurred in the 
Bank's organisation structure through 
the creation of new departments reflect 
the growth, in terms of both volume 
and diversity, in financing activity in 
Germany, Denmark and Eastern 
Europe, as well as the important role 
played by information technology as α  
management tool. 

Staff 

Since publication of the Annual Report 
for the financial year 1991, the follow­
ing changes have taken place: 

— Directorate for Operations outside 
the Community: Mr Jacques SILVAIN,  
Head of Directorate, has retired; his 
functions hove been token over by 
Mr Thomas OURSIN, Head of the ACPI 
Department, who in turn has been 
replaced by Mr Rex SPELLER, Head of 
the ACP2 Department. Mr Jean-Louis 
BIANCARELLI, Head of the Division for 
Operations in France, Operations in the 
Community, Directorate 2, has been 
appointed Head of the ACP2 Depart­
ment in place of Mr Rex SPELLER; 

— General Administration Directorate: 
Mr MÜLLER-BORLE, Head of the Rep­
resentative Office in Brussels, has been 
promoted to Head of Department. 

The following appointments have been 
made as α result of changes in the 
organisation structure: 

— Directorate for Operations outside 
the Community: Mr Terence BROV/N, 
Head of the Eastern Europe Unit, has 
been appointed Head of the Eastern 
Europe Department; 

— Operations in the Community, 
Directorate h Mr Fridolin WEBER­ 
KREBS, Head of the Division for Oper­
ations in Germany and Denmark, in the 
former Department far Operations in 
Denmark, Germany and Spain, has 
been appointed Head of the new 
Department for Operations in Germany 
and Denmark; 

— General Administration Directorate: 
Mr Rémy JACOB, Head of the Person­
nel Administration Division, in the Per­
sonnel Department, has been appointed 
Head af the Information Technology 
Department. 

The Bank was greatly saddened by the 
unexpected death in 1992 of α member 
of its staff, Mr Roland FOUSS. 

centrated on the needs of the Direc­
torates responsible for granting and 
administering loans and for raising and 
managing resources. 

Indeed, over the past five years, the vol­
ume of financing has grown on overage 
by 14% per annum, against α backdrop 
of α broadening geographical spread of 
operations and diversification in Com­
munity policies. 

Staff Secretoriol, 
compie- Executive Clerical and 

ment Staff Support staff 

1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 

710 
718 
724 
751 
785 

357 
366 
368 
400 
424 

353 
352 
356 
351 
361 

Staff complement related to 
total Bank activity 

Activity (million ecusl 
Ì8 000 

Workforce 

At 31 December 1992, the ElB's staff 
complement totalled 785, α rise of 4.5% 
compared with the end af the previous 
year. Over the past five years, the aver­
age annual growth rate has been 2.3%. 
The proportion in executive positions 
has gradually risen from 50% of the 
staff in 1988 to 54% in 1992. The 
increase in staff numbers has been con-
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Personnel Policy 

With the adjustments mode to the 
merit-based remuneration and pro­
motion system, introduced in 1988, 
which have been the subject of an in-
depth and constructive study by the 
Staff Representatives, the principle of 
such α system con be regarded as 
having become part of the Bank's 
culture. 

In 1992, some 5 900 days were given 
over to training, an average of 7.5 days 
per employee. Particular emphasis was 
placed on updating and adapting tech­
nical expertise as well as on manage­
ment methods, mainly for those at 
senior executive level (Heads of Divi­
sion). The number of days devoted to 
language tuition and information tech­
nology training accounted for some two 
thirds of the total and benefited the 
staff as α whole. 

The additional resources provided, par­
ticularly in the area of staffing and 
expertise, underscore the ongoing effort 
being made on the training front. 

Since 1992, the process of recruiting 
new executive staff has been conducted 
on the basis of consultation between 
Directorates with α view to selecting 
candidates with multi-disciplinory pro­
files. This approach makes for greater 

potential in terms of flexibility and 
adaptability of human resources and 
helps to reinforce the degree of coop­
eration between Directorates. 

Staff Representatives 

The college of Staff Representatives is 
made up of 11 members, 3 elected by 
the staff as α whole and 8 by the vari­
ous categories of staff. They are en­
titled, under the terms of α convention 
concluded with the administration, to 
examine all questions relating to the 
interests of the staff. 

GENERAL 

Seat of the Bank 
At the Edinburgh European Council 
meeting on 11 December 1992, the Rep­
resentatives of the Governments of the 
Member States decided on the perma­
nent seats of the existing institutions. 
This confirmed the Grand Duchy of 
Luxembourg as the seat of the EIB. 

Extension of the Bank's building 
Since 1980, the EIB has occupied α  
building on the Kirchberg plateau in 
Luxembourg. It has been decided to 
extend this building to meet foreseeable 
requirements for additional space. Con­
struction work commenced in 1992, with 
the new offices scheduled to be avail­
able for the end of 1994. 

EIB scholarships 

Since 1978, with α view to fostering 
research on European matters, the EIB 
has awarded three scholarships each 
year to students preparing their doc­
toral theses at the European Univer­
sity Institute in Florence. 

In addition, the "Erling Jergensen" 
European Investment Bank Scholar­
ship, set up in 1990 in memory of the 
former EIB V ice-President and adminis­
tered by the Institutes of Economics and 
Statistics at the University of Copen­
hagen, is awarded each year to assist α  
student in the preparation of α thesis on 
political and economic questions relat­
ing to the Community. 

EIB Prize 

The EIB P rize, for an amount of 12 000 
ecus, is awarded every two years to 
encourage the study of all aspects of 
investment and its financing at univer­
sities in the Community Member States. 
It will next be awarded in 1993. 

The Board of Directors wishes to thank 
the staff of the Bonk for their 
productivity and professionalism, the 
quality of their work and their commit­
ment. It would like to encourage con­
tinuance of such achievements. 

Luxembourg, 23 March 1993 

The Chairman 
of the Board of Directors 

Ernst-Günther Broder 
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Growth in the balance sheet of the Bonk 
(million ecus ) 

90 000 

-90 000 

80 000 

70 000 

60 000 

1990 

— 80 000 

— 70 000 

— 60 000 

— 50 000 

-40oœ 

- 30 000 

— 20 000 

10 000 

Assets 

I Outstanding loons from EIB 
own resources 

Liabilities 

Outstanding borrowings 

1992 

-tia Liquid assets 

Other assets 

Capitol, reserves and provisions 

Other liabilities 
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SECOND PART CONTENTS 

Financial statements 

In view of the continuing deterioration in the financial environment, the Bonk has thought 
it prudent to establish, as from 31 December 1992, α Fund for general banking risks, cre­
ated in accordance with the Council Directive of 8 December 1986 on the annual accounts 
and consolidated accounts of bonks and other financial institutions (Art. 38) — see note A, 
§ 7 to the financial statements, page 78. 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes t o the financial statements 

ASSETS 31. iz 1992 

1. Cash in hand, balances with central banks and post 
office banks 31894470 

2. Treasury bills eligible for refinancing with central 
bonks (Note B) . . . 405 641 824 

3. Loons and advances to credit institutions 
(a) repayable on demand 151 377 992 
(b) other loans and advances (Note C) 3018069613 
(c) loons: aggregate outstanding (') 32467 485044 

less undisbursed portion 3 270 697 646 
29196 787398 

32366235 003 

4. Loons and advances to customers 
loans: aggregate outstanding (') . 51414713209 

less undisbursed portion 4898512139 
46 516 201 070 

5. Debt securities including fixed-income securities 
(Note B) 
(a) issued by public bodies 1 152736286 
(b) issued by other borrowers . 345129998 

1 497866284 

6. Shares and other variable-yield securities (Note N] . . 36000000 

7. Intangible assets 
unomortised issuing charges and redemption premiums . · 419 818 095 

8. Tangible assets (Note D) , 40698530 

9. Other assets 
(a) receivable from Member States for adjustment of capital 

contributions (Note E) 2136945 
(b) receivable in respect of EMS in terest subsidies paid in 

advance (Note F) 99 511 291 
(c) sundry debtors (Note G) 335190352 

436 838588 

10. Subscribed capital, called but not paid (^) 664437500 

11. Prepayments and accrued income 2251050800 
84 666 682 164 

31. 12. 1991 

72139 050 

584 582 489 

230160 840 
2 665 819 898 

27 715 581 211 
2 879 684 704 

24 835 896 507 
27 731 877 245 

44 627157 601 
3 748 624 562 

898111 571 
679 630 753 

624 797 

117 734 891 
71 604 290 

40 878 533 039 

1 577 742 324 

18 000 000 

460 475 440 

37 626 019 

189 963 978 

828 875 000 

1 910 879 819 
74 290 694 403 

(iliiii?:« i.îC'riL·*,:, 
M'":! 

APPENDED SUMMARY STATEMENTS: 
(') Loans and guarantees, pag e 74. 
(') Debts evidenced by certificates, page 77. 
1?) Subscriptions to the capital of the Bonk, page 77. 
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LIABILITIES 57. 75. 1992 

1. Amounts owed to credit institutions 

(a) repayable on demand 7455 422 
(b) with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice (Note O) 158445 225 

165 900647 

Ζ Debts evidenced by certificates (^) 

(a) debt securities in issue 63286462 026 
(b) others 4497057937 

67783519963 

3. Other liabilities 
(a) payable to Member States for adjustment of capital con­

tributions (Note E) 5105 351 
(b) interest subsidies received in advance (Note F) .... 365462195 
(c) sundry creditors (Note G) . 978 957 238 
(d) sundry liabilities (Note G) 20961011 

1370485 795 

4. Accruals and deferred income .... . 3005306473 

5. Provisions for liabilities and charges 

staff pension fund (Note H) ............ 182523862 

6. Fund for general banking risks (Note I) .... . . 150000000 

7. Capital P) 
subscribed ................. 57600000000 
uncalled - 53279061 724 

4320938276 

8. Reserves (Note M) 

(a) reserve fund 5760000000 
(b) additional reserves 958 901 739 

6 718 901 739 

9. Profit for the financial year 969105409 
84666682164 

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ITEMS 
57. 75 1992 

Guarantees (^) 
— in respect of loans granted by third parties .... . . 287465625 

— in respect of participations by third parties in Bank loans . . 103 834 432 
391 300057 

Special deposits for service of borrowings (Note Q) . . . 4120218348 

Swop contracts (Note R) 
-currency ... · ... . , / 267800000 

— interest . .... - . . . • • · - · - · - - 70600000 

338400000 

Portfolio securities 
— commitments to purchase 17031 792 

— commitments to sell (Note S) .... . . ..... 988449545 

Q 
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31. 12. 1991 

219 714 068 

53 488145 602 
5 404 480 400 

3 806 371 
403 964 798 
938116 893 
40176 489 

57 600 000 000 
- 53 279 061 724 

5 635 440 641 

219 714 068 

58 892 626 002 

1 386 064 551 

2 597 808 716 

154 641 051 

4320 938 276 

244 804 996 

125 765 279 

5 635 440 641 

1 083 461 098 
74 290 694 403 

31. 12. 1991 

370 570 275 

2114215479 

186 400 000 

45 700 000 

232 100 000 

93 966 821 

153 881 997 



STATEMENT OF SPECIAL SECTION Π AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes to the financial statements 

ASSETS 31. IZ 1992 31. 12. 1991 

Member States 
From resources of the European Atomic Energy Community 
Loans outstanding 
— disbursed p) 1 336307 924 
From resources of the European Economic Community (New 
Community Instrument for borrowing and lending) 
Loans outstanding 
— undisbursed 61 033 724 
— disbursed 2384923215 

Total P) 2445 956 939 

Turkey 
From resources of Member States 
Loans outstanding 
— undisbursed 17 178 562 
— disbursed 194280016 

Total P) 211 458578 

Mediterranean Countries 
From resources of the European Economic Community 
Loans outstanding 
— undisbursed 1 852441 
— disbursed 283 769 730 

Risk capi tal operations 
— amounts to be disbursed 20 756 760 
— amounts disbursed 31 419 766 

Total P) 

African, Caribbean and Pacific States and Overseas Coun­
tries and Territories 
From resources of the European Economic Community 

First and Second Yaoundé Conventions 
Loans disbursed 
Contributions to the formation of risk capital 
Amounts disbursed 

Total p) 

First, Second, Third and Fourth Lomé Conventions 
Risk capital operations 
— amounts to be disbursed 
— amounts disbursed 

Total P) 1009 230514 
Grand Total 5 413 754 906 

1 558 849 764 

94 926 971 
3128 791 824 

18 592 626 
207 981 236 

285 622 171 

52176 526 
337 798697 

6 550 804 
285 772 856 

23 099 707 
22 723 114 

71 727 475 

1 274779 

378 700860 
630529654 

73002254 

73181 999 

1 222 427 

338669 590 
577 235 317 

3 223 718 795 

226 573 862 

292 323 660 

45 822 821 
338146 481 

74 404 426 

915 904 907 
6 337 598 235 

For Information: 

Total amoun ts disbu rsed and not yet repaid on loans an special conditio ns made availabl e by the Com mission in respect of which the Bank ha s 
accepted on tcC mandate tor recovering principal and interest: 
(a) Under th e First, Second and Third Lamé Conventions: at 31 December 1992; 1 250 415 521 ; at 31 December 1991: 1 107 352 302 
(b) Under Financial Protocols s igned with the Mediterranean Countries; at 31 December 1992; 137 166 091 ; at 31 December 1991 ; 133 502 076. 

(') The Special Section was set up by the Board of Governors 
on 27 May 1963; under α Decision token on 4 August 1977 its 
purpose was redefined as being that of recording operations 
carried out by the European Investment Bank for the account 
of and under mandate from third parties. 

P) Initial amount of contracts signed under Council Decisions 
77/271/Euratom of 29 March 1977, 82/170/Euratom of 15 
March 1982 and 85/537/Euratom of 5 December 1985 provid­

ing for on amount of three billion as α contribution towards 
financing commercially-rated nuclear power stations within the 
Community under mandate, for the account and at the risk of 
the European Atomic Energy Community; 2 773 167 139 

add: exchange adjustments -t- 170 447 417 

less: repayments — 1 60 7 306 632 
1 336 307 924 
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LIABILITIES 31. 12 1992 31. 12. 1991 

Funds under trust management 
Under mandale from the European Communities 
European Atomic Energy Community 
European Economic Community: 
— New Community Instrument 
— Financial Protocols with the Mediterranean Countries 
— First and Second Yaoundé Conventions .... 
— First, Second, Third and Fourth Lomé Conventions . 

Under mandate from Member States 
Iota 

Funds to be disbursed 
On New Community Instrument loans . . . . .... 
On loans to Turkey under the Supplementary Protocol ,. . . 
On loons and risk capital operations in the Mediterranean 
Countries 
On risk capital operations under the First, Second, Third and 
Fourth Lomé Conventions 

Tota 
Grand Tota 

1 336307924 

2384923215 
315189496 
73002 254 

630529 654 

61 033 724 
17 178 562 

22609201 

378 700 860 

4 739 952 543 
194 280016 

4934232559 

479 522347 
5413754906 

1 558 849 764 

3128 791 824 
308 495 970 
74 404 426 

577 235 317 

94 926 971 
18 592 626 

29 650 511 

338 669 590 

5 647 777 301 
207 981 236 

5 855 758 537 

481 839 698 
6 337 598 235 

Ρ) Initial amount of contracts signed under Council Decisions 
78/870/EEC of 16 October 1978 (New Community Instrument), 
82/169/EEC of 15 March 1982,83/200/EEC of 19 April 1983 and 
87/182/EEC of 9 March 1987 for promoting investment within 
the Community, as w ell as 81 /19/EEC of 20 January 1981 for 
reconstructing areas of Campania and Basilicata (Italy) stricken 
by an earthquake on 23 November 1980, and 81/1013/EEC of 14 
December 1981 for reconstructing areas stricken by earthquakes 
in Greece in February and March 1981, under mandate, for the 
account and at the risk of the European Economic Community: 

6 399144 856 
+ 55 434 709 add: exchange adjustments 

less: cancellations 

repayments 

187 976 280 

3 820 646 346 -4 008 622 626 
2 445 956 939 

('') Initial amount of contracts signed for financing projects in 
Turkey under mandate, for the account and at the risk_^o^^Mem-
ber States: 

add: exchange adjustments 

less: cancellations 215 000 

repayments 211 653 247 

417 215 000 

+ 6111825 

-211 868 247 
211 458 578 

P) Initial amount of contracts signed for financing projects in 
the Maghreb and Mashreq countries, Malta, Cyprus, Turkey 
and Greece (10 million lent prior to accession to EEC on 
1 January 1981 ) under mandate, for the account and at the risk 
of the European Economic Community: 364 209 000 

less: cancellations 6939 157 

repayments 19 263 804 

exchange adjustments 207 342 - 26 410 303 
337 798 697 

(') Initial amount of contracts signed for financing projects in 
the Associated African States, Madagascar and Mauritius and 
the Overseas Countries, Territories and Departments 
(AASMM-OCTD) under mandate, for the account and at the 
risk of the European Economic Community: 
— loons on special con­

ditions 139 483 056 
— contributions to the 

formation of risk capi­
tal 2 502 615 

add: 
— capitalised interest 1 178 272 
— exchange adjustments 9 803 543 

less: 
— cancellations 1 573 610 
— repayments 78 391 622 

141 985 671 

-t- 10981 815 

- 79 965 232 
73 002 254 

P) Initial amount of contracts signed for financing projects in 
the African, Caribbean and Pacific States and the Overseas 
Countries and Territories (ACP-OCT) under mandate, for the 
account and at the risk of the European Economic Community: 
— conditional and subor-

1 177157 000 
16 516 855 1 193 673 855 

dinated loans 
— equity participations 

odd: 
— capitalised interest 

less: 
— cancellations 
— repayments 
— exchange adjustments 

4- 1 602 927 

89 161 580 
90 281 688 
6 603 000 - 186 046 268 

1 009 230 514 
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes to the financial statements 

31. 12. 1992 31. 12. 1991 

1. Interest receivable and similar income (Note J) . . . 7 163 685 217 6 221 537 252 

2. Interest payable and similar charges — 5 793 738 694 — 5 031 397 497 

3. Commissions receivable (Note K] ........ 15 938 655 16119 506 

4. Commissions payable — 5 692 086 — 4 749 467 

5. Net profit on financial operations . . 14016 664 60 450 325 

6. Other operating income 179 582 198 627 

7. General administrative expenses (Note L): ..... — 1065101 46 — 94242 745 

(a) staff costs 87 903 715 77 291 920 

(b) other administrative expenses ......... 18 606 431 16 950 825 

8. Value adjustments in respect of: . . . . . . — 112 607 794 — 108 9 34 203 

(a) issuing charges and redemption premiums 104563489 102017382 

(b) buildings and net purchases of furniture and equipment 
(NoteD) 8 044305 6 916821 

9. Transfers to Fund for general banking risks ..... — 1500 00000 — 

10. Profit on ordinary activities 1 025 271 398 1 058 981 798 

11. Net loss/gain arising from réévaluation of net Bank 
assets not subject to adjustment under Article 7 of the 
Statute (Note A §1) -56 165 989 + 24 479 300 

12. Profit for the financial year (Note M) . . . . . . . 969 105 409 1 083 461 098 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes to the financial statements 

31. 12. 1992 31. 12. 1991 

A. Cash flows from operating octivlties: 
Profit for the financial year 
Adjustments to reconcile profit for financial year with net cosh 
from operating activities: 
— Transfer to Fund for general banking risks 
— Depreciation 
— Increase in accrued interest and commissions payable and 

interest received in advance 
— Increase in accrued interest and commissions receivable . . 

Net cosh generoted by operoting octivities (1 ) 

969 1 05 409 

150 000 000 
112 607 794 

407 497 757 
•340170 981 

1 083 461 098 

108 934 203 

556 993 037 
- 336 519115 

1 299 039 979 1 412 869223 

Net decrease in provision for depreciation . 
Exchange adjustments 

Other; 
Net decrease in land, buildings and furniture 
Other decreases in assets 

Net cosh used in investment octivities (2) 

B. Cosh flows from investment octivities; 
Loans: 
Net disbursements . - τ. , .= — 15103 250 505 
Repayments . . . . , . · • ·, ·; · • · ... . Τ 5516 839 1 87 
Exchange adjustments . . i. . . . . - . . • · — 412 147 604 

Portfolio securities; 
Sales . . 8881 456 190 
Purchases - 8958055844 

...... -1611195 

...... - 1 942217 

- 11 116816 
1 273 596 

- 10088 555 208 

15 328 918 805 
4 458 128 303 
- 181 873 299 

8 485 021 935 
- 8 803 597199 
- 42 937 806 
- 1 060 794 

- 10 015 641 
18 750 026 

- 11 406503280 

C. Cosh flows from finoncing octivities: 

Debts evidenced by certificates 
Medium and long-term borrowings: 
Issue proceeds . 
Redemptions 
Exchange adjustments 
Net increase in issuing charges and redemption premiums 
Net increase in currency swaps . 
Short-term borrowings: 
Net (decrease)/increase . . . . . . . . . . . \ 

Other iiabiiities 
Capitol paid in by Member States ....... . 
Net decrease in amounts owed to credit institutions . . 
Other increases/(decreases) in liabilities . . . . . 

12 328 159 206 
- 4 572 976 770 

935 037 438 
- 63 906144 
- 269 390 967 

- 278 996 224 

164 437 500 
- 53 813 421 

33 546 816 

12 811 209 268 
- 3 407 203 063 

174 262 763 
- 91 602 216 
- 75 999 674 

1 128 062 736 

164 437 500 
- 513 468 026 
- 36 009 677 

Net cash generated by financing activities (3) 8222097434 10153689611 

Summary statement of cash flows 
Cash at beginning of financial year . 
Net cash from: 

operating activities 
investment activities 
financing activities 

1 299 039 979 
10 088 555 208 
8 222 097 434 

Total net cosh movements . . . . 

Cosh at the end of the financial year 

3 541 953 019 

1 412 869 223 
- 11 406 503 280 

10153 689 611 

-567417 795 

2974535 224 

Cosh analysis 
Cash in hand, balances with central banks and post office banks 
Bills maturing within three months of issue ........ 
Loans and advances ta credit institutions: 
— accounts repayable on demand . . . . .: . . . . 
— term deposit accounts .... . . . . . . 

31 894 470 
409 886 657 

151 377 992 
2 381 376 105 

2974535224 

3 381 897 465 

160055 554 

3541953019 

72139 050 
730 856 428 

230160 840 
2 508 796 701 

3541 953019 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes to the financial statements 

1. Aggregate loans outstanding [*) 

Aggregate historical amount of loons 
calculated on the basis of the parties 
applied on the date of signature . . 
Add: 
exchange adjustments 

Less; 
terminations and cancellations 

120 034 957 627 

1 049156 891 
121 084114518 

principal repayments 

third party participations 

1 459 378 438 

35 638 703 395 

103 834 432 
- 37 201 916 265 

(*) Loans outstanding comprise both the disbursed portion of loons end 
the portion still to be disbursed. Aggregate loans outstanding . . . 83 882 198 253 

2. Statutory ceiling on lending and guarantee operations 

Under the terms of Article 18 (5) of the 
Statute, the aggregate amount out­
standing at any time of loans and guar­
antees granted by the Bank must not 
exceed 250 % of its subscribed capital. 
The present level of capital implies α  
ceiling of 144 billion in relation to 
aggregate loans and guarantees out­
standing currently totalling 
84 273 498 310 and broken down as 
follows: 

— aggregate loans outstanding . . 

— aggregate guarantees outstanding 
(off-balance-sheet items): 
in respect of loans granted by third 
parties 

in respect of third party participa­
tions in Bank loans 

Aggregate loans and guarantees out­
standing 

83 882198 253 

287 465 625 

103 834 432 

391 300 057 

84273498310 

Loons granted 
to intermediary 

credit 
institutions 

directly to 
final 

beneficiaries Total 

3. Analysis of aggregate loans outstanding 

Loons disbursed 
Undisbursed portion 

29196 787 398 
3 270 697 646 

46 516 201 070 
4 898 512 139 

75 712 988 468 
8169 209 785 

Aggregate loans outstanding: 32467485044 51 414713209 83 882 198 253 

4. Breakdown of undisbursed portion by type of 
interest rate 

Fixed rate of interest and standard currency mix, as 
specified in the finance contract 
Fixed rate of interest, as specified in the finance contract, 
with the Bank selecting the currency mix 
Open rate, with the Bank selecting the rate of interest and 
currency mix 
Variable rate 
Révisable rate 

58 701 369 

391 603 500 

2 684 726 491 
37 825 566 
97 840 720 

102 746 458 

955 925 473 

3 006105 291 
375 272 624 
458 462 293 

161 447 827 

1 347 528 973 

5 690 831 782 
413 098190 
556 303 013 

Undisbursed portion: 3270697646 4898512139 8169 209 785 

5. Scheduled repayments on loans disbursed 
Period remaining until fina! maturity 
Not more than three months 
More than three months but not more than one year 
More than one year but not more than five years 
More than five years 

Loans disbursed: 

466 475 188 
2 566 193 317 

14 872 839 341 
11 291 279 552 

634 078 998 
3 322 783 661 

18 863 553 624 
23 695 784 787 

29 196 787 398 46516 201 070 

6. Breakdown of loans disbursed by currency of 
repayment 
Member States' currencies and the ecu .... 
Other currencies 

24133142 657 
5 063 644 741 

34 314 938 447 
12 201 262 623 

1 100 554186 
5 888 976 978 
33 736 392 965 
34 987 064 339 

75 712 988 468 

58 448 081 104 
17 264 907 364 

Loans disbursed: 29196 787398 46 516 201 070 75 712988468 
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7. Geographical breakdown of lending by country in which projects ore located 

Countries and territories Number Aggregate loans Undisbursed Disbursed %of 
in which projects ore located of loans outstanding portion portion total 
7.1 Loons for projects within the Community and related loans (*) 
Germany 264 6144 258 263 10168 235 6134 090 028 732 
France 413 10 698 687 653 1 346 917 713 9 351 769 940 12.75 
Italy 2159 24 994 189 607 1 085 763 838 23 908 425 769 29.80 
United Kingdom 370 9 670 708 002 1 345 666 903 8 325 041 099 11.53 
Spain 233 10 428 360 336 529 959105 9 898 401 231 12.43 
Belgium 44 1 019 287 351 198 185 324 821 102 027 1.22 
Netherlands 37 1 308 709 703 130 803 391 1 177 906 312 1.56 
Denmark 193 3 915 694 551 — 3 915 694 551 4.67 
Greece . . . . . ^ 197 2 521 150 327 283 478 465 2 237 671 862 3.01 
Portugal . . . . . . 210 5 051 884 983 1 046 676 958 4 005 208 025 6.02 
Ireland . .... , 220 2 657 735 176 70 577 280 2 587 157 896 3.17 
Luxembourg .... :. . . ., , . 7 109 535 548 — 109 535 548 0.13 
Related loons (*) . . . . . . . . ^ . 26 945 876 828 16 516 641 929 360187 1.13 

Total 4373 79466078328 6064713 853 73401 364475 94.74 
7.2 Loans for projects outside the Community 
7.2.1 Mediterranean Countries 

Former Yugoslavia . 20 630 071 265 195 235 000 434 836 265 
Egypt 19 396 335 357 184 099 000 212 236 357 
Algeria :. .... 13 355 081 336 219 094 000 135 987 336 
Morocco 13 334 491 610 151 000 000 183 491 610 
Tunisia i ... . 25 261 692 917 109 153 000 152 539 917 
Jordan . 22 106 963 730 40 663 500 66 300 230 
Syria 5 73 577 023 20 400 000 53 177 023 
Cyprus 5 47 602 431 8 571 500 39 030 931 
Malta . . . . . 3 39 661 491 — 39 661 491 
Turkey 7 30 574193 — 30 574193 
Lebanon 3 6 437 848 — 6 437 848 

Sub-total 135 2 282 489 201 928 216 000 1 354 273 201 2,72 
7.2.2 Central and Eastern European Countries 

Hungary 7 307 344 698 250 900 000 56 444 698 
Poland 6 295 260 482 207 055 140 88 205 342 
Bulgaria . . .... 2 115 000 000 115 000 000 — 
Czech and Slovak Rep. . . . . ; . . . 1 85 000 000 85 000 000 — 
Romania . . 1 25101 667 23 000 000 2 101 667 

Sub-total 17 827 706 847 680 955140 146 751 707 0,99 
7.2J ACP Countrìes/OCT  

Nigeria .... 
Zimbabwe . . . 
Côte d'Ivoire . . 
Kenya .... 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Cameroon . . . 
Fiii 
Jamaica .... 
Papua New Guinea 
Ghana .... 
Botswana . . . 
Mauritius . . . 
Senegal .... 
Mauritania . . . 
Guinea .... 
Netherlands Antilles 
Gabon .... 

- Africa 

310 939 955 205 1 09 458 105 830 497 
125 668 656 64 203 442 61 465 214 
118 064 716 24 373 452 93 691 264 
116 109 827 23 069 300 93 040 527 
68 565 821 40 711 290 27 854 531 
65 411 445 — 65 411 445 
49 952 677 11 952 228 38 000 449 
46 776 401 25 458 765 21 317 636 
41 164 281 2 880 000 38 284 281 
40 822 703 20 000 000 20 822 703 
34 809 977 2 500 000 32 309 977 
30 233 493 2 000 000 28 233 493 
24 245 027 10 588 547 13 656 480 
21 926 078 12 500 000 9 426 078 
18 577 603 12 000 000 6 577 603 
17 506131 7 480 000 10 026131 
15 917 804 — 15 917 804 
15 651 819 — 15 651 819 
14 000 000 
11 771 639 
11 002 133 
10 686 603 
10 046 000 
9 720 309 
9 416 481 
7 534 841 
6 204 189 
6140189 
5 995 931 
4 792113 
4 358 883 
4 258 272 
3 704 423 
3 300 000 
3 150 513 
2 975 787 
2 929 676 
2 500 000 2 500 000 
2 010 089 1 109 000 901 089 
1 941 867 - 1 941 867 
1 700124 — 1 700124 
1 680 261 140 000 1 540 261 
1 265123 — 1 265 123 

494 017 — 494 017 
Sub-total 168 1 305 923 877 495 324 792 810 599 085 1.55 

rStd 30 4416119925 2104495932 2 311623993 5.26 
Grand Total 4693 83882198253 8169209785 75712988468 100.00 

Loans authorised under the second paragraph of Article 18 (1) of the Statute for projects located outside the ter ritory of Member States but offering benefits 
for the Community are considered as related to loans within the Community. 

Bahamas 
Regional 
Malawi .... 
Barbados . . . 
Zaire 
French Polynesia . 
Zambia .... 
Swaziland . . . 
Congo .... 
Cayman Islands . 
East Africa . . . 
Saint Lucia . . . 
Niger .... 
New Caledonia 
West Africa . . 
Central Africa . . 
Aruba .... 
British Virgin Islands 
Saint Vincent . . 
Togo 
Falkland Islands 
Tonga .... 
Belize .... 
Burkina Faso . . 
Seychelles . . . 
Liberia .... 
Montserrat . . . 

8 
11 
14 
12 
5 
8 

10 
6 
6 
4 
9 
7 
4 
2 
2 
5 
3 
2 
1 
6 
5 
1 
3 
1 
4 
3 
3 
1 
2 
2 
1 
2 
1 
2 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
2 
1 
1 
2 
1_ 

168 
320 

4693 

14 000 000 
70 310 

4121 000 

1 345 320 

1 225 709 

1 580 000 
3 300 000 
1 106 971 

11 701 329 
6 881 133 
10 686 603 
10 046 000 
9 720 309 
8 071 161 
7 534 841 
4 978 480 
6140189 
5 995 931 
4 792113 
4 358 883 
4 258 272 
2124 423 

2 043 542 
2 975 787 
2 929 676 

o-
75 



8. Breakdown of loons by principol form of guorontee (a) 

8.1 Loans for projects within the Community and related 
loans (b) 

Loans granted to, or guaranteed by, 
Member States 
Loans granted to, or guaranteed by, 
public institutions of Member States . . 
Loans granted to, or guaranteed by, 
financial institutions (banks, long-term 
credit institutions, insurance companies) 
Loans guaranteed by companies 
(excluding financial institutions) under 
majority control of Member States or 
public institutions in the Community . . 
Loans secured by fixed charge on real 
estate 
Loans guaranteed by non-bank 
companies in the private sector . . . 
Loans secured by fixed charge on assets 
other than real estate, or other security . 

Sub-total 79 466 078 328 

38 523141 110 (c-d) 

3 768 353 875 

24 665 603 247 (c) 

2 063 951 069 

258131 580 

8 483 380 037 

1 703 517 410 

8.2.2 Non-member Mediterranean 
Countries benefiting from financial 
cooperation with the EEC 

Financial Protocols 
Loans granted to, or guaranteed or 
counter-guaranteed by, countries signa­
tories to these protocols 2 185 489 201 

Horizontal cooperation 
Loans granted to, or guaranteed by, 
countries benefiting from this 
cooperation 97 000 000 
Total Mediterranean Countries ... 2 282 489 201 (c) 

8.2.3 Non-member Central and Eastern 
European Countries (CEEC) 
Loans granted to, or guaranteed by, 
countries signatories to financial 
cooperation agreements 827 706 847 (f) 

Sub-total 4 416119 925 
Aggregate loans outstanding .... 83 882 198 253 

8.2 Loans for projects outside the Community 

8.2.1 African, Caribbean and Pacific 
States — Overseas Countries and 
Territories 
Loans granted to, or guaranteed by. 
States signatories to cooperation 
agreements: 
First Lomé Convention . . . . . . 48 542 584 
Second Lomé Convention . . . . . 257 243 160 
Third Lomé Convention ...... 591 585 875 
Fourth Lomé Convention ..... 298 366 851 

1 195 738 470 

Loans secured by other guarantees: 

First Lomé Convention 4 358 883 
Second Lomé Convention ..... 18610788 
Third Lomé Convention ...... 37 585 365 
Fourth Lomé Convention . . . . . 49 630 371 

110 185 407 
Total ACP States/OCT . . . 1 305 923 877 (e) 

(a) Certain loans are covered by several types of guarantee or security, 
(bj Loans authorised under the second paragraph of Artide 18 (1) of 

the Statute for projects located outside the territory of Member 
States but offering benefits for the Community are considered as 
related to loans within the Community. 

(cj The blanket guarantee provided by the EEC amounted to 
3734 088393 ecus at 31 December 1992 compared to 
3 312 030 500 ecus at 31 December 1991. This gu arantee is pro­
vided to cover any risk attaching to financial commitments in the 
Mediterranean Countries as well as in Greece, Spain and Portugal 
arising from loans granted prior to these countries ' accession to the 
EEC, totalling 639 746 532 ecus at 31 December 1992. 

(d) Aggregate loans outstanding guaranteed by the EEC amounted to 
5 466 091 ecus at 31 December 1992. 

(e) Guarantees provided by Member States to cover any risk attaching 
to financial commitments entered into under the Lomé Conventions, 
insofar as the ACP States are concerned, and under the related 
Council Decisions, insofar as the OCT are concerned, amount 
respectively to: 
— First Convention: 52 901 467 ecus; 
— Second Convention: 275 853 948 ecus; 
— Third Convention: 485 895 800 ecus; 
— Fourth Convention: 261 000 000 ecus. 

(f) Loans granted in non-member Central and Eastern European Coun­
tries are fully guaranteed by the EEC. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEBTS EVIDENCED BY CERTIFICATES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes t o the financial statements 

Borrowings Currency swops Net amount 

Amounts payable ( + ) 
or receivable (—) 

Payable 
in 

Outstanding at 
31. 12.1991 

Outstanding at Average 
31.12.1992 rate Due dates 31.12.1991 31. 12.1992 

Average 
rate 

Outstanding at 
31. 12. 1991 

Outstanding at 
31. 12. 1992 

ECU 9 269 862 502 10 472 732 820 9.32 1993/2004 458 276 406 + 764 789 816 -h 9.47 9 728 138 908 11 237 522 636 
DEM 8 532 030 479 10169 218 655 7.35 1993/2016 92 875 074 - 91 301 902 — 9.61 8 439 1 55 405 10 077 916 753 
FRF 5 447 796 673 6 784 552 734 9.59 1993/2003 439 264 031 -h 458 076 212 -h 9.00 5 887 060 704 7 242 628 946 
GBP 5 894 383 771 5 833 303 742 9.75 1993/2011 492 936 210 -t- 858 754 762 -h 10.99 6 387 319 981 6 692 058 504 
ITL 4 698 392 243 4 657 631 981 11.96 1993/2004 — 366 461 156 -h 16.04 4 698 392 243 5 024 093137 
BEF 2 067 759 261 2 170 817 394 8.86 1993/2002 — — — 2 067 759 261 2170 817 394 
NLG 4 019196 018 4 018 749 894 7.86 1993/2009 — — — 4019196018 4 018 749 894 
DKK 72 892 824 76 305 746 11.34 1994/1997 — — — 72 892 824 76 305 746 
IEP 97 868 809 100 920 801 9.30 1993/1996 — — — 97 868 809 100 920 801 
LU F 420116 001 431 449 535 8.13 1993/1998 — — — 420116 001 431 449 535 
ESP 2 218 295 956 2 416 632 768 11.93 1993/2002 76 577105 -f· 255 957 163 -h 13.99 2 294 873 061 2 672 589 931 
PIE 486 419177 576 620162 13.46 1993/1999 — — — 486 419 177 576 620162 
USD 6 921 392 523 8 709 946 587 8.05 1993/2008 284 630 120 — 642 952 964 — 6.62 6 636 762 403 8 066 993 623 
CHF 3 234 382 135 3 901 960 784 6.06 1993/2004 320 857 380 -h 330 786 639 -t- 7.37 3 555 239 515 4 232 747 423 
JPY 4 721 994 760 5 599 232 093 5.65 1993/2008 692 334 780 — 767 906 792 — 6.33 4 029 659 980 4 831 325 301 
ATS 76 795 264 79 951 738 6.86 1995/1996 — — — 76 795 264 79 951 738 
CAD 479113 736 1 232 397 805 9.04 1995/2002 479113 736 — 1 232 397 805 — 9.04 — — 
AUD 226 828 093 426 252 614 9.08 1999/2001 226 828 093 — 426 252 614 — 9.08 — — 
SEK — 116 973 293 10.00 1999/1999 — 116 973 293 - 10.00 — — 
Total 
Premiums 

58 885 520 225 
7 105 777 

67 775 651 146 
7 868 817 

Total 58 892 626002 67 783519963 

The following table shows the total capital sums required for the redemption of borrowings: 

Notes and bonds Other Total 
Maturities: Not more than three months: 3 742 220 121 184102 387 3 926 322 508 

More than three months but not more than one year: 3 316 997 269 424 409 602 3 741 406 871 
More than one year but not more than five years: 24107 092 702 1 922 812 195 26 029 904 897 
More than five years: 32120151 934 1 965 733 753 34 085 885 687 

Total 63286462026 4497057937 67 783 519 963 

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO THE CAPITAL OF THE BANK AS AT 31 DECEMBER 1992 
In ecus — see notes t o the financial statements 

Capital paid in and to be paid in 

Paid in at 
Member States Subscribed capital (') Available for call (') 31.12.1992 To be paid in P) Total 

Germany 11 017 450 000 10189 970 950 702 357 400 125121 650 827 479 050 

France 11 017 450 000 10 189 970 950 702 357 400 125 121 650 827 479 050 

Italy 11 017 450 000 10189 970 950 694 482 400 132 996 650 827 479 050 

United Kingdom 11 017 450 000 10189 970 950 702 357 400 125 121 650 827 479 050 

Spain 4 049 856 000 3 747 237 310 255 902 090 46 716 600 302 618 690 

Belgium 3 053 960 000 2 825 758 011 192 973 420 35 228 569 228 201 989 

Netherlands 3 053 960 000 2 825 758 011 192 973 420 35 228 569 228 201 989 

Denmark 1 546 308 000 1 430 762 746 97 708 016 17 837 238 115 545 254 

Greece 828 380 000 766 479 995 52 344 331 9 555 674 61 900 005 

Portugal 533 844 000 493 953 399 33 732 514 6158 087 39 890 601 

Ireland 386 576 000 357 689 755 24 426 952 4 459 293 28 886 245 

Luxembourg 77 316 000 71 538 697 4 885 433 891 870 5 777 303 

Total 57600000000 53279061 724 3656 500776 664437500 4320938 276 

(') By Decision of the Board of Governors of 11 June 1990, the subscribed capital was doubled from 28 800 000 000 to 57 600 000 000 as from 1 January 1991 as α result of 
the conversion of 1 225 000 000 into subscribed and paid-in capital by way of ο tronsfer from the Additional Reserves ond the increase of 27 575 000 000 m Member 
States' contributions, of which 1.81323663 % to be paid in. 

P) Under the increase decided on 11 June 1990, the Member States will pay in, in ecus or in their notional currencies, on aggregate total of 500 000 000 in ten equal semi­
annual instalments commencing on 30 April 1994 and ending on 31 October 1998. With regard to the amount still to be paid in under the capital increase decided on 
11 June 1985, Member States will pay in an amount of 164 437 500 in two equal instalments of 82 218 750 on 30 April and 31 October 1993. 

f ) Could be called by decision of the Board of Directors to such extent as may be required for the Bonk to meet its obligations towards those who have made loans to it. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at 31 December 1992 — in ecus 

Note A — Significant accounting policies 

1. Conversion of currencies 

in accordance with Article 4 (1) of its Statute, the EIB uses the 
ecu adopted by the European Communities as the unit of mea­
sure for the capital accounts of Member States and for pre­
senting its financial statements. 

The value of the ecu is equal to the sum of the following 
amounts of the Member States' currencies: 

DEM 0.6242 NLG 0.2198 IEP 0.008552 
GBP 0.08784 BEF 3.301 GRD 1.440 
FRF 1.332 LUF 0.13 ESP 6.885 
ITL 151.8 DKK 0.1976 PTE 1.393 

The c onversion rates between Member States' currencies and 
the ecu, which are determined on the basis of market rates, are 
published daily in the Official Journal of the European Com­
munities. 

The Bank applies these rates in calculating the rates applicable 
to other currencies used for its operations. 

The Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of its 
Member States, in ecus and in non-Community currencies. 

Its resources are derived from its capital, borrowings and accu­
mulated earnings in various currencies and are held, invested 
or lent in the same currencies. 

The following conversion rates were used for drawing up the 
balance sheets a t 31 December 1992 and 31 December 1991: 

1 ecu = 

Deutsche Mark 
French francs 
Pounds sterling 
Italian lire 
Spanish pesetas 
Belgian francs 
Dutch guilders 
Danish kroner 
Drachmas 
Portuguese escudos  
Irish pounds 
Luxembourg francs 
United States dollars 
Swiss francs 
Lebanese pounds 
Japanese yen 
Austrian Schillings 
Canadian dollars 
Australian dollars 
CFA francs 
Swedish kronor 

31.12.1992 31.12.1991 

1.95560 
6.66782 
0.798221 

1 787.42 
138.648 

40.1777 
2.19669 
7.57479 

260.198 
177.760 

0.743157 
40.1777 
1.21090 
1.76307 

2 225.10 
151.060 
13.7583 
1.53603 
1.75952 

333.391 
8.54896 

2.03553 
6.95338 
0.716117 

1 542.40 
129.668 
41.9308 
2.29352 
7.92945 

235.065 
179.886 
0.766332 

41.9308 
1.34093 
1.81763 

1 179.35 
167.549 
14.3238 
1.55078 
1.76345 

347.669 
7.45020 

The Bank's assets a nd liabilities are converted into ecus. The 
gain or loss arising from such conversion is credited or charged 
to the profit and loss account. 

Excluded from such calculations are the assets representing the 
portion of capital paid in by the Member States in their 

national currency which is adjusted periodically in accordance 
with Article 7 of the Bank's Statute. 

2. Treasury bills and other bills eligible for refinancing with 
central banks and debt securities including fixed-income 
securities 

Treasury bonds, notes and bonds are normally included at cost, 
or at the lower of nominal or market value where these are less 
than the original cost. 

3. Loans and advances to credit institutions and customers 

Loans are included in the assets o f the Bank at their net dis­
bursed amounts. 

4. Tangible assets 

Land and buildings are stated at cost less bo th initial write­
down of the Kirchberg headquarters and accumulated de­
preciation. Depreciation is calculated to write off the value 
of the Bank's Luxembourg-Kirchberg headquarters and its 
office in Lisbon on the straight-line basis over 30 and 25 years 
respectively. Office furniture and equipment are depreciated 
in full in the year of acquisition. 

5. Intangible assets 

Issuing charges and redemption premiums are amortised over 
the lives of the borrowings based on the principal amounts out­
standing. 

6. Staff pension fund 

The Bank has α contributory pension scheme fo r its staff. All 
contributions to the scheme by the Bank and its staff are 
invested in the assets of the Bank. The amounts set as ide are 
based on actuarial valuations performed every three years. 

7. Fund for general banking risks 

This item includes those amounts which the Bank decides to put 
aside to cover risks on loans, having regard to the particular 
risks associated with such o perations representing the Bank's 
main activity. 

Amounts transferred to this Fund feature separately in the 
profit and loss account as "Transfers to Fund for general bank­
ing risks". 

8. Taxation 

The Protocol on the Privileges and Immunities of the European 
Communities, appended to the Treaty of 8 April 1965 estab­
lishing α Single Council and α Single Commission of the Euro­
pean Communities, stipulates that the assets, revenues and 
other property of the Bank are exempt from all direct taxes. 

9. Interest rate and currency swaps 

The EIB enters into currency swaps in which the proceeds of α  
borrowing may be converted into α different currency. Simulta­
neously, α forward exchange operation is co nducted in order 
to obtain the amounts needed to service the borrowing in the 
original currency. The EIB also undertakes interest rate swaps, 
which transform α fixed-rate bond into α floating-rate bond in 
the same currency or vice versa. 

10. Financial futures operations 

Used solely by the Bank as α means of hedging the value of its 
bondholdings, at the year end open futures contracts con­
cluded on organised markets are revalued at the closing date. 
Following on from this and as α departure from the Bank's 
standard portfolio valuation principles, the hedged portion of 
the Bank's portfolio is marked to market. Gains and losses o n 
hedging operations are symmetrically accounted for in the 
profit and loss account with the gains and losses on the part of 
the portfolio hedged. 
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Note Β — Treasury bills eligible for 
refinancing with central banks 

Debt securities including 
fixed-income securities 

31.12.1992 31.12.1991 31.12.1992 31.12.1991 

The b reakdown according to maturity is as 
follows: 

not more than three months ...... 148 218 957 236 915 780 322 649 209 569 800 898 
more than three months but not more than 
one year 34 073 840 21 410 451 44 610 696 89 106 784 
more than one year but not more than five 
years 91 400 962 157 929 945 428136 416 434 967 418 
more than five years 131 948 065 168 326 313 702 469 963 483 867 224 

405 641 824 584 582 489 1 497 866 284 1 577 742 324 

Market value: 407 698 152 585 923 611 1 503 459 499 1 582 717 137 

Note C — Loons and advances to credit institutions (other loons ond odvonces): 

31.12.1992 31.12.1991 

Borrowing proceeds to be 
received 

The breakdown according to 
maturity is as f ollows; 

not more than three months 

more than three months but not 
more than one year .... 

636 693 508 

— 157 023 197 
636 693 508 157 023 197 

Term deposits 

The breakdown according to 
maturity is as fo llows: 

not more than three months . 2 358 547 158 2 462 953 465 

more than three months but not 
more than one year .... 20 084 538 45 835 572 

more than one year but not 
more than five years .... 2 744 409 7 664 

2 381 376 105 2 508 796 701 
3 018 069 613 2 665 819 898 

Note D — Tongible ossets 

Net acquisition value at begin 
ning of the year . . . . . 

Acquisitions during the year . 

Depreciation during the year . 

Net accounting value 1992 

Land 

3 265 713 

12 030 

3 277 743 

Kirch berg 
building 

34 095 800 

4 741 481 

1 667 000 

37 170 281 

Lisbon 
building 

Furniture and 
equipment 

264 506 

14 000 

6 363 305 
6 363 305 

250 506 

Total 

37 626 019 

11 116816 

8 044 305 

40 698 530 

Note E — Amounts receivable from or payable to Member States for adjustment of capital contributions 

In accordance with Article 7 of the Statute, application of the Payable to: 
conversion rates given in Note A entails adjusting the amounts 
paid by Member States in their national currency as contribu­
tions to the Bank's capital. 

The corresponding amounts receivable from or payable to 
Member States are as follows: 

Receivable from: 

Italy .... 
Spain . . . 
Greece . . . 
Ireland . - . 

31.12.1992 

1 954 065 
40 386 

142 494 

2136 945 

31.12.1991 

246 687 
353 467 
24 643 
624 797 

Germany . 
Italy . . . 
Belgium 
Netherlands 

3 577177 

200 206 
1 327 968 
5105 351 

2 382 092 
248 682 
479124 
696 473 

3 806 371 

In accordance with the Decision of the Board of Governors of 
30 December 1977, where the accounting conversion rate of α  
currency fluctuates upwards or downwards by more than 1.5 % 
amounts receivable from or payable to Member States will be 
settled on 31 October of each year. Where the conversion rate 
fluctuates within the above margin of 1.5 % in either direction, 
the resulting amounts will remain in non-interest-bearing 
adjustment accounts. 
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Note F — Interest subsidies received in advance 

(a) Part of the amounts received through EMS a rrangements 
has been made available as α long-term advance. The co rre­
sponding contra account is entered on the assets side under 
item 9.(b) as "Receivable in respect of EMS i nterest subsidies 
paid in advance". 

(b) On the liabilities side (item 3.(b)), "Interest subsidies 
received in advance" comprise: 

— amounts in respect of interest subsidies for loans granted 
for projects outside the Community, under Conventions signed 
with the ACP States and Protocols concluded with the Mediter­
ranean Countries, as well as interest subsidies, concerning cer­

tain lending operations mounted within the Community from 
the Bank's o wn resources, made available in conjunction with 
the European Monetary System under Council Regulation (EEC) 
No 1736/79 of 3 August 1979; 

— amounts received in respect of interest subsidies for loans 
granted from EEC resources under Council Decisions 
78/870/EEC of 16 October 1978 (New Community Instrument), 
82/169/EEC of 15 March 1982 and 83/200/EEC of 19 April 
1983 and under Council Regulation (EEC) No 1736/79 of 
3 August 1979 as amended by Council Regulation (EEC) 
No 2790/82 of 18 October 1982. 

Note G — Other balance sheet accounts 

Sundry debtors: 31. 12. 1992 

— staff housing loans and 
advances 50 463 021 

— other 36 579125 

— currency swap opera­
tions 248 148 206 

335190 352 

31.12.1991 

44 546 767 

27 057 523 

71 604 290 

Sundry creditors: 

European Economic Com­
munity accounts: 

— for Special Section oper­
ations and related un­
settled amounts . . . 822 991 570 

— deposit accounts . . . 39 710 979 

other 116 254 689 
978 957 238 

Sundry liabilities: 
— currency swap 

tions . . . . 
— other .... 

opera-

20 961 011 
20 961 011 

839 854 889 
47 845 230 
50 416 774 

938116 893 

21 242 761 
18 933 728 
40176 489 

Note H — Provisions for liabilities and charges (staff pension fund) 

The pension fund balance of 182 523 862 at 31 December 1992 
(154 641 051 at 31 December 1991) represents the actuarial 
valuation of the accumulated benefits under the scheme, 
in accordance with the Pension Scheme Regula tions, increased 
by the contributions of the Bonk and its employees 
plus the remuneration of the fund less w ithdrawals since the 

actuarial valuation. 

The cost of the staff pension scheme, including interest credited 
by the Bank, for the financial year ended 31 December 1992 
was 23 404194 compared with 20 017 142 for the financial 
year 1991. 

Note I — Fund for general banking risks 

The Bank has put aside 150 000 000 to cover risks on loans, 
having regard to the particular risks associated with such 

operations representing the Bank's main activity. 

Note J — Geographical analysis of "Interest receivable and similar income" (item 1 of the | orofit and loss account): 

31. 12.1992 31.12. 1991 Other countries .... 230 501 349 206130 793 

Germany 438 348 590 321 408 613 6 595 797 829 5 723 835 584 
France 897 409 282 787 678 692 

Income not analysed (^) Italy 2198 269 677 2 055 497 115 Income not analysed (^) 567 887 388 497 701 668 
United Kingdom . . . 771 545 603 709 486 003 7163 685 217 6 221 537 252 
Spain ...... 813 459 957 601 140 524 
Belgium 
Netherlands .... 

67 386141 
96 035 319 

53 799131 
72 977 048 

(') Income not analysed: 

Denmark 316 380 498 250 678 477 Interest and commissions 
Greece 190 273 755 182 251 984 on funds placed .... 548 291 013 496 349 619 
Portugal ..... 347 553 686 269 646 273 
Ireland 218 179 799 209 047 431 Other revenue from port­
Luxembourg .... 10 454173 4 093 500 folio securities .... 19 596 375 1 352 049 

6 365 296 480 5 517 704 791 567 887 388 497 701 668 
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Note Κ — Geographical analysis of "Commissions receivable" (item 3 of the profit and loss account) 

Germany . . 
France . . . 
Italy .... 
United Kingdom 
Spain . . . 
Belgium . . 
Netherlands . 
Denmark . . 

31.12.1992 31.12.1991 

38 020 40 658 
952 553 1 173 341 

1 481 044 1 958 110 
276 547 304 017 
90163 115 836 
58 833 109 772 
3 070 2 334 

426 275 441 272 

Greece . . 
Portugal 
Ireland . . 
Luxembourg 

234 237 
26 684 

291 258 

261 161 
30 558 
323 471 

3 878 684 4 760 530 

Community institutions 12 059 971 11 358 976 
15 938 655 16119506 

Note L — A dministrative expenses and charges 

31.12.1992 31.12.1991 

Staff costs 

Salaries and allowances 

Social costs . . . . 

Other costs . . . . 

General and 
tive expenses 

administra­
is 606 431 16 950 825 

67 785 427 

13 796 015 

6 322 273 

59 523 784 

12 098 999 

5 669 137 

106 510 146 94 242 745 

87 903 715 77 291 920 
The number of personnel employed by the Bank was 785 at 
31 December 1992 (751 at 31 December 1991). 

Note M — Reserves and appropriation of balance of profit and loss account 

— 958 901 739 to the Additional Reserves. On 9 June 1992, the Board of Governors decided to appropri­
ate the balance of the profit and loss account for the year 
ended 31 December 1991, i.e. 1 083 461 098, as f ollows: 

— 124 559 359 to the Reserve Fund, bringing this to 10% of 
subscribed capital; 

Statement of movements in the reserves at 31 December 1992 

Situation at 
31.12.1991 

Appropriation of 
balance of profit 

and loss account for 
year ended 
31.12. 1991 

Situation at 
31.12.1992 

Reserve Fund . . 

Additional Reserves 

5 635 440 641 + 124 559 359 
H- 958 901 739 

5 760 000 000 

958 901 739 
5 635 440 641 + 1 083 461 098 6 718 901 739 

The Management Committee has decided to propose that the 
Board of Directors recommend the Governors to appropriate 
the profit for the financial year, net of 150 000 000 transferred 

to the Fund for general banking risks, i.e. 969 105 409, to the 
Additional Reserves. 

Note Ν — Shares and other variable-yield securities 

This item (36 000 000) corresponds to the first two of five equal 
annual instalments (90 000 000 in all) to be paid in by the Bank 

in respect of its subscription (300 000 000) to the capital of the 
EBRD. 

Note Ο — Amounts owed to credit institutions (with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice) 

31.12.1992 31.12.1991 

The breakdown according to maturity is as follows: 

— not more than three months 

— more than three months but not more than one year 

— more than one year but not more than five years 

5 039 621 

153 405 604 

72 332 305 

147 381 763 
158 445 225 219 714 068 
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Note Ρ — Aggregate foreign-exchange denominated assets and liabilities converted into ecus 

Assets Liabilities 

31. 12. 1992 

69 307 984 493 

31. 17.1991 
60191 097 962 

31.12. 1992 

61 803 259 174 

31. 12.1991 

53 442 907 785 

Note Q — Special deposits for service of borrowings 

This item represents the amount of coupons and bonds due but 
not yet presented for payment. 

Note R — The risk associated with swop contracts has 
been measured in accordance with Council Directive 

89/647/EEC of 18 December 1989 on α solvency ratio for 
credit institutions. 

Note S — Statement of futures position at 31 December 1992 

The amount of 988 449 545 includes α total of 869 991 291 rep­
resenting contracts sold by the Bonk on the MATIF (4 000 ECU 
and 3 599 FRF contracts) and the LIFFE (800 DEM and 

1 562 GBP contracts) for the purpose of hedging its ECU, FRF, 
DEM and GBP portfolio securities against fluctuations in 
interest rotes. 

REPORT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

The President 
European Investment Bank 
Luxembourg 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
the European Investment Bank at December 31, 1992 and 1991 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. 

In our opinion these financial statements, which have been pre­
pared in accordance with International Accounting Standards 
consistently applied, give α true and fair view of the financial 
position of the European Investment Bank at December 31, 
1992 and 1991, the results of its operations and the changes in 
its financial position for the years then ended. Accounting prin­
ciples which are of particular significance to the preparation of 
these financial statements are described in Note A of the 
Notes to the financial statements. 

Luxembourg, 5 February 1993 

The financial statements covered by our opinion ore the 
following: 

Balance sheet 

Profit and loss account 

Statement of special section 

Statement of cash flows 

Summary statement of loans and guarantees 

Summary statement of debts evidenced by certificates 

Statement of subscriptions to the capital of the Bonk 

Notes to the financial statements 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee consists of three members appointed by the Board of Governors for α three-year period. One member is 
replaced or reappointed each year. Chairmanship of the Committee rotates annually and is held by the member whose term 
of office is ending in that year. The Committee verifies that the Bank's operations ore carried out in compliance with the pro­
cedures laid down in the ElB's Statute. It verifies that the operations of the Bank have been conducted and its books kept in α  
proper manner and confirms that the balance sheet and financial statements reflect exactly the situation of the Bank as 
regards both assets and liabilities. 

In carrying out these tasks, the Audit Committee bases itself on ongoing work conducted both by the Bank's Internal Audit 
Division and by an outside firm of international chartered accountants. It also avails itself of information supplied by the ElB's 
monitoring departments. 

The Audit Cammittee reports to the Board of Governors, the following statement being read to the Governors prior to their 
approval of the Annual Report and accounts for the past financial year: 

Statement by the Audit Committee 

The Committee instituted in pursuance of Article 14 of the Statute and Article 25 of the Rules o f Procedure of the European 
Investment Bank for the purpose of verifying that the operations of the Bank are conducted and its books kept in α proper 
manner, 

— having studied the books, vouchers and documents which it deemed necessary to examine in the discharge of its duties, 

— having examined the reports of 5 February 1993 drawn up by Price Waterhouse, 

considering the 1992 Annual Report, the balance sheet of the Bank and the statement of Special Section as at 31 December 
1992 as well as the profit and loss account for the financial year ending on that date as drawn up by the Board of Directors at 
its meeting on 23 March 1993, 

considering Articles 22, 23 and 24 of the Rules of Procedure, 

hereby certifies; 

that the Bank's operations during the 1992 financial year have been carried out in compliance with the formalities and pro­
cedures laid down by the Statute and the Rules of Procedure, 

that the balance sheet, the profit and loss account and the statement of Special Section correspond to the book entries and 
that they reflect exactly the situation of the Bank as regards both assets and liabilities. 

Luxembourg, 4 May 1993 

The Audit Committee 

J. PINTO RIBEIRO C. THANOPOULOS A. HANSEN 
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LIST OF FINANCING PROVIDED WITHIN THE COMMUNITY IN 1992 Π 
Financing provided for capital investment within the Community totalled 16 140 million. The corresponding operations, all financed from own resour­
ces, give rise to financial commitments for the Bank and are accounted for in its balance sheet. 

The EIB cooperates closely with an increasing number of financial institutions and commercial banks, with which it concludes global loans. It also grants 
certain individual loans through the intermediary of institutions and banks, whose names appear at the head of the list of operations for each country. 

The Community policy objectives with which individual loans comply are highlighted by symbols in the righthand columns. Unless otherwise indicated, 
global loans cover α number of sectors and objectives (see box article, page 26). 

The symbols are as follows: 
• regional development 
• industrial competitiveness and European integration 
• Community infrastructure 
• energy 
< protection of the environment and urban development 

BELGIUM (16 466.7 million Belgian francs) 

million 
ecus 

396.6 DENMARK (5 494.2 million Danish kroner) 

million 
ecus 

690.8 

Individual loans 

Intermediaries: 
Société Nationale de Crédit à l'Industrie, 
Banque Indasuez Belgique S.A. 

Treatment and encasing of solid nuclear waste at 
Dessel near Antwerp 
ONDRAF — Organisation Nationale des Déchets 
Radioactifs et matières fissiles enrichies 
BEF 500.0 million 

Terminal at Zeebrugge for handling Norwegian natu­
ral gas and gas transmission line to Blaregnies (French 
border) 
Distrigaz S.A. 
BEF 3.0 billion 

National air traffic control centre 
Régie des Voies Aériennes/Regie der Luchtwegen 
BEF 930.0 million 

Construction of headquarters of organisation respon­
sible for air traffic safety in Europe 
Eurocontrol 
BEF 630.6 million 

Upgrading and harmonisation of European air traffic 
control systems 
Eurocontrol 
BEF 406.1 m illion 

Global loons 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures: 

Kredietbank N. V. 
BEF 3.0 billion 

Banque Bruxelles Lambert S.A. 
BEF 3.0 billion 

Société Nationale de Crédit à l'Industrie 
BEF 2.0 billion 

Générale de Banque SA. 
BEF 1.0 billion 

Cera fioofdkantoor C.V. 
BEF 1.0 billion 

Crédit Général S.A. de Banque 
BEF 1.0 billion 

(131.3) 

11.9 

71.5 ^  

22.9 · 

15.0 · 

10.0 · 

(265.3) 

72.3 

71.5 

49.2 

24.6 

23.8 

23.8 

Individual loans 

Intermediary: 
l/S Elsam 

Construction of coal-fired combined heat and power 
plant in Odense 
l/S Fynsvasrket 
DKK 296.0 million 

Modernisation of urban waste incineration 
combined heat and power plant in Copenhagen 
l/S Amager Forbrsendning 
DKK 60.0 million 

and 

(') Finance contracts are generally denominated in the equivalent of the notional 
currency concerned. 

Pumping station at Riso for oil pipeline linking fields 
in Danish sector of North Sea with terminal at 
Fredericia; gasline from Torslunde and gas storage 
facility at Stenlille 
Dansk Naturgas A/S  
DKK 442.0 million 

Natural gas transmission and distribution network 

— Central and Northern Jutland 
Naturgas MIdt/Nord l/S 
DKK 400.0 million 

— Greater Copenhagen area 
Hovedstadsreghnens Naturgas l/S 
DKK 386.5 million 

Upgrading and extension of sewage collection and 
treatment installations, construction and modernisa­
tion of sewage treatment plants 
Ârhus Kommune  
DKK 200.0 million 

Sewage collection and treatment installations; district-
heating pipework 
Odense Kommune  
DKK 88.0 million 

Electrification and modernisation of Nyborg-Odense 
railway line 
Danske Statsbaner - DSB 
DKK 859.9 million 

Motorway sections: Ârhus - Âlborg, Vejie - Horsens 
(Northern Jutland) and Ringsted - Skovse (Sjaelland) 
on motorway linking Copenhagen and the Great Belt 
Kongeriget Danmark 
DKK 207.4 million 

Motorway suspension bridge on eastern section of 
Great Belt fixed link 
A/S Storebaeltsforblndelsen 
DKK 1 177.3 million 

(636.6) 

37.3 « 

7.9 

55.7 Φ 

50.4 φ 

48.9 φ 

26.2 M 

11.1 φ«  

110.0 •· 

26.2 ·φ 

148Ì ·Φ 
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million 
ecus 

Repairs to Knippelsbro bridge in central Copenhagen 
Kobenhavns Havnevagsen 
DKK 63.0 million 7.9 < 

— in Bitterfeld and Wolfen region (Sachsen-Anhalt) 
Abwasserzweckverband Untere Mulde 
DEM 19.9 million 

nillion 
ecus 

10.1 m-

Modernisation and rationalisation of ferry service 
between Heisinger (Denmark) and Hölsingborg  
(Sweden) 
DSB 
DKK 350.0 million 45.2 

Development of digital switching and fibre-optic 
transmission system in Sjaelland and on Bornholm  
KTAS-Kjebenhavns Telefon A/S 
DKK 485.0 million 61.2 

Global loons (54.2) 

For financing small and medium-scale local authority 
schemes 
Kammunekredit 
DKK 174.7 million 22.6 

New East terminal at Frankfurt am Main International 
Airport 
Flughafen Frankfurt Main AC 
DEM 125.0 million 62.2 · 

New international airport at Erding, north-east of 
Munich 
Flughafen München GmbH 
DEM 200.0 million 97.9 · 

New terminal at Hamburg International Airport;  
maintenance facilities for wide-bodied aircraft 
Flughafen Hamburg GmbH 
DEM 33.0 million 16.2 · 

Setting-up of DFS Kopernikus satellite transmission 
system and telemetry exchanges 
Deutsche Bundespost 
DEM 200.0 million 97.9 · 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures 
Finance for Danish Industry International S.A. 
DKK 250.0 million 31.6 

Construction of asphalt and concrete mixing plants 
producing raw materials for rehabilitating road net­
work in eastern Länder  
Teerbau GmbH  
DEM 10.0 million 4.9 

GERMANY (3 373.2 million Deutsche Mark) 1 663.9 

Individual loans (791.3) 

Intermediaries; 
Westdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale, Kreditan­
stalt für Wiederaufbau, Südwestdeutsche Landes­
bank Girozentrale, Landesbank Hessen-Thüringen 
Girozentrale, 1KB Deutsche Industriebank AG, 
Hamburgische Landesbank Girozentrale, Nord­
deutsche Landesbank Girozentrale, General 
Motors Coordination Center N.V., Commerz­
bank AG, Bayerische Vereinsbank 

New steam boiler at coal-fired combined heat and 
power station in Mannheim 
Großkraftwerk Mannheim AG 
DEM 32.1 million 15.8 

Conversion of distribution grid from town to natural 
gas in eastern Germany 
Verbundnetz Gas AG 
DEM 80.0 million 39.2 

Extension of heat transmission and distribution system 
Fernwärme- Verbund Saar GmbH 
DEM 12.0 million 6.1 

Sewage collection and treatment facilities: 

— in Cologne 
Stadt Köln 
DEM 130.0 million 63.5 •* 

— in Breisgou (Baden-Württemberg) 
Abwasserzweckverband Breisgauer Bucht 
DEM 10.0 million 4.9 < 

— at Soers near Aachen 
Stadt Aachen 
DEM 79.5 million 39.1 •* 

Upgrading of refinery at Gelsenkirchen-Horst to 
produce light petroleum products (North-Rhine 
Westphalia) 
Ruhr öl GmbH 
DEM 39.3 million 19.3 Βφ-« 

Cor assembly plant 
DEM 148.5 million 75.3 • 

Cor assembly plant 
DEM 349.8 million T77.5 • 

Abattoir and meat processing plant at Eberswalde  
(Brandenburg) 
Plumrose Schorfheider GmbH & Co 
DEM 25.0 million 12.7 • 

Construction of newsprint factory at Schwedt on the 
Oder (Brandenburg) 
Zeitungsdruckpapierfabrik Haindl Schwedt GmbH 
DEM 100.0 million 48.8 • 

Global loons (872.6) , 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures: 

Westdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale 
DEM 653.6 million 320.8 

Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau 
DEM 381.5 million 186.5 

Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale 
DEM 230.7 million 112.6 

1KB Deutsche Industriebank AG 
DEM 192.3 million 95.2 

Bremer Landesbank Kreditanstalt Oldenburg 
Girozentrale 
DEM 183.7 million 90.2 

Südwestdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrole 
DEM 73.4 million 35.8 

Landesbank Schleswig Holstein Girozentrale 
DEM 32.1 million 15.8 

Hamburgische Landesbank Girozentrale 
DEM 31.9 million 15.7 
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GREECE (93 157.7 million Drachmas) 

million 
ecus 

377J 

Individual loons (311.7) 

Intermediary: 
Ethniki Trapeza Ependiseon Viomìchanikìs Anap-
tixeos A.E. (ETEBA) 

Irrigation of 1 100 ha in Drama Plain (eastern 
Macedonia) 
EHiniki Democratia 
GRD 1.4 billion 5.7 • 

Remplacement of electrostatic filters in two lignite-
fired power stations in Ptolemois region (western 
Macedonia) 
Dimosia Epihirisi llekfrismou DEI (Public Power Cor­
poration) 
GRD 3.0 billion 12.0 m·* 

Construction of small hydroelectric power plant at 
Pournari, near Arta (Epirus) 
DEI 
GRD 3.0 billion 12.0 

Construction of combined cycle unit at power plant in 
Chania (Crete) 
DEI 
GRD 5.3 billion 20.9 

Conversion to dual firing (gas or diesel) of two tur­
bines at Lavrion power station (Attica) 
DEI 
GRD 5.1 billion 20.0 

Installation of new control system for interconnected 
electricity generation and transmission grid 
DEI 
GRD 2.5 billion 10.0 

Drinking water supplies i n Athens 
Elllniki Democratia 
GRD 1.3 billion 4.9 g 

Sewage collection and treatment facilities in Hera-
klion (Crete), Larissa (Thessaly), Corfu and Chios; 
improvements to drinking water supplies in Heraklion 
EHiniki Democratia 
GRD 4.5 b illion 17.7 g.« 

Modernisation of railway infrastructure on 
Athens-ldomeni (northern border) line 
OSE — Organismos Sidirodromon Ellados 
GRD 11.4 billion 45.0 g g 

Upgrading to motorway specification of Voribobi-
Yliki section of Athens-Thessaloniki highway 
Elliniki Democratia 
GRD 5.0 billion 19.7 •· 

Extension of Athens underground roil network 
Attiko Metro A.E. 
GRD 24.7 billion 105.0 •<4 

Improvements to air traffic control system 
Elllniki Democratia 
GRD 2.3 billion 9.0 g g 

Reconstruction in Kalamota area (Peloponnese) of 
public and industrial buildings and road and sewerage 
networks damaged by September 1986 earthquake 

Elliniki Democratia 
GRD 5.5 billion 22.4 g 

Tameio Parakatathikon Kai Daneion (TPD) 
GRD 0.8 billion 3.4 g 

Modernisation and extension of chipboard factory at 
Chalkis (eastern central Greece) 
Shelman S.A. 
GRD 1.0 billion 

Global loans 

Framework loans under Community support pro­
grammes for infrastructure 

Elliniki Democratia 
— in the border regions (Interreg) 
GRD 7.5 billion 

— to improve the environment (Envireg) 
GRD 5.0 billion 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures 
Trapeza Pisteos A.E. (Credit Bank S.A.j 
GRD 4.0 b illian 

SPAIN (402 000 million pesetas) 

, million 

4.0 

16M1 

30.0 

20.0 

15.8 

3020.6 

Individual loons (2 948.4) 

Intermediary: 
Institute de Crédito Oficial 

Reinforcement and modernisation of electricity trans­
mission and distribution network: 

— throughout the country 
Red Eléctrica de Esporta S.A. 
ESP 5.0 billion 38.2 g g 

— in Catalonia 
Fuerzas Eléctricas de Cataluâa 
ESP 12.0 billion 92.9 g g 

— in the Barcelona region  
Hidroeléctrica de Catalana S,A. 
ESP 5.0 billion 36.1 g g 

— in the Basque Country, Madrid and Castilla-León  
Hidroeléctrica Ibèrica Iberduero S.A. 
ESP 20.0 billion 144.5 g g 

Sewage collection and treatment facilities in Catalo­
nia 
Junta de Saneamiento de Cataluna 
ESP 5.0 bill ion 36.1 g 4 

Water supply, sewage collection and treatment, and 
flood protection works 
Junta de Andalucia 
ESP 14 722.0 million 106.3 g 4 

Extension of water supply and sewage treatment 
facilities in Greater Madrid 
Canal de Isabel H 
ESP 3.0 bill ion 21.7 g 4 

Construction of high-speed rail link between Madrid 
and Seville 
RENFE — Red Nacional de los Ferrocarriles Espanoles 
ESP 37 325.0 million 284.2 g g 

Motorway section between Castelldefels and Sitges, 
south of Barcelona, and access roads 
Autopistas de Catalana S.A. 
ESP 6.0 bil lion 4^.3 g g 
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Completion of western section of Barcelona ring road 
and junction with Sitges motorway 
Gestion de Infraestructuras S.A. 
ESP 5.9 bil lion 

Improvements works on almost 3 000 km of regional 
road network 
Junta de Andaiuda 
E5P 25.0 billion 

Comunidad Autònoma de Extremadura 
ESP 4 848.0 million 

Comunidad Autònoma de Castilla y Leòn  
ESP 8 965.0 million 

Comunidad Autònoma de Murcia  
ESP 5.0 bil lion 

million 
ecus 

45.6 

193.6 

35.0 

64.8 

38.7 

Drinking water supply and sewage treatment 
facilities; improvements to regional road network; 
implementation of Phase 1 o f forest fire-fighting plan 
Comunidad Autònoma de Calicia 
ESP 10.0 bi llion 

Modernisation of three refineries at Tarragona, Car­
tagena and Puertollano 
Repsol Petròleo S.A. 
ESP 5.9 bil lion 

Upgrading and rationalisation of oil refinery in Bilbao 
to produce unleaded petrol and installation of com­
bined steam and power generating plant 
Petròieos dei Norte S.A. 
ESP 5.5 bill ion 

million 
ecus 

77.4 

45.5 ·φ·4 

42.4 

Construction of several sections o f expressway on six 
major trunk roads 
Ministerio de Obras PCiblicas y Transportes  
ESP 49 958.4 m illion 360.9 •· 

Upgrading of refinery in Huelva (Andalusia) to pro­
duce light petroleum products 
ERTOiL S.A. 
ESP 6.2 bill ion 44.8 

Construction of Madrid-Valencia road link 
Ministerio de Obras Pubiicas y Transportes 
ESP 20 832.0 m illion 150.5 •· 

Construction of motorway ring road and access links 
for Barcelona 
Generalidad de Catalana 
ESP 10 350.0 million 80.0 · 

Construction of new terminals for containers, motor 
vehicles and petroleum products; redevelopment of 
old harbour area 
Puerto Autònomo de Barcelona 
ESP 1.0 b illion 7.2 »t 

Construction of multi-modal freight handling centre in 
Barcelona 
Centra Intermodal de Logistica S.A. 
ESP 1.0 bill ion 7.2 •· 

Construction of air separation unit to produce indus­
trial gases at El Morell (Tarragona) 
Carburas Messer Griesheim Gases Industriales S.A. 
ESP 2.0 billion 15.5 

Modernisation and restructuring of six household 
electrical appliance factories in Barcelona and Madrid 
areas and in La Rioja Province 
Electrolux Holding S.A. 
ESP 4.0 bill ion 30.9 • 

Global loans (72.2) 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures; 

Banco Espariol de Crédito S.A. 
ESP 5.0 bil lion 36.1 

Banco Central Hispanoamericano S.A. 
ESP 5.0 bil lion 36.1 

Urban renewal in historical centre of Barcelona 
Promociòn Ciudad Vieja S.A. 
ESP 8.0 bi llion 62.0 •* 

Extension and modernisation of urban rail network 
Comunidad Autònoma de Valencia 
ESP 10.0 b illion 72.2 m·* 

Modernisation and expansion of telephone network 
Telefònica de Espana S.A. 
ESP 51 450.0 m illion 397.4 • · 

Extension and modernisation of radio and television 
broadcasting network 
Ente Pùbiico de la Red Tècnica de Tekvisiòn 
ESP 26.0 billion 201.3 •· 

Acquisition, launch and operation of two telecommu­
nications and television satellites to cover Iberian 
Peninsula and Canary and Balearic Islands 
HISPASATS.A. 
ESP 8 050.0 million 60.8 •· 

Sewage treatment in Albocete; improvements to the 
regional road network 
Comunidad Autònoma de Castilla-La Mancha 
ESP 4.0 bil lion 30.9 • ̂  

Sewage, household and industrial waste collection, 
treatment and disposal facilities; coastal protection; 
improvements to regional road network; development 
of industrial estate 
Comunidad Autònoma de Asturias 
ESP 10.0 bi llion 77.3 m·* 

FRANCE (12 889.2 million French francs) 1 895.1 

Individual loans (1 159.2) 

Intermediaries; 
Caisse Nationale des Autoroutes (CNA), Paribas 

Combined heat and power plant 
Compagnie de chauffage intercommunale de 
l'agglomération grenobloise 
FRF 50.0 million 7.5 « 

Channel Tunnel 
Eurotunnel pic 
FRF 1 117.2 million 160.9 · 

TGV-Nord line between Paris and Belgian border, 
with branch to Channel Tunnel 
Société Nationale des Chemins de Fer Français 
FRF 500.0 million 72.6 •« 

New sections of motorway network; 

— A83, Nantes - Niort section 
ASF— Société des Autoroutes du Sud de la France S.A. 
FRF 555.0 million 82.5 • 

— Al 6, risle-Adam - Amiens section 
SANEF — Société des Autoroutes du Nord et de l'Est 
de la France S.A. 
FRF 400.0 million 59.1 • « 
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— A26, linking Channel Tunnel and South of France: 
Châlon-sur-Marne - Troyes Nord section 
SANEF 
FRF 280.0 million 

— A29, Le Havre - Amiens - Saint-Quentin; Le Havre 
- Yvetot Est section 
S APN — Société de ! Auto route Paris-Normandie 
FRF 200.0 million 

Road improvements between Saint-Claude and Oyon- 
ηαχ 
Département du Jura 
FRF 55.0 million 

Construction of Lyons northern ring road  
Communauté Urbaine de Lyon  
FRF ÓOO.O million 

Rood improvements and construction of cor porks 
Communauté Urbaine de Lyon  
FRF 100.0 million 

Construction of second ferry dock in port of Caen-
Ouistreham 
Chambre de Commerce et d'industrie de Coen  
FRF 60.0 million 

Construction of second tram line 
District de l'agglomération Nantaise 
FRF 600.0 million 

Construction of underground rail system  
Société du Métro de l'agglomération Rouennaise 
FRF 450.0 million 

Construction of first section of tramline  
Compagnie des Transports Strasbourgeois 
FRF 300.0 million 

Construction of aspartame production unit in Gra­ 
velines, Dunkirk (Nord) 
EURO-ASPARTAME S.A. 
FRF 400.0 million 

Construction of multi-purpose passenger and light 
commercial vehicles at Hordain-Valenciennes (Nord)  
SEVELNORD S.A. 
FRF 750.0 million 

Development and manufacture of thrust reversers for 
aero-engines at Meudon La Forêt (and Burnley, 
United Kingdom) 
Hurel-Dubois S.A. — Société de construction d'avions  
FRF 150.0 million 

Construction of customisation hangar for Airbus 
A 330/340 near Toulause-Blagnac 
SNI Aérospatiale S.A. 
FRF 250.0 mi llion 

Modernisation of production plant for aero-engines 
and upgrading of R&D facilities at Genevilliers and 
Villa roche 
SNECMA — Société Nationale d'Étude et de Con­
struction de Moteurs d'Aviation 
FRF 272.0 million 

Theme park at Marne-la-Vallée (Ile de France) 
Euro Disneyland SNC 
FRF 500.0 million 

million 
ecus 

— A39, Dijon - Dôle section 
SAPRR — Société des Autoroutes Paris Rhin-Rhône 
S.A. 
FRF 300.0 million 43.1 

40.3 • · 

29.5 •· 

7.9 

87.1 

15.0 < 

8.7 

90.1 •·· 

65.0 t 

45.0 t 

59.5 

112.6 •>. 

21.9 ». 

36.3 •» • 

40.8 ». 

73.7 ». 

million 
ecus 

Global loans (735^ 

For financing small and medium-scale public infra­
structure 

Crédit Local de France — CAECL S.A. 

— Rhône-Alpes  
FRF 400.0 mil lion 

— Bretagne  
FRF 300.0 mil lion 

— Pays de Ια Loire 
FRF 250.0 mi llion 

— Nord-Pas-de-Calais 
FRF 250.0 mil lion 

— Auvergne, Limousin and Poitou-Charentes 
FRF 200.0 mi llion 

— Lorraine 
FRF 200.0 mi llion 

57.8 

45.0 

36.1 

36.1 

30.0 

28.9 

CNCA — Caisse Nationale de Crédit Agricole S.A. 
(for financing environmental protection schemes 
undertaken by local authorities) 
FRF 700.0 mil lion 105.1 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures: 

Caisse Centrale des Banques Populaires 
FRF 750.0 million 

Locafrance S.A.  
FRF 500.0 million 

Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel S.A.  
FRF 400.0 million 

Sociétés BTP — Bâtiments Travaux Publics 
FRF 350.0 million 

Caisse Centrale de Crédit Coopératif 
FRF 300.0 million 

Bail Equipement S.A.  
FRF 300.0 million 

Caisse Fédérale du Crédit Mutuel de Bretagne 
FRF 100.0 million 

107.9 

75.1 

60.0 

50.3 

45.0 

43.5 

15.0 

IRELAND (231.2 million Irish pounds) 303.5 

Individual loans (290.4) 

Intermediary: 
Barclays Bank pk 

Extension and uprating of electricity transmission and 
supply grid 
Electricity Supply Board 
IEP 18.3 million 

> e"li ' ••Γ·!:;  
23.9 

Improvements to rood network 
Ireland, Minister for Finance 
IEP 25.0 million 32.7 

Construction of new container terminal at Belview 
Waterford Harbour Commissioners 
IEP 10.0 million 13.0 

Expansion of aircraft fleet serving routes within the 
Community 
AER Lingus pIc 
IEP 14.7 million 19.1 

Extension and modernisation of telecommunications 
system 
Irish Telecommunications Investments pic 
IEP 35.0 million 46.0 
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Rehabilitation of Temple Bar area in Dublin 
Temple Bar Properties Ltd 
IEP 5.0 million 

Rood improvements; water supply, sewerage and 
sewage treatment schemes 
Ireland, Minister for Finance 
IEP 75.3 million 

Modernisation and expansion of higher education 
facilities 
Ireland, Minister for Finance 
IEP 37.9 million 

Global loon 

Far financing small and medium-scale ventures 

Allied Irish Bank's pic 
IEP 10.0 million 

ITALY (6 079.9 billion lire) 

million 
ecus 

6.7 m·* 

99.6 m< 

49.4 • 

(13.0) 

13.0 

3796.9 

Individuol loons (2 724.6) 

Intermediaries: 
Crediop (Consorzio di Credito per le Opere 
Pubbliche) — ENI (Ente Nazionale idrocarburi) — 
Banca Commerciale Italiana — IMI (istituto Mobil­
iare Italiano) — BNL (Banca Nazionale dei Lavora) 
— Ministero del Tesoro — IRI (Istituto per io Rico­
struzione Industriale) — CIS (Credito Industriale 
Sarda) — Monte dei Paschi di Siena — Medio­
banca (Banca di Credito Finanziario) — Banco dì 
Sicilia — Efibanca (Ente Finanziario Interbancario) 
— Bayerische Vereinsbank — Istituto Bancario San 
Paolo di Torino — ISVEIMER (Istituto per lo 
Sviluppo Economico dell'Italia Meridionale) — 
Banca di Roma — Credito Italiano SpA — ICLE 
(Istituto nazionale di Credito per il Lavora italiano 
all'Estero) 

Construction of dual-fired power station In Brindisi  
(Apulia) 
ENEL — Ente Nazionale per l'Energia Elettrica 
ITL 250.0 billion 144.5 

Conversion to natural gas of Turbigo power station 
near Milan; reduction in pollutant emissions 
ENEL 
ITL 20.0 b illion 12.9 •* 

Desulphurisation and denitrification installations and 
elimination of fly ash at power station in Porto 
Marghera, near Venice 
ENEL 
ITL 20.0 bill ion 11-9 ^ 

Uprating of Levante and Azotati thermal power 
stations, near Venice 
Edison 
ITL 90.0 billion 58.1 

Hydroelectric power stations: 

ENEL 

— in Central and Northern Italy (five small plants) 
ITL 120.0 billion 77.0 « 

— in Piedmont and Lombcrdy 
ITL 130.0 billion 81.7 φ 

Expansion of combined heat and power station in 
Sesto San Giovanni (Milan) 
Società Nordelettrica SpA 
ITL 20.0 billi an 12.9 • 

Upgrading and extension of electricity transmission 
and distribution facilities: 

ENEL 
— Calabria and Sardinia 
ITL 70.0 billion 

— Abruzzi, Molise, Southern Lotium, Apulia 
ITL 40.0 bill ion 

— Sardinia 
ITL 20.0 billion 

Development of naturel gas fields: 
AGtP SpA — Azienda Generale Industria Petroli 

— "Roseto Montestillo", onshore west of Foggia 
(Apulia), "Pisticci", onshore south of Matera (Basili­
cata) 
ITL 15.0 billion 

— "Annabella", off Pesaro (The Marches), "Amelia", 
Cervia , Porto Garibaldi/Agostino , off Ravenna 

(Emilia-Romagna), Correggio , onshore north-east  
of Reggio-Emilia (Emilia-Romagna) 
ITL 235.0 bill ian 

oilfield in the Adriatic 

million 
ecus 

45.2 • 

23.1 • 

12.9 ·φ 

Development of "Rospo Mare" 
off Vasto (Abruzzi) 
AGI Ρ SpA  
ITL 15.0 bill ion 

Extension of natural gas transmission network in 
Central and Northern Italy (Tuscany, Emilia-Romagna,  
Veneto) 
SNAM SpA — Società Nazionale Metanadotti 
ITL 100.0 billion 

Laying second gasline between Algeria, Tunisia and 
Italy: Mazara del Vallo-Messine (Sicily), Palmi 
(Calabria)-Oricola (Abruzzi) sections and across Stroit  
of Messina 
SNAM SpA 
ITL 100.0 billion 

Expansion of three underground natural gas storage 
reservoirs in San Sa lvo (Abruzzi), Settala (Lombardy) 
and Minerbia (Emilia-Romagna); compressor station 
in San Salvo: 
AGI Ρ SpA 
ITL 114.0 billion 

SNAM SpA 
ITL 46.0 billion 

Extension of natural gas distribution networks: 

— Milan 
Azienda Energetica Municipale 
ITL 90.0 billion 

— Greater Naples 
Napaletana Gas SpA  
ITL 20.0 bill ion 

— Greater Rome 
ITALGAS - Società Italiana per il Gas SpA  
ITL 50.0 bill ion 

— 95 municipalities in Central and Northern Italy 
and 21 in the Mezzogiorno 
Metano Città SpA 
ITL 50.0 billion 

Improvement and rationalisation of drinking water 
supplies in Alessandria, Asti, Cuneo and Turin 
Provinces 
Regione Piemonte 
ITL 43.0 bill ion 

Improvements to drinking water supply and sewerage 
facilities in Rome, Ariccia and Aprilia 
Regione Lazio  
ITL 8.0 billion 

9.7 ·φ 

140.0 φ 

9.7 

64.9 

57.8 ·Φ 

74.0 ·φ  

29.8 ·φ 

58.4 φ  

13.0 ·φ  

32.4 φ 

31.8 

27.9 

4.6 • •* 
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million 
ecus 

Sewerage and sewage treatment schemes; 
— in Rome-North and construction of main sewer 
Regione Lazio 
ITL 13.0 billi on 7.5 •* 

— around Lakes Garda and Maggiore 
Regione Veneto 
ITL 16.0 bill ion 9.7 < 

— in Venice Lagoon and along Adriatic coast 
Regione Veneto 
ITL 18.0 billion 117 « 

— in Masso Carrara, Tirrenia, Lucques, Capannori 
and Orbetello 
Regione Toscana 
ITL 20.0 bill ion 13.0 

— in Tortora-Diamante 
Regione Calabria 
ITL 6.0 b illion 3.9 mt 

— in the Po Valley; 
Regione Emilia-Romagna 
ITL 18.0 billion 10.4 < 
Regione Lombardia 
ITL 20.0 bill ion 11.6 < 
Regione Piemonte 
ITL 20.0 billi on 13.0 •* 

Wastewater and urban waste collection and treat­
ment facilities; 
— in Perugia, Assisi and Terni (incineration plant) 
Regione Umbria 
ITL 12.0 bill ion 7.8 ^ 

— in Modena and Ravenna  
Regione Emilia-Romagna 
ITL 9.0 b illion 5.2 • < 

— in Novi Ligure and Tortona 
Regione Piemonte 
ITL 2.5 bill ion 1.6 -< 

— Sulmona and Teramo on Adriatic coast (incinera­
tion and composting) 
Regione Abruzzo 
ITL 15.0 billion 9.7 •φ'« 

— in Greater Florence (incineration with heat 
recovery) 
— in Arno and Livorno Valleys (incineration plant) 
Regione Toscana 
ITL 20.0 bill ion 12.9 ^.4 

— in Genoa, along the coast and inland (incineration 
plant) 
Regione Liguria 
ITL 10.0 billion 5.8 4 

— in Matera and Potenza Provinces (incineration 
plant) 
— in Mercure Valley and in Matera (composting 
plant) 
Regione Basilicata 
ITL 15.0 billion 9.7 

— in Ancona, Macerata, Ascoli Piceno (incineration 
and composting) 
Regione Marche 
ITL 25.0 bil lion 16.2 ·4 

Wastewater collection and treatment facilities and 
erosion protection schemes; 

— along coastal areas and in Tenna Valley 
Regione Marche 
ITL 9.0 bill ion 5_8 • 4 

— along coastal areas 
Regione Abruzzo 
ITL 32.0 billion 18.5 ·4 

— in Venezia, Belluno, Vicenza and Padua Provinces  
Regione Veneto 
ITL 15.0 billi on 97 ^ 

Erosion and flood protection schemes; 
— along lower reaches of the Po and Livenza 
Ministero dei Lavori Pubblici 
ITL 16.0 bill ion 

— in Matera and Potenzo Provinces  
Ministero dei Lavori Pubblici 
ITL 11.0 bill ion 
Regione Basilicata  
ITL 23.0 billion 

— around Castellino del Biferno and Trivento, in 
Campobasso Province 
Regione Molise 
ITL 6.0 billion 

— along River Fium arella and in Catanzaro  
Regione Calabria 
ITL 8.0 billion 

— along the River Sacco 
Ministero dei Lavori Pubblici 
ITL 3.0 billion 

Improvements to drinking water supplies in Asti and 
Vercelli; reafforestation in mountainous regions of 
Turin Province; solid waste disposal in Scrivia Valley 
Regione Piemonte  
ITL 8.0 billion 

"Tunnels" motorway; final sections towards Domo­ 
dossola (Swiss border) (Piedmont) 
Autostrada — Concessioni e Costruzioni Autostrade 
SpA 
ITL 50.0 bill ion 

Development of "Toscana" dock in port of Livorno for 
container vessels 
Ministero dei Lavori Pubblici 
ITL 11.0 billion 

Expansion of aircraft fleet serving interregional routes 
ATI — Aero Trasporti Italiani SpA  
ITL 46.0 billion 

Extension and modernisation of telephone network in 
the Mezzogiorno 
SIP — Società Italiana per l'Esercizio Telefonico 
ITL 800 billion 

Modernisation and development of trunk telecommu­
nications links in six r egions of Central and Northern 
Italy 
SIP 
ITL 350 billion 

Restoration of outer walls and four public buildings in 
historical centre of Ferrara  
Regione Emilia-Romagna  
ITL 8.0 bill ion 

Renovation of historical centre and urban develop­
ment in; 
— Bologna and Ferrara 
Regione Emilia-Romagna 
ITL 9.0 billion 

— Macerata 
Regione Marche 
ITL 6.0 billion 

Restoration of historical buildings in Umbria and Pria-
mar fortress in Savona (Liguria) to provide cultural 
amenities for tourism 
Regione Umbria 
ITL 7.1 billion 
Regione Liguria 
ITL 7.7 bill ion 

Modernisation of cementworks in Guidonia (Latium) 
UNICEM SpA  
ITL 30.0 bill ion 

million 
ecus 

10.4 4 

6.4 ·4 

13.3 ·4 

3.9 ·4 

5.2 ·4 

1.9 ·4 

5.2 4 

32.4 · 

7.1 •· 

29.8 • · 

517.7 • · 

219.9 · 

5.2 4 

5.8. 4 

3.9 ·4 

4.1 • 

5.0 4 

19.5 • 

Ό 
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Modernisation of crystal glassware factory in Colle di 
Val d'Elsa (Tuscany) 
Cristallerìa Artistica La Piana SpA 
ITL 15.0 billion 

Conversion of Sarroch refinery for production of low-
sulphur distillates with greater value added 
SARAS SpA — Raffinerie Sarde  
ITL 100.0 billion 

Conversion of refinery near Syracuse for production 
of low-sulphur light fuels 
ISAB — Industria Siciliana Asfalti Bitumi SpA 
ITL 26.0 billion 

Construction of polypropylene plant in Brindisi  
(Apulia) 
Montepolimeri Sud SpA  
ITL 50.0 bil lion 

Modernisation of three chemicals plants in Bussi  
(Pescara), Spinetta Marengo (Alessandria) and Porto 
Marghera (Venezia) 
Ausimont SpA  
ITL 60.0 billion 

Modernisation of industrial gas production facilities 
near Livorno (Tuscany) 
Sol Industrie SpA  
ITL 19.0 billion 

Construction of industrial gas production unit in 
Ferrara (Emilia-Romagna) 
Italiana Gas Industriali SpA 
ITL 5.0 billion 

Restructuring and modernisation of cosmetics plant at 
Settimo Torinese, near Turin 
Saipo SpA  
ITL 15.0 billion 

Modernisation of phosphate-free detergent factory at 
Ferentino (Latium) 
Henkel Sud SpA  
ITL 25.0 bil lion 

Development and manufacture of bubble ink jet print­
ing heads and printers at α plant in San Bernardo 
d'Ivrea, near Turin 
ING C. Olivetti & Co SpA  
ITL 100.0 billion 

Modernisation and upgrading of paintshops at four 
motor vehicle plants in Termini Imerese (Sicily), 
Cassino (Latium), Rivalta and Mirafiori (Piedmont) 
Fiat Auto SpA  
ITL 100.0 billion 

Modernisation and development of new production 
lines at moped and scooter factory at Pontedera, near 
Pisa 
Piaggio Veicoli Europei SpA 
ITL 40.0 billion 

Modernisation and extension of aero-engine main­
tenance plant at Pomigliano d'Arco, near Naples 
Alfa Romeo Avio Società Aeromotoristica pA 
ITL 70.0 billion 

Modernisation of three telecommunications and data 
transmission equipment factories at I Aquila (Abruzzi),  
Santa Maria Capua Vetere (Campania) and Palermo  
(Sicily) 
Italtel Sit SpA 
ITL 10.0 billion 

Extension of fibre-optic telecommunications cable fac­
tory in Battipaglia (Campania) 
F.O.S. — Filore Ottiche Sud SpA  
ITL 18.0 billion 

million 
ecus 

9.7 

64.8 •·< 

16.9 

28.9 

34.7 

12.3 ·φ 

2.9 • 

9.7 

14.4 • 

63.2 • 

57.8 •-4»' 

23.1 

45.4 

6.5 

11.7 

Modernisation and upgrading of factory producing 
television screens in Anogni (Latium) 
Videocolor SpA  
ITL 93.5 billion 

Modernisation and extension of water heater and 
bathroom equipment factories in The Marches 
Merloni Termosanitari SpA  
ITL 15.0 bill ion 

Modernisation of chocolate factory in Perugia 
(Umbria) and of pasta factory in Sansepolcro 
(Tuscany) 
Nestlé Italiana SpA  
ITL 55.0 billion 

Modernisation and extension of factory producing 
babyfoods in Latina 
Plasmon Dietetici Alimentari SpA 
ITL 10.0 billion 

Modernisation and upgrading of three coated paper 
mills in Sora (Latium), Avezzano and Chieti (Abruzzi) 
Cartiera di Chieti SpA 
ITL 40.0 bill ion 
Cartiere Burgo SpA 
ITL 40.0 billion 

Modernisation and expansion of tissue paper factory 
in Castelnuovo di Gorfagnana (Tuscany) 
Cartiere Unikay SpA  
ITL 30.0 billion 

Physics and biomedical engineering research labora­
tories in Milan 
Ministero dell'Università e della Ricerca Scientifica e 
Tecnologica 
ITL 9.8 billion 

Pharmaceutical research and development centre in 
Nerviano (Lombardy) 
Farmitalia Carlo Erba SpA s 
ITL 30.0 billion 

Biotechnology research centre in Genoa 
Ministero della Sanità  
ITL 6.7 bill ion 

Global loans 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures: 

Mediacredito Centrale — Istituto Centrale per il 
Credito a Medio Termine 
ITL 455.2 billion  

IMI 
ITL 250.0 b illion 

Banco di Napoli  
ITL 160.0 billion 

BNL 
ITL 115.3 billion 
Efibanca 
ITL 100.0 billion 
ISVEIMER 
ITL 100.0 billion  
Interbanca 
ITL 90.0 billion 

ICLE 
ITL 90.0 billion 
Istituto Regionale agrario Emilia-Romagna — Istituto 
Federale di Credito agrario per il Piemonte, la Liguria 
e la Valle d'Aosta 
ITL 60.0 billion 
IRFIS — Istituta Regionale per il Finanziamento alle 
Industrie in Sicilia 
ITL 60.0 billion 
Mediocredito Lombardo 
ITL 50.0 billion 

million 
ecus 

60.6 

8.7 • 

35.5 • 

6.5 • 

26.0 • 

26.0 • 

17.3 • 

6.4 f 

17.3 • 

3.9 m*· 

(1 072.4) 

285.6 

151.5 

96.6 

69.4 

61.3 

60.6 

583 

54.8 

38.9 

36.8 

32.4 
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Crediop 
ITL 40.0 billion 
as 
ITL 30.0 billion 

Istituto Bancario San Paolo di Torino 
ITI 30.0 billion 

Centrobanca — Banca Centrale di Credito Popolare 
ITI 20.0 billion 

LUXEMBOURG 
(1 795 million Luxembourg francs) 

Individual loans 

Acquisition and launching of broadcasting satellite 
SES — Société Européenne des Satellites S.A. 
LUF 1 295.0 million 

Audio and video cassette manufacturing plant in 
Bascharage 
TDK Recording Media Europe S.A. 
LUF 500.0 million 

NETHERLANDS (355.7 million Dutch guilders) 

Individual loans 

Combined heat and power plant fired by natural or 
synthetic gas at Buggenum (Limburg) 
Demkolec BV 
NLG 95.7 million 

Combined heat and power gas-turbine plant at Ede 
(Gelderland) 
Warmte/Kracht Centrale Ede V.O.F. 
NLG 30.0 million 

Gosline linking Markhom field (on Dutch continental 
shelf) with coast 
Elf Petroland Gas Transport BV 
NLG 30.0 million 

Global loans 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures: 

FICC — Financieringsmaatschappij industrieel 
Garantiefonds NV (NIB) 
NLG 100.0 million 

ING-lnternationale Nederlanden Bank NV 
NLG 100.0 million 

PORTUGAL (216 496 million escudos)  

Individual loans 

million 
ecus 

BIMER — Banca delTEmilia-Romagna per finan­ 
ziamenti a medio e lungo termine  
ITL 50.0 billion 28.9 

25.9 

19.4 

17.3 

13.0 
Banco Ambrosiano Veneto  
ITL 20.0 billion 

Fonpiemonte — Istituto di Credito Fondiario de! 
Piemonte e Valle dAosta 
ITL 15.0 billion 

12.9 

8.7 

42.8 

(42.8) 

30.9 

11.9 

154.4 

(67.6) 

41.6 φ 

13.0 φ 

13.0 φ  

(86.8) 

43.5 

43.3 

1 230.4 

(1 210.5) 

Construction of hydroelectric power station on River 
Douro 
Electricidade de Portugal, EP — EDP  
PTE 12.0 bil lion 68.4 

Extension of electricity transmission and supply grid 

PTE 14 743.0 million 83.7 • 

Improvements to various sections of main road 
network 
Junta Autònoma de Estradas 
PTE 7.3 bil lion 

New sections of highway: in Algarve, from bridge 
over River Guadiana at Spanish border and, in north, 
north-east of Vila Real 
Junta Autònoma de Estradas 
PTE 6.0 bil lion 

Extension of Lisbon underground railway system 
Metropolitano de Lisboa, EP  
PTE 35.0 bi llion 

Extension and modernisation of air traffic control 
system and airport facilities in Lisbon, Oporto, Ponto  
Delgada, Horta 
Aeroportos e Navegacäo Aèrea, EP (ANA)  
PTE 9.0 billion 

Rood, port and airport schemes 
Regiao Autònoma dos Açores  
PTE 5.5 bil lion 

Expansion of telephone network: 

— in Lisbon and Oporto areas 
Telefones de Lisboa e Porta, S.A. (TLP) 
PTE 14.0 bil lion 

— other areas 
Correios e Telecomunicaçôes de Portugal, SA (CTTj 
PTE 28.5 bil lion 

Development of mobile telephone network throughout 
the country 
TMN Telecomunicaçôes Mòveis Nacionais SA.  
PTE 5.0 bil lion 

Modernisation of oil refinery at Sinès to produce light 
petroleum products 
Petrogal SA 
PTE 40 353.0 million 

Construction of factory for production of piston ports 
for motor vehicle engines in Contanhede. near 
Coimbra 
Cofapeuropa S.A. 
PTE 2.0 bi llion 

Modernisation of production lines for electrical trans­
formers 
EFACEC — Empresa Fabril de Màquinas Eléctricas  
S.A. 
PTE 1.6 bill ion 

Production of chlorine-free pulp 
Celulose Beira Industrial S.A. (CELBIj 
PTE 2.0 bil lion 

92 

million 
ecus 

Extension of water supply networks, sewage collection 
and treatment facilities in municipality of Sintra 
Services Municipaiizados Agua e Sa nea mento.  
Municipio de Sintra  
PTE 3.0 billion 17.1 m-, 

Improvement and modernisation of railway system on 
Lisbon-Oporto lines, on lines to Spain and on 
commuter lines serving Sintra and Ρόνοα do Varrim; 
renewal of rolling stock 
Caminhos-de-Ferro Portugueses, EP (CP) 
PTE 12.0 bi llion 68.3 •# 

Widening of Sacavém-Vila Franca de Xira section of 
Al Lisbon-Oporto motorway; construction of Cruz- 
Braga (A3) and Famalicâo-Braga (A7) sections 
Brisa, Auto-Estradas de Portugal, S.A. 
PTE 15.0 bil lion 85.2 

Ifir'i'Sî 

41.6 •# 

34.2 •# 

199.5 m< 

5Ï.1 

31.3 

77.8 

161.9 

28.5 

230.0 

11.4 

9.1 

11.4 



Global loons 

For financing small and medium-scale ventures: 

— Deutsche Bank de Investimento S.A. 
PTE 1.5 bill ion 
— lAPMEl — Institute de Apoio as Pequenas e  
Médias Empresas e σο investimento 
PTE 2.0 bill ion 

million 
ecus 

Π 9.9) 

8.5 

11.4 

million 
ecus 

Road, water supply, wastewater collection and 
treatment schemes 
Strafhciyde Regional Council 
GBP 100.0 million 127.0 

Road schemes and industrial estates; aerospace 
engineering training facility 
South Glamorgan County Council 
GBP 50.0 million 70.8 

UNITED KINGDOM 
(1 795.6 million pounds sterling) 2407.2 

Individual loans (2 407.2) 

Construction of gas-turbine power stations: 

— in the North East 
Teesside Power Limited 
GBP 200.0 million 

— in East Londan 
Barking Power Limited 
GBP 200.0 million 

Development of Dunbar and Ellon oil and gas fields in 
British sector of North Sea 
Total OH Marine pic 
GBP 120.0 million 

Improvements to drinking water supply and sewerage 
systems in various regions: 

— North West 
North West Water Ltd 
GBP 140.0 million 
— East and West Midlands 
Severn Trent Water Ltd 
GBP 100.0 million 

— East 
Anglian Water Services Ltd 
GBP 55.0 million 
— Thames Valley 
Thames Wafer Utilities Ltd 
GBP 50.0 million 

— Wales 
DWR Cymru Cyfyngedig 
GBP 45.0 m illion 

— South East 
Southern Water Services Ltd 
GBP 35.0 million 
— Cornwall and Devon 
South West Water Services Ltd 
GBP 30.0 million 

— North East 
Northumbrian Water Ltd 
GBP 17.0 million 

— Wessex 
Wessex Water Services Ltd 
GBP 16.2 million 
— Bristol 
Bristol Water pic 
GBP 8.0 m illion 

Channel Tunnel 
Eurotunnel pic 
GBP 139.7 million 

Road bridge over Severn estuary 
Severn River Crossing pic 
GBP 66.0 mi llion 

Rood schemes: 
Gwent County Council 
GBP 30.0 million 
West Glamorgan County Council 
GBP 23.0 million 

254.0 

279.3 φ 

152.4 4 

193.1 •< 

141.6 •·* 

77.3 ^ 

667 ^ 

62.8 m-

49.0 « 

42.5 •·< 

24.1 m-* 

22.7 

11.2 < 

195.0 · 

83.8 •· 

42.5 • 

29.2 • 

Road schemes; runway extension at Humberside 
Airport 
Humberside County Council 
GBP 24.0 million 30.5 

Road schemes; wate r supplies and sewerage 
Lothian Regional Council 
GBP 21.0 million 26.7 m-

Construction of light railway in Greater Manchester: 
first phase 
Greater ManchesterTransport Passenger Authority and 
Greater Manchester Transport Passenger Executive 
GBP 15.0 million 19-1 

Renewal of long-haul aircraft fleet 
British Airways pic 
GBP 58.8 million 82.1 

Industrial gas production facilities in various factories 
BOC Ltd 
GBP 30.0 million 42.0 • ·* 

Modernisation and extension of industrial gas 
production facilities in Brinsworth (South Yorkshire) 
BOC Ltd 
GBP 20.0 million 25.4 

Development and production of new motor vehicle 
engine at Bridgend, Swansea (Wales) and Belfost 
(Northern Ireland) 
Ford Motor Company Ltd 
GBP 200.0 million 254.0 

Production of polished silicon wafers for integrated 
circuits at Livingston (Scotland) 
Shin-Etsu Mandatai Europe Limited 
GBP 1.9 million 2.7 

OTHER (') 159.7 

Development of Snorre and Veslefrikk oilfields in 
Norwegian sector of North Sea 
Deminex (Norge) A/S 71.1 φ 

Acquisition, launching and operation of satellites 
serving ships, aircraft and land-based vehicles 
International Maritime Satellite Organization 

(guarantee operation) 

14.9 β  
73.7 · 

Akin to financing for projects within the Community (see note Sd, page 115). 

93 



LIST OF FINANCING PROVIDED OUTSIDE THE COMMUNITY 
The t otal amount of EIB finan cing for investment outside the Community was 892.8 million, of which 252 million went to the African, Caribbean and 
Pacific States and the Overseas Countries and Territories, 320.8 million to Mediterranean Countries and 320 million to Central and Eastern European 
Countries. 

The proceeds of certain "APEX" global loans are to be passed on to financial intermediaries, approved by the EIB, for financing investment by SMEs 
(see box article, page 59). 

Loans from own resources ore indicated by *. Most of them carry interest subsidies, provided from EDF resources in the ACP States and from the 
Community's budgetary resources in same Mediterranean Countries. 

Financing from budgetary resources is indicoted by •. It is provided by the EIB under m andate from, on behalf, for the occount and at the risk of the 
Community and is accounted for off balance sheet in the Special Section. 

AFRICA 

NIGERIA 
million ecus 

75.0 

Global loan for financing SMEs in industry, agro-industry, 
tourism and mining 
Nigerian Industrial Development Bank Ltd 75.0 

ZIMBABWE 23.5 

Extension of sewerage facilities in ffarare 
Government of Zimbabwe for Harare City Council 

Global loan to Government of Zimbabwe for Zimbabwe 
Development Bank for financing SMEs in industry, agro-
industry, tourism, transport and mining 

Study on working new copper and zinc mine at Sanyoti 
(eastern Zimbabwe] 
Conditional loan to Reunion Mining Ltd 

Direct equity participation on behalf of Community in 
Zimbabwe Development Bank 

GUINEA 

15.0 

8.0 

0.45 

0.06 

20.0 

Extension of Tombo oil-fired power station in Conakry 
Conditional loon to Republic of Guinea for Entreprise  
Nationale d'Electricité de Guinée 20.0 

SIERRA LEONE 15.5 

Rehabilitation of electricity generating facilities at King 
Tom power station in Freetown 
Conditional loan to Republic of Sierra Leone for National 
Power Authority 15 5 

SENEGAL 13.0 

Renewal and extension of telecommunications facilities in 
northern Senegal (Saint-Louis and Senegal River valley) 
Société Nationale des Télécommunications du Sénégal 13.0 

TANZANIA lU 

Enlargement of container terminal at port of Dar-
es-Saloom 
Conditional loan to Tanzania Harbours Authority 11.0 

Direct equity participation in TDFL o n behalf of Com-
munity 
Conditional loan to Tanzania Development Finance Com-
pony Ltd Q 25 

ZAMBIA 10.2 

Enlargement and modernisatian of pharmaceuticals plant 
at Ndola 
Conditional loon to Gamma Pharmaceuticals Ltd 3.0 • 

Feasibility study for Victoria Falls power station 
Conditional loan to Zambia Electricity Supply Corporation 
Ltd 0.18 • 

Extension of combed and carded cotton and mixed poly­
ester/cotton yarn spinning mill 
Conditional loons to: 
— Swarp Spinning Mills Ltd 4.5 • 
— Swarp Ltd for Swarp Spinning Mills Ltd 2.5 • 

MALI 10.0 

Construction of new cotton ginning plant at Koutiala and 
modernisation of existing plant at Dioila 
Conditional loan to Republic of Mali for Compagnie  
Malienne de Développement des Textiles 10.0 

GUINEA-BISSAU 7.0 

Rehabilitation and extension of electricity generating 
facilities 
Conditional loan to Republic of Guinea-Bissau for 
Electricidade e Àguas da Guinée-Bissau 7,0 π 

CÔTE D'IVOIRE 6.5 

Modernisation and extension of tuna-processing plant at 
Abidjan 

— Société des conserves de Côte d'ivoire 5.5 * 
— Conditional loan to Société des Conserves de Côte 
d'Ivoire ig ^ 

MADAGASCAR 6.5 

Construction of aquaculture facility for shrimp breeding 
and export 
— Conditional loan to Aqualma 4.8 
— Conditional loan to Pêcheries de Nossi Bé for equity 
participation in Aqualma 17 

ETHIOPIA 6.0 

Rehabilitation of northern section of telecommunications 
network 
Conditional loan to Government of Ethiopia ^or Ethiopian 
Telecommunications Authority (, Q 

CAPE VERDE 5.4 

Expansion of generating capacity at Mindelo power sta­
tion by addition of two 3 MW sets 
Conditional loon to Republic of Cape Verde for Empresa 
Publica de Electricidade e Âgua 5 4 
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UGANDA 4.6 GHANA 0.2 

Study on pilot fish form for breeding and production of 
eels in Lake Victoria 
Conditional loan to hterfish Ltd 0.6 

Global loan for financing SMEs in industry, agro-industry, 
transport and tourism 
Conditional loan to Development Finance Corporation of 
Uganda 4.0 

Modernisation of aluminium smelter and installation of 
new scrap foundry in Tema 

— Conditional loon to Ecobank Ghana Ltd for port-
financing equity participation in Aluminium Enterprises 
Ltd (AEL) 

— Subordinated loan to Ecobank Ghana Ltd for onlend-
ing to AEL as α shareholder's advance 

0.035 Q 

0.165 • 

BOTSWANA AJO 

Global loans for financing SMEs in industry, agro-
industry, transport and tourism 

— Botswana Development Corporation Ltd 2.5 

— Conditional loon to Botswana Development Corpor­
ation Ltd 1.5 

SWAZILAND 

ANGOLA 

Global loan for financing SMEs in industry, agro-industry 
and tourism 
Conditional loan to Swaziland Industrial Development 
Company Ltd 3-5 

3.1 

Development of black granite quarries in southern Angola 

.— Conditional loan to ANGOROCHAS 2.7 α 

— Conditional loan to ROREMINA 
(part-financing of equity participation by Roremina in 
Angorochas) 0.38 D 

CARIBBEAN 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 

million ecus 

3.0 

Global loan for financing SMEs in industry, agro-industry 
and tourism 
Conditional loon to Asociación para el Desarrollo de  
Microempresas 3.0 

DOMINICA 

Conditional loans to; 

Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank 

— Government of Dominica 

JAMAICA 

US 

Global loan for financing SMEs in industry, agro-industry 
and tourism 

2.0 
0.5 

0.3 

α 
Q 

Feasibility study on caustic soda plant 
Conditional loan to Jamaica Bauxite Institute Ltd 0.3 • 

MOZAMBIQUE 

MAURITIUS 

3.0 

Cashew-nut processing plant 
Conditional loan to Companhia do Ca/u de Nacala BARL 3.0 • 

2.6 

New doiry products factory 

— Nouvelle Maurilait 2.0 

— Conditional loan to Management and Development 
Company Ltd for Nouvelle Maurilait 0.6 

OCT 

NETHERLANDS ANTILLES 

million ecus 

7.0 

Expansion and conversion to heavy oil-firing of Bonoire 
Island power station 
Water- en Energiebedrijf WEB — Bonaire NV 4.0 

Construction of airline catering facility at Curaçao Airport 
Antilliaanse Luchtvaartmaatschappij c.v. 3.0 

NAMIBIA 2Ü 

Construction of tannery in Okapuka, 25 km north of 
\Mindhoek 
Subordinated loon to Meat Corporation of Namibia 
Limited 2.5 

FALKLAND ISLANDS 23 

Construction of new fuel storage facilities (diesel, petrol, 
kerosene) at Port Stanley 
Stanley Services Ltd 23 

KENYA 2.0 

Global loan for financing equity participations in SMEs 

Conditional loan to Kenya Equity Capital Ltd 2.0 

MAYOTTE 1.0 

Uprating of electricity generating facilities 
Conditional loan to Collectivité Territoriale dé Mayotte 1.0 

SÄG TOMÉ E PRÌNCIPE 0.25 

Feasibility study on electricity master plan 
Conditional loan to Government of Sao Tomé e Prìncipe 0.25 • 

MONTSERRAT 0.15 

Study on electricity generating requirements in Mont­ 
serrat 
Conditional loon to/Montserrat £/ectnc/>y Serv/ces i/cf 0.15 • 
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MEDITERRANEAN 

EGYPT 

SYRIA 

million ecus 

95.4 

Upgrading of medium-voltage power transmission grid in 
northern Upper Egypt 
Egyptian Electricity Authority 50.4 

Construction of new sewerage and sewage treatment 
system in Cairo 
Arab Republic of Egypt (Ministry of Reconstruction, New 
Communities, Housing and Utilities) 45.0 

MOROCCO 80.0 

Uprating telecommunications capacity with Europe by 
laying new undersea fibre-optic cables and improvements 
to loco! communications 
Office National des Postes et Télécommunications 80.0 

ALGERIA 53.0 

Construction of dam at Taksebt to supply water for 
domestic and industrial use in Algiers and the Wilaya of 
Tizi-Ouzou 
People's Democratic Republic of Algeria represented by 
Banque Algérienne de Développement 53.0 

TUNISIA 49.0 

Global loan for financing SMEs 
Banque de Développement Economique de Tunisie 25.0 

Conditional loan to Banque de Développement Econo­
mique de Tunisie for financing equity participations 7.0 

Construction of wastewater treatment plants and sewer­
age systems at Menzel Bourguiba, Monastir and M'saken 
Republic of Tunisia 17 0 

JORDAN 23.0 

Rehabilitation of section of Ammon-Aqoba Highway 
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan for Ministry of Public 
Works and Housing 15 0 

Rehabilitation of water supply systems fo r towns of Irbid 
and Ramtha, in northern Jordan 
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan for Water Authority of 
Jordan 

Extension of industrial estate at Sahab, near Amman 
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan for Jordan industriai  
Estates Corporation 

5.0 

3.0 

20.4 

Construction of dam on River Snobar and development of 
irrigation network for 10 500 ha of farmland in coastal 
district of Lottakio 
Syrian Arab Republic 20.4 

CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPEAN COUNTRIES 
million ecus 

BULGARIA n5.0 

Modernisation of telecommunications network 
Bulgarian Posts and Telecommunications Co Ltd 70.0 

Completion of lignite-fired generating set at Maritsa 
East II power station (south-eastern Bulgaria), installation 
of flue gas desulphurisation equipment and renovation of 
general infrastructure at the plant 
Republic of Bulgaria for Nazionaina Eiectriciska 
Campania 450 

FORMER CZECH AND SLOVAK FEDERAL 
REPUBLIC 85.0 

APEX glob al loan to State Bank of the Czech and Slovak 
Federai Republic for financing projects in industry, tourism 
and the service sector, including energy saving and 
environmental protection 85.0 

HUNGARY 70.0 

Construction of bypasses at Sopron near Austrian border 
and at Szolnok in eastern Hungary; rehabilitation of main 
road network 
Republic of Hungary 

Rehabilitation and modernisation of air traffic control 
facilities 
Republic of Hungary, Ministry of Transport, Communi­
cations and Water Management for Legiforgalmi és  
Repuioténi igazgatosag (Aviation and Airports Adminis­
tration) 

POLAND 

50.0 

20,0 

50.0 

Modernisation and improvement of facilities at Warsaw-
Okecie Airport 
Republic of Poland (Ministry of Transport and Maritime 
Economy — Przedsiebiorstwo Panstwowe Party Lotnicze) 50.0 
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Table A; Financing provided (contracts signed) from 19 59 to 1992 
(million ecus) 

Within the Community Outside the Community 

EIB own Mandates NCI EIB own Budgetary 
Years ' Grand Total TotUl resources and guarantees resources Total resources Resources 

1959/1972 2 836.7 2 45 0.2 2 340.1 110.1 — 386.5 155.7 230.8 
1973/1980 14 340.7 12 346.2 11 739.1 132.4 474.7 1 994.5 1 381.5 613.0 
1981 3 531.4 3 063.7 2 523.8 — 539.9 467.7 377.9 89.8 
1982 4 630.4 4 237.1 3 446.0 — 791.1 393.3 352.1 41.2 
1983 5 921.1 5 443.1 4 145.9 97.6 1 19 9.6 478.0 426.0 52.0 
1984 6 885.9 6 188.8 5 007.0 — 1 181.8 697.1 610.7: 86.4 
1985 7 176.2 6 524.4 5 640.7 — 883.7 651.8 575.9 ΐ 75.9 
1986 7 471.7 7 071.1 6 678.1 _ 393.0 400.6 ' t 314.3 : :==: - • • = 86,3 
1987 7 758.3 7 392.3 6 967.1 — 425.2 366.0 !•' '18 4.4:,'=::-=/i= 181.6 
1988 10 060.2 9 385.4 8 843.9 185.0 356.5 674.8 ' 502.7V =='•'*:= 172.1 
1989 12 194.8 11 584.9 11 506.6 — 78.3 609.9 " =483.9' := 126.0 
1990 7 13 33 8.9 12 626.0 12 549.9 52.5 23.6 712.9 669.0 =v:/VV· 43.9 
1991 15 393.3 14 477.3 14 438.1 — 39.2 916.0 781.5: ' =' 134.5 
1992 17 032.5 16 139.7 16 066.0 73.7 — 892.8 764,3 128.5 

Total 128 572.0 118 929.9 111 892.3 651.3 6 386.3 9 642.1 7 580.1 2 062.0 

Table B: F inancing provided (contracts signed) from 1988 to 1992 and from 1959 to 1992 

Detailed breakdown by origin of resources and project location (million ecus} 

1988-1992 1959-1992 

EIB own Other EIB own Other 
Total resources Π resources Total resources f) resources 

Member Countries . 64 213.3 63 715.7 497.6 118 929.9 112 543.6 6 386.3 

Belgium , f 821.3 797.7 23.6 1 643.6 1 620.0 23.6 
Denmark ^ i 2 2 834.0 2 802.6 31.4 5 146.4 4 612.9 533.5 
Germany , . 5 287.1 5 287.1 — 7 305.0 7 305.0 
Greece ; . . 1 37 8.6 1 378.6 — 3 616.7 3 310.6 306,1 
Spain i . . 9 865.3 9 804.2 , 61.1 10 960.2 10 737.9 222.3 
France . . . 8 289.6 8 183.0 106.6 16 251.7 15 001.7 1 250.0 
Ireland . , 1 09 9.7 1 099.7 /· — 4 001.5 3 577.5 424.0 
Italy : . . 18 748.1 18 605.1 143.0 43 385.8 40 277.8 3 108.0 
Luxembourg 7, • • . 83.1 83.1 : ; — 128.4 128.4 — 
Netherlands . 1 155.2 1 152.0 ^====>3.2 1 445 .7 1 442.5 . 3.2 
Portugal . ,.= 4 343.3 4 343.3 _ 4 923.5 4 883.7 39.8 
United Kingdom . . . . 9 172.2 9 043.6 128.6 ^ 18 578.4: 18 102.6 475.8 
Other {^) . . 1 13 5.7 1 13 5.7 = 1 543.0 1 543.0 — 

ACP-OCT 1 360.0 801.7 558.3 3 566.3 2 264.8 1 301.5 

Mediterranean 1 626.4 1 579.7 46.7 5 255.8 4 495.3 760.5 

CEEC . . 820.0 820.0 — 820.0 820.0 —:= 

Totol . . /=:=· = =•=• • 68 019.7 66 917.1 1 T02 .6 128 57Z0 120 123.7 8 448.3: 

Financing providyin Spain and Portugal up to the end of 19 85 and in Gre ece up to the end of T98 0 is recorded under opera tions outside the Community.^ 
(') Finoncing akin to opera tions with in the Community (see note 5d. page 115). 

, ( ^:) including, loons under mandata and guarantees. ^ 

Europe — from the Six to the Twelve 

" ^Έυκό • 
; 1958-1972: %: 
• 2 450 inillton @Ï5ÎS, .. 

EUR 9 
1973-1980 

12 340= ffiillioin ecus 

EUR 1 0 
1981-1985 

25 457 million ecus 

:=:"•= EUR 42= =1; 
71986-1=992 ;·==^=ϊ  

78 =677 mijlioB eciis 

p:i;==iÄf::=;?r;, 
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Table C: Financing provided within the Community from 1988 to 1992 
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans) 

Breakdown by country and objective 

Environment 
Regione! Community end quality 

development infrastructure of life Energy 

Belgium 199.4 74.9 22.2 83.4 
Denmark ..... . 1 364.4 1 46 6.5 171.4 963.0 
Germany . . . . , . 2 523.3 563.9 2 031.0 452.2 
Greece . . . ... . 1 183.1 159.8 322.3 300.9 
Spain 7 642.6 4 419.7 1 532.1 1 30 4.6 
France 5 236.3 2 414.3 604.8 193.9 
Ireland . . 1 082.7 390.4 230.0 114.8 
Italy . 11 646.7 2 473.0 3 251.2 4 219.2 
Luxembourg . . . , 23.7 59.5 — — 
Netherlands .... . . 406.8 420.7 3.0 88.0 
Portugal . 4 261.4 943.6 523.4 744.2 
United Kingdom .... 4 166.9 1 722.6 2 887.6 2 156.2 
Other — 876^ 258.8 

Total • 39 737.3 15 985.8 11 579.0 10 879.2 

As certain financing meets several objectives, the totals for the various headings cannot be meaningfully odded together. 

(million ecus) 

industrial ob|ectives 

International 
competitiveness 

28.5 
484.6 

886.3 
748.1 

3.4 
1 567.4 

261.2 
237.7 
815.5 

5 032.6 

SMEs 

533.0 
250.1 
692.3 
197.3 

1 146.4 
1 811.4 

22.0 
4 125.3 

280.7 
544.8 
170.3 

9 773.6 

Regional 
development; 

39 737 million ecus 

Community 
infrostructure; 

15986 million ecus 

Industry: 

14 806 million ecus 

Environment, 
quolity of life: 

11 579 million ecus 

@3 
Energy poiicy 

objectives: 

10 879 million ecus 

H Energy 

I 1 Transport 

ί I Telecommunications 

1^ Sundry infrastructure 

m industry, services, 
agriculture 

I I lond-based transport 

I I Air transport 

• Other 

EO Telecommunications 

I I Industrial 
— competitiveness and 

integration 

• Water 

Η Waste I SMEs in non -assisted 
areas 

I SMEs In assisted areas Π Other 

I I Rational use of energy 

Β Import diversification 

BE^®velopmeni of 
indigenous resources 

I Urban development 

Table D: Financing provided within the Community from 1988 to 1992 
(individuo! loans ond oilocotions from ongoing globo! loons) 

Breokdown by country ond sector 

Total Loans Allocations 

Belgium 705.9 
Denmork . 2 833.7 
Germony . .... . 4 966.3 
Greece .... . : '1; . 1 186.4 
Spain . . . . ... . 9 957.6 
France 7518.7 
Irelond . 1 082.7 
Italy 18 500.3 
Luxembourg .... . . 83.1 
Netherlands . . . ... . 1104.9 
Portugol ..... . . 4 294.2 
United Kingdom .... 8 956.0 
Other 1 135,7 

Totq' 62 325.7 47 881.2 14 444.5 

168.7 
2 526.3 
2 459.2 

880.5 
8 525.9 
4 507.2 
1 060.7 

13 260.5 
83.1 

821.4 
3 669.9 
8 782.1 
1 135.7 

537.2 
307.5 

2 507.2 
305.9 

1 431 .7 
3 011.5 

22.0 
5 239.8 

283.5 
624.3 
173.9 

Transport 

74.9 
1 116.3 

688.6 
385.4 

2 972.9 
4 094.9 

317.2 
1 327.7 

425.9 
1 352.0 
1 672.7 

infrastructure 

Telecommu­
nications 

365.2 
146.8 

2 440.6 
34.4 

188.0 
2 842.5 

59.5 

613.1 
562.3 
876.9 

Environ­
ment and 

other 

14.6 
133.7 

1 332.2 
234.2 

1 147.5 
308.7 
301.9 

2 005.5 

2.8 
93.5 

2 530.7 

(million ecus) 

Energy 

Industry 
Services 

Agriculture 

83.4 
937.2 
534.4 
319.6 

1 029.3 
166.2 
181.6 

4 576.5 

88.0 
864.0 

2 126.8 
258.8 

533.1 
281.3 

2 26 4.3 
247.2 

2 367.4 
2 914.6 

94.0 
7 748.1 

23.7 
588.2 

1 371.5 
2 063.5 

14 428.5 8 129.2 8105.3 11 165.8 20 496.8 

•o-
98 



Table E: Financing provided within the Community in 1992 
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans) 

Sectoral breakdown {amounts in million ecus) 

Total Loons Allocations 
Amount % EIB Totol EIB NCI 

Energy and infrastructure 12 371.1 73.0 10 729.2 1 642.0 1 642.0 — 
Energy 2 871.7 16.9 2 740.8 130.9 130.9 — 
Production . . . 1 63 6.3 9.7 1 571.6 64.7 64.7 — 
Conventional thermal power stations . . .. . . . 835.2 4.9 814.2 21.0 21.0 — 
Hydroelectric power statians . . 277.6 1.6 239.1 38.4 38.4 — 
Heat generating plant > ; . . 139.2 0.8 135.3 3.9 3.9 — 
Development of oil and natural gas deposits . : , ,. 384.2 2.3 383.0 1.2 1.2 
Solid fuel extraction . i ν . 0.1 — 0.1 0.1 — 
Transmission, storage, reprocessing . » f 592.6 3.5 592.6 — — „ , = —: 

Electricity . . . . . . . 214.0 1.3 214.0 — — 
Oil and natural gas . . . r 366.8 2.2 366.8 — — • — 
Nuclear fuel : . . ; , . ... . . 11.9 0.1 11.9 — — 1 :5 • , 
Supply . ; . . . . . . . '. 642.8 3.8 576.6 66.2 66.2 
Electricity . . . . . . . . ; .. ν * . li :. ; . 301.2 1.8 296.5 4.8 4.8 , •• 
Natural gas . . . . ... . ^ . . . 323.2 1.9 274.0 49.1 49.1 — 
Heat . . . ... . . . . ; . ' . .. . . 18.4 0.1 6.1 12.3 12.3 —* 
Transport ...... . . . . · . . 4 5517 26.9 4 031.2 521.6 521.6 — 
Railways . . . .. . . . . . - . - · · 952.5 5.6 936.2 16.3 16.3 — 
Roads, motorways . . . . . . . . . ... 2 154.2 12.7 1 853.7 300.5 300.5 — 
Shipping . . . . . . .. 98.5 0.6 81.3 17.2 17.2 — 
Urban transport 882.5 5.2 705.9 176.6 176.6 — 
Airlines 426.4 2.5 415.4 11.0 11.0 — 
Intermodal freight terminals and other . . . . . . 38.6 0.2 38.6 — — — 
Telecommunications . . . . 1 990.0 11.7 1 990.0 — — — 
Conventional equipment . . . . .: | :. 1 481 .9 8.7 1 481.9 — — — 
Satellites, ground stations . . . k' ; :• · · 278.2 1.6 278.2 — — — 
Specialised networks .... . ' . I .ΐ > >. 229.8 1.4 229.8 — — 
Water, sewerage, solid waste 2148.8 12.7 1 300.8 848.0 848.0 — 
Drinking water supplies . . . . . . . . . - . 122.4 0.7 32.8 89.6 89.6 
Wastewater treatment . . . , 981.7 5.8 387.1 594.6 594.6 : ; —t 
Supply and se werage î 784.3 4.6 739.4 44.9 44.9 
Solid and liq uid waste treatment . . . ^ . . . , 140.5 0.8 61.2 79.2 79.2 
Multi-purpose schemes .... . . . . . . . 120.0 0.7 80.3 39.7 39.7 

Urban infrastructure . .; cr '.::... 96.1 0.6 83.5 12.6 12.6 .. 
Urban renewal . . . . . . 84.4 0.5 83.5 0.9 0.9 : 
Public and ad ministrative buildings . . . . , . . 1 3.4 — 3.4 3.4 . 
Exhibition, trade fair and con ference centres .... 6.6 — 6.6 6.6 
Urban development sc hemes 1.6 — 1.6 1.6 

Other infrastructure . . 711.8 4.2 582.8 129.0 129.0 — 
Composite infrastructure 705.6 4.2 577.1 128.5 128.5 
Agricultural and fores try development . . . : . . . 6.2 — 5.7 0.4 0.4 

Industry, services, agriculture 

Industry 
Mining and quarrying 
Metal production and semi-processing . 
Metalworking and mechanical engineering 
Transport equipment . 
Eiectricol engineering . . . . . t ;. 
Electronics a 
Chemicals 
Rubber and plastics processing · ^ J 
Gloss und ceramics . . . . . , : 
Construction materials 
Woodworking . . . . . » . . 
Foodstuffs . . « 
Textiles and leather . . . . . , . 
Paper and pulp, printing . . . . . 
Other manufacturing industries . . . 
Civil engineering — bu ilding . ... 

Services 
Tourism, leisure, health ...... 
Research and development . . . . . 
Private and public-sector services . . . 
Waste recovery and recycling . . . . 
Training and education centres . . . ' 
Wholesaling 

Agriculture, fisheries, forestry 

4 582.0 27.0 215Z3 2 429.7 2 412.8 16.8 

3 897.7 23.0 1 992.5 1 905.1 1 889.1 16.0 
21.0 0.1 — 21.0 20.7 0.3 
47.7 0.3 — 47.7 47.7 — 

422.9 2.5 63.2 359.7 359.7 — 
925.3 5,5 856.1 69.2 69.2 — 
170.2 1.0 66.9 103.3 103.3 — 

87.1 0.5 75.2 11.9 11.9 — 
813.0 4.8 709.1 104.0 104.0 — 

90.9 0.5 — 90.9 90.9 — 
48.7 0.3 9.7 39.0 38.9 0.1 

151.2 0.9 24.4 126.8 126.5 0.3 
111.9 0.7 4.0 107.9 107.9 — 
410.1 2.4 54.7 355.3 352.2 3.2 
126.9 0.7 — 126.9 126.7 0.2 
322.2 1.9 129.4 192.8 180.8 12.0 

33.3 0.2 — 33.3 33.3 — 
115.3 0.7 — 115.3 115.3 — 
677.3 4.0 159.8 517.5 517.0 0.4 
264.5 1.6 82.8 181.6 181.6 — 

27.8 0.2 27.6 0.3 0.3 — 
255.7 1.5 — 255.7 255.5 0.3 
13.6 0.1 — 13.6 13.6 — 
50.3 0.3 49.4 0.9 0.9 — 
65.5 0.4 — 65.5 65.3 0,2 

7.0 7.0 6.7 0.4 

Grand Total . 16 953.1 100.0 12 8813 4 071.6 4 054.8 16.8 
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Table F: Financing provided within the Community from 1988 to 1992 
(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans) 

Sectoral breakdown (amounts in million ecus) 

Production 
Conventional thermal power stations . . 
Hydroelectric power stations 
Geothermal energy and alternative sources 
Heat generating plant 
Development of oil and natural gas deposits 
Solid fuel extraction . 
Transmission, s torage, reprocessing . . . 
Electricity 
Oil and natural gas . . . . . . r i: . 
Nuclear fuel 7, . 
Supply 
Electricity 
Natural gas . . . . . (l i. . ·"· . 
Heat 

Transport . "C-i. .'-.Λ .. 
Railways . . . . . . . . . _ 
Roads, motorways 
Shipping . ... 
Urban transport f \ 
Airlines '. . . 
Intermodal freight terminals and other . . 

Telecommunications . . . . . 
Conventional equipment 
Specialised networks 
Satellites, ground stations . . . , ì . 
International cables . 

Woter, sewerage, solid waste . . t . 
Drinking water supplies . . . . . . 
Wastewater treatment . 
Supply and sewerage ....... 
•Solid and liquid waste treatment . , '.Λ • . 
Multi-purpose schemes ....... 

Urban infrastructure . 
Urban renewal 
Exhibition, trade fair and conference centres 
Public and administrative buildings . . . 
Urban development schemes 

Other infrastructure 
Composite Infrastructure 
Agricultural and forestry development ï . 

Industry, services, agriculture . . . 

Industry 
Mining and quarrying 
Metal production and seml-processing 
Metalworking and mechanical engineering 
Transport equipment 
Electrical engineering 
Electronics 
Chemicals . ; 
Rubber and plastics processing . . . 
Glass and ceramics ....... 
Construction materials ..... 
Woodworking 
Foodstuffs 
Textiles and leather . . . . . . ..è ; 
Paper and pulp, printing . . . . J ' 
Other manufacturing Industries ... 
Civil engineering — b uilding . . ., . 

Services 
Tourism, leisure, health 
Research and development .... . 
Private and public-sector services . . 
Waste recovery and recycling .... 
Training and education centres . . . , 
Advanced Information services . . ' .f 
Wholesaling 

Agriculture, fisheries, forestry . . . . 

Total Loons Allocations 
Amount % ElB-l-NCi Total EIB NCI 

Energy and infrastructure .... 41 828.8 67.1 38 515.6 3 313.3 3 306.6 6.7 
11 165.8 
5 725.1 
7 880.3 

860.8 
88.5 

400.2 
2 439.1 

56.2 
2 233.3 

711.2 
986.5 
535.6 

3 207.5 
7 676.8 
7 431.8 

98.8 

14 428.5 
3 481.1 
5 293.1 

576.7 
1 718.9 
3 151.8 

207.0 

8 129.2 
6 467.1 

235.7 
1 088.2 

338.2 

6 323.7 
515.2 

2 290.7 
2 424.1 

562.7 
531.0 

370.0 
105.8 
231.0 
12.5 
20.8 

1 411.6 
1 254.2 

157.4 

20 496.9 

17 333.8 
99.1 

240.8 
1 874.2 
3 821.6 

892.5 
582.3 

2 528.2 
654.0 
475.1 
626.2 
572.4 

1 907.5 
698.8 

1 739.1 
177.6 
444.4 

2 976.0 
1 203.4 

159.4 
1 063.3 

66.1 
103.6 
250.0 
130.2 

187.1 

17.9 
9.2 
3.0 
1.4 
0.1 
0.6 
3.9 
0.1 
3.6 
7.7 
1.6 
0.9 
5.1 
2.7 
2.3 
0.2 

23.2 
5.6 
8.5 
0.9 
2.8 
5.1 
0.3 

10 688.7 
5 565.9 
7 852.3 

755.7 
86.8 

384.4 
2 431.6 

55.2 
2 213.5 

708.3 
969.6 
535.6 

2 909.4 
7 638.5 
1 205.3 

65.5 

13 334.3 
3 420.9 
4 721.6 

532.5 
1 325.6 
3 136.6 

197.2 

477.1 
159.2 

28.1 
1052 

1.7 
15.8 
7.4 
1.0 

19.8 
2.8 

16.9 

298.1 
38.3 

226.5 
33.3 

1 094.2 
60.2 

571.5 
44.2 

393.3 
15.2 

9.8 

470.4 
154.8 

28.1 
101.3 

1.7 
15.3 
7.4 
1.0 

19.8 
2.8 

16.9 

295.9 
38.3 

2242 
33.3 

1 094.2 
60.2 

571.5 
44.2 

393.3 
15.2 

9.8 

6.7 
4.4 

3.9 

0.6 

2.2 

2.2 

Grand Total 62 325.7 

13.0 8 129.2 _ 
10.4 6 467.1 — 
0.4 235.7 , 
1.7 1 088.2 
0.5 338.2 — 

10.1 4 940.7 1 383.0 1 383.0 _ 
0.8 334.5 180.7 180.7 
3.7 1 38 3.9 906.7 906.7 
3.9 2 344.8 79.3 79.3 
0.9 426.2 136.5 136.5 
0.9 451.3 79.7 79.7 — 
0.6 318.1 51.9 51.9 _ 
0.2 103.9 1.9 1.9 
0.4 206.7 24.3 24.3 

7.5 4.9 4.9 
20.8 20.8 — 

2.3 1 104.5 307.1 307.1 _ 
2.0 951.3 303.0 303.0 
0.3 153.3 4.1 4.1 — 

32.9 9 365.6 11 131.3 10 472.0 659.2 
27.8 8 496.7 8 837.0 8 242.5 594.6 

0.2 — 99.1 91.2 7.9 
0.4 37.0 203.8 193.1 10.7 
3.0 208.7 1 665.5 1 558.2 107.4 
6.1 3 575.6 246.0 222.3 23.7 
1.4 464.3 428.1 405.4 22.8 
0.9 500.4 81.9 75.2 6.7 
4.1 1 94 0.0 588.1 552.7 35.4 
1.0 136.3 517.7 480.2 37.5 
0.8 154.8 320.3 284.4 35.9 
1.0 87.7 538.5 522.4 16.1 
0.9 84.9 487.6 441.9 45.7 
3.1 419.4 1 488.1 1 405.9 82.2 
1.1 14.6 684.2 620.3 63.9 
2.8 863.3 875.8 811.6 64.2 
0.3 9.5 168.1 149.3 18.8 
0.7 — 444.4 428.6 15.8 
4.8 865.8 2110.2 2 049.7 60.6 
1.9 337.0 866.3 860.5 5.8 
0.3 130.3 29.1 29.1 
1.7 46.7 1 016.6 967.1 49.5 
0.1 — 66.1 61.7 4.5 
0.2 101.7 1.9 1.6 0.2 
0.4 250.0 — 
0.2 130.2 129.7 0.5 
0.3 3,1 184.0 179.9 4.1 

100.0 47 881.2 14 444.5 13 778.6 665.9 
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Table G: Financing provided for the Community's regions in 1992 and from 1989 to 1992 

(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loons) (million ecus) 

1992 1989-1992 

Regional Community Obiective Regional Community Obiective 
Country development support areas 1 are as development support areas 1 areas 

Belgium ........ 64.6 57.0 — 199.2 172.0 — 
Denmork ........ 370.4 224.5 — 1 204.4 675.7 — 
Germany .... , . . 1 13 5.1 990.4 707.4 2 295.5 1 767.0 1 0877 
Greece ..... , . . 392.0 392.0 392.0 977.3 977.3 977.3 
Spain . 2 970.2 2 929.1 2 023.4 6 946.5 6 696.0 4 277.5 
France . . 1 371.0 1 09 4.8 67.0 4 749.6 3 569.2 95.5 
Ireland 291.0 291.0 291.0 929.8 929.8 929.8 
Italy 2 386.5 2 183.8 1 559.3 9 696.6 8 467.2 6 540.6 
Luxembourg 11.9 11.9 23.7 23.7 — 
Netherlands . . . . . . 25.3 15.6 — 204.0 135.4 — 
Portugal 1 303.6 1 303.6 i 303.6 3 815.1 3 815.1 3 815.1 
United Kingdom 1 47 1.5 1 431 .2 27.9 3 753.5 3 434.0 156.4 

Total 11 79Z8 10 924.9 6 371.6 34 795.2 30 6624 17 879.9 

Table H: Breakdown of financing by region in 1992 and from 1989 to 1992 

(individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loons) 

This analytical table is based on NUTS 1 or 2 regional classification, depending upon the country concerned. Where possible, 
individual loans covering several regions have been subdivided. 

(amounts in millio n ecus) 

CDP 
per cap. 

Popu­
lation 

1992 1989-1992 
CDP 

per cap. 
Popu­
lation Total Loans Allocations Total Loans Allocations 

Belgium . . JOS 9 967 318.6 131.3 187.3 701.3 168.7 532.6 

Bruxelles-Brussel i . . . . . 16Ó 962 34.6 25.0 9.6 62.1 38.5 23.6 
Vlooms Gewest. . . . . . , . 106 5 754 171.7 31,1 140.6 456.5 41.5 415.0 

Région Wallonne . ..... . 85 3 251 37.1 — 37.1 94.0 — : 94.0 

Multiregional .... =. . . — 75.2 75.2 — 88.7 88.7 — 

Denmark 107 5140 7020 636.6 65.4 2 340.6 2 093.0 247.6 

Hovedstadsregionen . . . . . - 1 720 176.4 169.9 6.5 521.7 479.7 41.9 

Gest for Storebaelt . ... . - 587 218.3 210.2 8.2 376.8 358.8 18.0 

Vest fo r Storebaelt . . . . ' , . . 2 833 221.5 170.7 50.7 959.1 771.5 187.7 

Multiregional  — — 85.8 85.8 — 483.0 483.0 — 

Germany 117 63232 2164.2 791.3 1 3729 4 449.1 21122 2 336.9 

Hamburg . 183 1 641 21.6 16.2 5.4 102.8 77.2 25.6 

Bremen . . . . . 148 679 10.8 — 10.8 39.9 — 39.9 

Hessen . . 135 5 718 80.9 62.2 18.6 146.4 86.5 59.9 

Baden-Württemberg . . . . . 123 9 729 93.8 20.7 73.1 359.3 146.8 212.5 

Bayern   119 11 337 163.9 97.9 66.0 574.5 435.4 139.1 

Berlin * . 116 2 118 16.9 6.5 10.4 72.6 55.8, 16.8 

Nordrhein-Westfalen . . . . . 112 17 248 753.1 121.8 631.2 1 357.4 368.6 988.8 

Saarland . . . 109 1 0 71 45.2 6.1 39,1 91.3 13.4 77.9 

Rheinland-Pfalz. ...... 103 3 735 26.2 — 26.2 64.9 — 64.9 

Niedersachsen ....... 101 7342 134.8 — 134.8 338.2 48.6 289.6 

Schleswig-Holstein  99 2 615 21.8 — 21.8 70.6 17.9 52.7 

Mecklenburg-Vorpommern * . . · . 2 000 46.0 7.4 38.6 57.9 15.6 42.3 

Brandenburg * - 2 600 132.4 69.2 63.2 146.2 77.4 68.8 

Sachsen-Anhalt * - 3 WO 72.6 17.9 54.8 84.3 26.0 58.2 

Sachsen * ....... . 4 900 306.5 185.6 120.9 536.8 407.5 129.3 

Thüringen * 
Multiregional ...... — 

2 7W 139.8 
97.9 

81.9 
97.9 

57.9 251.9 
154.1 

188.8 
146.8 

63.2 
7.3 

o-
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Table H: Breakdown of financing by region in 1992 and from 1989 to 1992 (continued) 

individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans) (amounts in million ecus) 

GDP 
per cap. 

Popu-
lafiori 

1992 1989-1992 GDP 
per cap. 

Popu-
lafiori Total Loans Allocations Total Loans Allocations 

Greece ... 47 10 723 391.9 311.8 8a2 972.6 730.1 2425 

Attiki . 3 477 155.8 149.6 6.1 224.3 182.1 42.2 
Kentriki Ellado . . . , . • 2 382 82.2 43.8 38.4 279.9 202.7 77.1 
Voreia Elloda . I . . 46 3 286 34.9 19.7 15.2 177.9 122.4 55.5 
Nisia . . . . . . 45 978 55.1 34.7 20.4 107.9 54.1 53.8 
Multiregional . . . . . ' I . · — — 64.0 64.0 — 182.6 1687 13.9 

Spain ... 75 38 959 3 195.3 2948.4 246.9 8 977.9 7 830.1 1 147.8 

Baléares  
Navarro ..... 
Pais Vasco . . . . ' 
Madrid ..... 
Cataluna . . , 
La Rioja ..... 
Aragón ..... 
Comunidad Volenciona 
Canarios 
Asturios 
Contobria .... 
Murcia . . . . .r 
Castilla-León . . . 
Castilla-La Moncho ., 
Golicio 
Andalucla 
Extremcduro. . . . 
Multiregional . . . 

97 

98 
90 
96 
92 

83 

83 
74 
76 

70 

74 

74 

67 

63 

58 

57 

49 

682 
521 

2 129 
4 878 
6 008 

260 

1213 

3 787 

1 48 5 

1 1 26 

527 
1 027 
2 626 

1 714 

2 804 

6 920 

1 128 

France . . . 57880 

lie-de-Fronce 10 633 
Alsace . t . . 115 1 619 
Haute-Normandie ..... . . 106 1 731 
Rhône-Alpes.... . i . .Vii 109 5338 
Champagne-Ardenne.... . . 112 1 341 
Centre A, Ϊ;.,= Τ i02 2 363 
Franche-Comté  . . 103 1 0 92 
Aquitaine . 2 787 
Provence-Côte d'Azur. . . A i 4 250 
Bourgogne  1 602 
Picardie . . . . , ;f. . f; -. . i 96 1 8 04 
Bosse-Normandie . . . . . 1 385 
Pays de la Loire . . Î . . . 3 048 
Lorraine . . . . . . . 2 293 
Midi-Pyrénées ... 2 423 
Bretagne . 'A; 2 784 
Poitou-Charentes  1 588 
Auvergne = , '.iiA • . ' Ti , 91 ì 314 
Nord — Pas-de-Calais . . . . 91 3 945 
Languedoc-Roussillon. . . « ^ '· -'Aii 37 2 113 
Limousin . A 719 
Corse  79 249 
Overseas Departments . ,. . ' ì. 1 460 

19.0 
12.7 

135.0 
295.1 
601.0 
10.6 
24.6 

312.4 
34.9 
98.6 
19.0 

154.0 
174.6 
277.4 
121.1 
806.4 
58.5 
40.6 

2 039.8 

175.3 
74.9 

105.6 
229.6 
45.1 
11.8 
22.9 
12.6 

103.0 
50.7 
69.6 
13.0 

223.1 
78.0 

103.3 
93.7 
32.8 
23.9 

483.0 
3.3 

16.8 
0.1 

67.5 

18.9 
8.0 

126.3 
277.9 
579.1 
10.2 
20.6 

278.8 
27.8 
91.8 
17.5 

146.3 
143.9 
260.8 
108.4 
746.9 

44.5 
40.6 

0.1 
4.7 
8.7 

17.1 
21.9 
0.4 
4.0 

33.5 
7.0 
6.8 
1.4 
7.7 

30.7 
16.6 
12.8 
59.5 
13.9 

74.3 
142.0 
302.9 

1 407 .5 
1 661.2 

33.5 
100.9 
703.6 
163.4 
149.6 
145.5 
261.8 
439.2 
568.2 
360.9 

1 56 5.4 
112.2 
785.8 

63.7 
127.4 
254.8 

1 28 8.2 
1 517.0 

26.5 
71.1 

583.5 
131.8 
130.6 
133.9 
209.7 
313.3 
496.5 
280.5 

1 343.9 
71.7 

785.8 

10.6 
14.6 
48.1 

119.2 
144.2 

7.0 
29.8 

120.1 
.31.6 
19.0 
11.6 
52.1 

125.9 
71.7 
80.4 

221.5 
40.5 

Multiregional 

1 159.2 880.6 6 750.0 3 987.4 2 76Z6 

142.4 32.9 536.5 292.9 243.6 
45.0 29.9 209.5 63.5 145.9 
94.5 11.1 133.9 94.5 39.3 

109.6 120.0 906.9 582.5 324.4 
40.3 4.8 214.8 182.5 32.3 

11.8 71.9 14.1 57.8 
7,9 15.0 59.1 7.9 51.1 
— 12.6 207.1 50.8 156.3 
— 103.0 515.9 287.5 228.4 

43.1 7.6 78.5 44.1 34.4 
60.4 9.2 158.4 124.2 34.2 
8.7 4.4 71.2 87 62.5 

160.2 62.9 377.4 175.5 201.9 
— 78.0 194.6 7.2 187.4 

36.3 67.0 4077 271.4 136.3 
— 937 278.4 11.0 267.5 

12.4 20.4 62.8 12.4 50.4 
— 23.9 81.3 22.4 59.0 

398.4 84.7 1 50 9.2 1 292.9 216.2 
— 3.3 148.9 28.7 120.2 
— 16.8 34.8 — 34.8 
— 0.1 1.5 — 1.5 
— 67.5 95.1 18.0 77.1 
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Table H: Breakdown of finoncing by region in 1992 ond from 1989 to 1992 (continued) 

(individuai loans and allocations from ongoing global loans) {amounts in million ecus) 
— 1989-1992 

GDP Popu-
per cap. lotion Total Loons Allocotions Total Loons Allocotions 

Irelond 68 3503 291.1 290.4 0.6 925.4 905.9 19^ 

Itoly 702 57 663 3 779.0 2 731.5 1 047.5 15 145.9 10 983.8 4 162.2 

Lombardia 135 8 926 398.9 251.6 147.3 1 416.5 729.4 687.1 
Emilia-Romagna ....... 127 3 925 322.2 215.1 107.1 1 031.0 623.9 407.1 
Valle d'Aosta .... 131 116 7.8 7.8 — 14.4 14.4 — 
Piemonte 121 4 357 372.9 291.3 81.6 1 446 .8 1 067.1 379.8 
Trentino-Alto Adige 120 889 83.0 34.2 48.8 317.9 73.1 244.8 
Veneto 117 4 392 239.8 160.1 79.7 813.4 455.4 357.9 
Friuli-Venezia Giulia . .... . 122 1 202 32.9 22.7 10.3 400.4 334.1 66.4 
Liguria . 116 1 723 42.6 14.6 28.0 342.1 260.2 81.9 
Lazio 115 5 181 250.5 196.2 54.2 1 159.1 9207 238.4 
Toscana HO 3 562 256.1 177.4 78.7 745.2 465.9 279.3 
Marche 105 1 433 82.3 34.6 47.7 336.3 121.5 214.8 
Umbria . . 99 822 72.1 38.3 33.8 200.3 79.9 120.4 
Abruzzi ...» 89 1 269 298.6 201.5 97.1 808.6 610.6 198.0 
Molise. . . . . 79 336 33.8 27.6 6.2 183.1 148.7 34.4 
Sardegna. ......... 73 1 661 157.7 135.6 22.1 851.1 727.4 123.7 
Puglia. .......... 74 4076 316.1 278.5 37.7 1 115.0 952.1 162.8 
Sicilia 66 5 185 195.7 153.2 42.5 1 007.0 827.5 179.5 
Campania .... 69 5 831 256.3 159.2 97.2 1 176.4 905.7 270.6 
Basilicata. . . . 64 624 127.9 106.4 21.5 505.4 434.8 70.6 
Calabria .......... 61 2 153 112.3 106.2 6.1 578.7 539.9 38.7 
Multiregional —- 119.4 119.4 — 697.3 691.2 ^ 

Luxembourg 124 381 42.8 42.8 — 83.1 83.1 — 

Netherlonds 101 14 947 151.9 67.7 97.3 871.7 604.8 267.0 

West-Nederland ....... 110 6 996 39.4 — 39.4 171.4 68.2 103.1 
Noord-Nederland ....... 102 1 596 7.1 — 7.1 28.0 — 28.0 
Zuid-Nederiand. ....... 95 3 306 67.9 41.6 26.3 215.0 153.5 61.5 
Oost-Nederland ....... 85 3 050 37.6 13.0 24.5 110.0 35.6 74.4 
Multiregional . . — — —- l^^O — 347.4 347.4 — 

Portugal . . . 56 9 377 1 303.6 1 2105 93.1 3 806.0 3 266.1 539.9 

Lisboa e Vale do Tejo . . . . . 76 3 305 443.3 399.5 43.8 1 159.5 1 001.9 157.6 
Alenteio ' . . 4 . 35 550 241.4 239.7 1.7 362.4 345.0 17.4 
Algarve . . : 49 338 32.2 32.2 — 76.5 647 11.8 
Norte :. 49 3 453 279.6 250.9 28.7 884.1 705.3 178.7 
Centro 41 1 732 101.5 83.0 18.5 629.6 469.0 160.6 
Acores di. Λ \ — 254 39.2 39.2 — 154.2 150.1 4.2 
Madeira . r . ' t .7 . : - 271 5.3 4.9 0.4 19.9 10.9 9.0 
Multiregional . ... . Τ · · 161.1 161.1 — 319.8 319,2 0.7 

United Kingdom . . ... . . 101 57411 2407.2 2407.2 - 7905.0 7733.1 171.9 

South East ......... 121 17458 624.3 624.3 — 1 81 7.6 1 777.3 40.3, 
EastAnglia . . . , . . , , 102 2 059 33.5 33.5 - 130.5 123.9 6.6 
Southwest. ... L . . 96 4 667 84.4 84.4 — 447.6 439.9 7.6 
East Midlands ,. . . ,. . ?7 4 019 62.0 62.0 - 207.6 187.3 20.3 
Scotland 93 5 102 163.0 163.0 — 1 241.4 1 223.4 18.0 
Northwest 91 6389 206.4 206.4 — 735.6 709.3 26.3 
West Midlands 5 219 81.1 81.1 - 390.3 375.6 14.7 
Yorkshire and Humberside 92 4 952 69.6 69.6 - 458.6 448.5 10.1 
North . 87 3 075 301.1 301.1 — 745.6 732.9 12.6 
Wales . . . 84 2 881 519.4 519.4 — 676.2 660.8 15.4 
Northern Ireland 74 1 589 27.9 27.9 156.6 156.6 
Multiregional ^34.5 234.5 — ^^7.5 

Other — — 159.7 159.7 - 850.7 850.7 -

Total - - 16 960.3 12 888J 4 071.8 53 779.4 41 349.0 12 430.4 

EUROSTAT 1990 estimates of per capita GDP expressed in terms of purchasing power parities (EC = 100). 

1990 population figures fOOO inhabitants). 
*: Population estimates, not included in total. 
- : dato not available. 
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Table I: Allocations from ongoing global loans in 1992 
General summary (amounts in million ecus) 

Total EIB own resources NCI resources 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount 

Total allocations 1992 (*). . . 8 788 4 071.6 8 770 4 054.8 18 16.8 

Regional development . . 5 903 2 547.2 5 903 2 547.2 _ _ 
Infrastructure J 1 21 7 084.1 7 1 21 7 084.1 — 
SMEs in assisted areas . . . , 4 782 1 463.1 4 782 1 4 63.1 — 
Energy policy objectives . . , 77 165.6 77 165.6 — 
Advanced technology .... 3 7.5 3 7.5 — 
SMEs in non-assisted areas . . 2 529 802.8 2 511 785.9 18 16.8 
Environment 589 1 090.2 589 1 090.2 — — 
Community infrastructure . . . 8 5.8 8 5.8 — 

I*) As some allocations meet several objectives, the totals for the different headings cannot be meaningfully added together. 

Table J: Allocatio ns from ongoing global loans in 1992 
Breakdown by region and objective (amounts in million ecus) 

Total 
Regional 

development 
Non-assisted 

areas 

Infra- EIB own NCI 
Advanced 

tech- Environ-
Community 

infra-
Number Amount structure industry resources resources nology Energy ment structure 

Belgium ....... 288 187.2 4.2 48.5 134.6 — — — — — 

West Vlaanderen . . , . 186 140.6 4.2 25.0 111.4 ___ — 
Vlaams Gewest . 90 37.1 —• 23.5 13.6 — • — , : ; ::n-
Bruxelles-Brussel . . . . \ 12 97> — — 9.6 — — • — — 

Denmark 160 65.4 — 24.5 27.9 — — — 8.6 4.8 

Vest for Storebaelt . . . . 123 50.7 24.5 21.4 _ _ 0.4 4.8 
Hovedstadsregionen . . 31 6.5 — — 6.0 — — — 0.5 — 
Oest for Storebaelt . . . . 6 8.2 — — 0.4 — 7.8 

Germany 900 1 37Z7 357.2 384.1 44.6 — 3.7 54.5 950.7 — 

Nordrhein-Westfalen . . . 318 631.2 157.0 19.0 29.8 3.7 19.8 550.0 
Niedersachsen.... ; 66 134.8 61.0 34.6 4.8 — — 13.5 87.8 
Sachsen ...... Γ/. 145 120.9 14.7 106.2 — — ^ — — 31.7 — 
Baden-Württemberg. . . . 43 73.1 9.8 2.0 3.3 — — 1.2 67.7 
Bayern  29 66.0 — 21.0 1.6 — — 5.2 41.0 
Brandenburg . j , . .:= j. 54 63.2 17.8 45.5 — — .. — — 25.7 — 
Thüringen . . ... . . 63 57.9 14.3 43.5 — — — — 23.7 

Sachsen-Anhalt . . . . . 56 54.8 6.6 48.1 — — — — 20.9 
Saarland. . . . t · ., • 16 39.1 36.6 2.5 — -r- — — 32.2 

Mecklenburg-Vorpommern. . 38 38.6 12.9 25.7 — — — 2.4 14.8 ' — 
Rheinland-Pfalz  20 26.2 2.0 3.0 3.8 — — 2.0 19.4 

Schleswig-Holstein . . . ·. 21 21.8 17.6 2.4 — — — 10.4 9.6 

Hessen . . . . . . .• ' 1 11 18.6 — 13.2 1.3 — •• — 17.3 Τ 
Bremen  4 10.8 6.8 4.0 — — — — 1.1 — 
Berlin. . . ... . . . 13 10.4 — 10.4 — — — — 2.5 '— 
Hamburg ....... 3 5.4 — 3.0 — .— 5.4 

Ό-
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Table J: Allocations from ongoing global loans in 1992 (continued) 
Breakdown by region and objective (amounts in million ecus) 

Total 
Regional 

development 
Non-assisted 

areas 

Infra- EIB own NCI 
Advanced 

tech- Environ-
Community 

infra-
Number Amount structure Industry resources resources notogy Energy ment structure 

Greece . . . 64 80.2 32.0 48.1 — — — — 27.2 — 

Kentriki Ellada 25 38.4 18.6 19.8 _ 15.3 
Nisia . 16 20.4 11.0 9.3 — — — _ 9.9 — 
Voreia Ellada 18 15.2 2.4 12.8 — — — — 1.9 — 
Attiki . 5 6.1 — 6.1 — — — — — 

Spain ....... 705 246.9 84.9 101.6 43.6 16.8 — — — — 

Andalucia. . ... . . 100 59.5 18.8 30.2 10.5 _ 
Comunidad ValencianOi . . 137 33.5 10.2 22.7 — 0.6 •• . — — — 
Castilla-León . . . . . 70 30.7 11.9 17.7 — 1.1 — • '^0 f..;- — 
Catalana  98 21.9 — 0.7 18.6 2.6 — ..\ • — — — 
Madrid 73 17.1 — — 17.1 — — — — — 
Castillo-La Moncho . . . 58 16.6 7.5 9.1 — — — — — — 
Extremoduro 18 13.9 12.2 1.8 — — — — — 
Galicio ....... 27 12.8 9.2 3.4 — 0.2 — .ό;ο'— — — 
Pais Vosco . . . . 38 8.7 — 6.5 2.3 — — — — 
Murcia . : ;. ;.- . . 18 7.7 3.4 2.8 — 1.5 — i' •• ' — 
Conorios . 11 7.0 5.0 2.0 — —.fio — 
Asturios . . . , 19 6.8 4.1 2.4 — 0.3 — 0 — ...._ 
Navarro . . . . . , . 8 4.7 1.9 — 2.8 — — ;. — 
Aragon  21 4.0 0.4 1.1 2.6 — — • — — 
Contobrio . ... - . 5 1.4 — 1.4 — — — — — 
La Rioja . . . . . ,. . 3 0.4 0.2 — 0.1 — — — — 
Baléares .   1 0,1 — 0.1 

~ " " 

France 4433 880.6 552.2 220.3 T03.2 — 56.3 1.0 

Rhône-Alpes .... . . 652 120.0 79.4 20.5 15.6 •• 8.8 — 
Provence-Côte d'Azur . . . 315 103.0 75.9 25.1 2.0 — — 0.2 

Bretagne  469 93.7 61.6 32.2 — „ — 87 — 
Nord — Pas-de-Calais . . . 348 84.7 60.9 23.7 — — — — 0.8 0.1 

Lorraine . 316 78.0 47.8 30.2 — — — — 67 — 
Midi-Pyrénées ...... 168 67.0 55.1 11.2 0.7 — . . . — 1.6 — 
Pays de la Loire . . . . . 220 62.9 50.9 10.5 1.5 — • 6.6 — 
Île-de-France . , \ . . . 488 32.9 — — 32.5 — — — 0.4 

Réunion . .. 79 34.6 31.2 3.4 — — — •• • — . — 
Alsace. . 248 29.9 1.9 10.3 17.6 — — y 3.2 —-· 

Auvergne . . ò'i . Ì . . . 78 23.9 19.3 4.3 0.4 — ' • :: 0.4 — 
Poitou-Charentes . . . . , 64 20.4 17.0 3.4 — 2.1 0.1 

Martinique ....... 44 19.2 11.5 7.7 — • — — — 
Limousin ........ 51 16.8 13.0 3.8 — — 2.2 

Franche-Comté . .. . . . 127 15.0 5.1 3.3 6.6 — — 5.1 — 
Aquitaine 135 12.6 4.4 8.0 0.3 — 4.4 — 
Centre . ..... ., . 128 11.8 0.2 2.9 8.6 — — 0.6 0,2 

Haute-Normandie.. . . • 98 11.1 — 4.3 6.8 — —. •• — — — 
Picardie . . y. 115 9.2 — 3.6 5.6 — 1.4 -y. 

Guadeloupe . . '. . i . .. 27 8.8 8.6 0,3 — !.. : :— — 
Bourgogne . . . . . . 56 7.6 2.7 3.1 1.8 —— , · 

ί — 27 •""·· 
Champagne-Ardenne . . 77 4.8 — 2.8 2.0 —— .. "" 
Guyane  6 4.8 4.8 — — — "" 
Basse-Normandie .... 77 4.4 0.3 2.9 1.2 ——· — 0.3 

Languedoc-Roussillon . . 44 3.3 0.7 2.6 — — — 0.7 

Corse  3 0.1 — 0.1 

Ireland ....... 1 0.6 — 0.6 — — — . . — — — 
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Table J: All ocations from ongoing global loons in 1992 (continued) 
Breakdown by region ond objective (amounts in million ecus} 

Total 
Regional 

development 
Non-assisted 

areas 

Number Amount 
Infra­

structure Industry 
EIB own 

resources 
NCI 

resources 

Advanced 
tech­

nology Energy 

Community 
Environ- infra-

ment structure 

Italy 1 927 1 047S 9Λ 561A 360.1 — 3.9 102.2 35.0 — 

Lombardia  140 147.3 107.1 28.5 15.2 
Emilia-Romagna . . . , 114 107.1 — 0.8 827 3.9 12.4 10.6 
Campania . . . , . , . 247 97.2 1.9 95.2 ·• 

1.9 _ 
Abruzzi  : 139 97.1 — 97.1 _ 
Piemonte  91 81.6 — — 58.5 — 20.8 2.3 __ 
Veneto  85 79.7 — 137 56.4 17.7 0.6 
Toscana  122 78.7 — 37.4 35.7 — 5.5 
Lazio .   72 54.2 2.3 47.6 4.4 2.3 __ 
Trentino-Alto Adige . . , 80 48.8 2.3 43.1 57 _ 
Marche ...... . i 130 47.7 — 47.6 0.1 _ 
Sicilia.  144 42.5 — 42.5 _ .. 
Puglia  199 37.7 2.6 35.0 — 2.6 _ 
Umbria  58 33.8 — 30.4 2.7 0.8 _ 
Liguria  53 28.0 15.2 7.0 _ 5.9 
Sardegna  • 115 22.1 — 22.1 — _ _ 
Basilicata  ^ 52 21.5 — 21.5 ... 
Friuli-Venezia Giulia. . 39 10.3 — 0.1 5.7 4.5 _ • 
Molise  16 6.2 6.2 
Calabria  31 6.1 — 6.1 — — — — — — 

Netherlands 202 97.3 — 25J 72.0 — — — — — 

West-Nederlond .... 91 39.4 4.8 34.6 
Zuid-Nederland .... 47 26.3 5.8 20.5 
Oost-Nederland .... 49 24.5 9.2 15.3 _ 
Noord-Nederland . . . 15 7.1 — 5.4 1.7 — — — -

Portugal 108 93.1 44J 48.6 — — — 8.8 1Z4 — 

Lisboa e Vale do Tejo . . . 27 43.8 16.2 27.6 12.4 
Morte  44 28.7 17.2 11.5 4.1 
Centre 28 18.5 10.7 7.7 4.8 
Alentejo  8 1.7 0.4 1.3 _ 
Madeira , 1 0.4 — 0.4 — — - — —· — 
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Table Κ: Allocations from ongoing global loans from 1988 to 1992 
General summary (amounts in million ecus) 

Total EIB own resources NCI resources 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount 

Total allocations 1988-1992 ('). 40 678 14 444.5 38 946 13 778.6 1 732 665.9 

Regional development .... 25 664 8 818.7 25 664 8 8187 — — 
Infrastructure 2 328 2 426.2 2 328 2 426.2 — —· 

SMEs in assisted areas . . . 23 336 6 392.5 23 336 6 392.5 — — 
Energy policy objectives . . . 429 489.8 420 482.5 9 7.3 
Advanced technology .... 550 436.7 550 436.7 — — 
SMEs in non-assisted areas . . , 13 369 3 635.9 11 646 2 977.3 1 723 658.6 
Environment 1 404 1 98 8.4 1 404 1 988.4 — , —• 
Community infrastructure . . . 39 31.5 39 31.5 — • η— 
I*) As some allocations meet several ob[ectÌves, the totols ior the different headings cannot be meaningfully added together. 

Table L: Al locations from ongoing global loans from 1988 to 1992 
Breakdown by region and objective (amounts in million ecus) 

Total 
Regional 

development 
Non-assisted 

areas 
Advanced 

tech­
nology 

Community 
infra­

structure Number Amount 
Infra­

structure Industry 
EIB own 

resources 
NCI 

resources 

Advanced 
tech­

nology Energy 
Environ­

ment 

Community 
infra­

structure 

Belgium 708 537.2 4.2 183.3 326.1 23.6 — — — — 

Vlaams Gewest .... 459 418.5 4.2 113.2 283.0 18.1 — — — — 
Région Wallonne . . . . 209 94.5 — 70.1 20.8 3.5 — — — — 
Bruxelles-Brussel .... 40 24.3 — — 22.3 2.1 

~ ~ 

Denmark 767 307J 32.8 89.5 99.1 6^6 — — 44.9 4.8 

Vest fo r Storebœlt . . . 560 236.9 23.5 85.4 72.8 46.0 24.3 4.8 

Hovedstodsregionen. . . 
Oest for Storebœlt . . . 

153 
54 

51.1 
19.5 

7.8 
1.6 4.1 

25.0 
1.3 

14.4 
2.1 — — 

10.2 
10.4 — 

Germany .... . . 2400 2 507.1 698.6 658.3 230.9 — 58.4 m.7 1 539.0 — 

Nordrhein-Westfolen , . 
Niedersachsen. . . . . 
Boden-Württemberg. . . 
Bayern . 
Sachsen . 
Saarland  
Rheinland-Pfalz . . . . 
Brandenburg  
Hessen . 
Thüringen  
Sachsen-Anhalt . . . .  
Schleswig-Holstein . . .  
Mecklenburg-Vorpommem. 
Bremen  
Hamburg . . . . . >  
Berlin  

701 
206 
572 
124 
188 
34 
65 
84 
75 
84 
79 
50 
73 
19 
26 
20 

1 116.4 
302.7 
226.2 
146.9 
129.3 

78.5 
70.6 
68.8 
66.8 
63.2 
58.2 
53.9 
42.3 
39.9 
26.5 
16.8 

348.7 
147.5 

9.9 

14.7 
62.8 
5.4 

17.8 

14.3 
6.6 

36.1 
12.9 
21.2 

0.7 

110.9 
101.8 

3.3 
29.3 

114.6 
15.6 
20.4 
51.0 
16.5 
48.9 
51.6 

6.7 
29.4 
18.7 
22.9 
16.8 

102.0 
9.4 

53.0 
22.4 

4.6 

53.8 

26.2 
16.4 
12.9 
14.8 

11.1 2.6 

31.2 

1.2 21.9 
2.4 

14.4 
0.6 

821.4 
179.6 
117.2 

87.0 
31.7 
71.0 
38.6 
25.7 
33.2 
25.9 
20.9 
30.3 
14.8 
18.5 
15.8 

7.3 
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Table L; Allocations from ongoing global loans from 1988 to 1992 (continued) 

Breakdown by region and objective (amounts in million ecus) 

Kentriki Eliada 
Voreia Ellada . 
Nisia . . . . 
Attiki . . . . 
Multiregional . 

Total 
Regionol  

development 
Non-ossisted 

areas 
Advanced 

tech­
nology Number Amount 

Infra­
structure Industry 

EIB own NCI 
resources resources 

Advanced 
tech­

nology Energy 
Environ­

ment 

Community 
infra­

structure 

Greece ... 429 305.9 108.0 194.7 — 3.3 — 14.6 27.9 — 

105 84.3 28.2 55.2 — 0.9 — 1.5 15.3 — 
113 74.7 33.9 40.7 — 0.1 — 5.3 2.6 — 
128 66.0 36.4 29.3 — 0.3 — 6.4 9.9 1 
79 45.7 9.4 34.3 — 2.0 — 1.4 — 

4 35.2 0.1 35.1 _ _ 

Spain 

Andalucia . . . . , 
Cataluna . . . . , 
Madrid 
Comunidad Valenciana. 
Castilla-León . . . . 
Galicia 
Castilla-La Mancha . . 
Canarias . . . . . 
Murcia 
Pais Vasco . . . . . 
Extremadura , . . . 
Aragon ...... 
Asturias 
Navarro 
Contobria . . . . . 
Baléares...... 
La Riojo 

France 

Rhône-Alpes . . .  
Bretagne ....  
Île-de-France . . .  
Provence-Côte d'Azur 
Nord — Pas-de-Calais 
Pays de la Loire . . 
Lorraine  
Alsace  
Aquitaine ....  
Midi-Pyrénées ...  
Languedoc-Roussillon 
Basse-Normandie 
Auvergne . . . . , 
Centre  
Poitou-Charentes. . .  
Franche-Comté . . .  
Haute-Normandie . . 
Réunion  
Picardie ...... 
Limousin  
Bourgogne  
Chompogne-Ardenne . 
Martinique  
Guadeloupe . . . . 
Guyane  
Corse  

3 359 1 431.7 280.7 737.7 225.9 119.1 — 3S 

593 
446 
329 
401 
359 
137 
249 
112 
146 
130 
137 
107 
70 
55 
38 
14 
36 

280.5 
178.2 
151.1 
145.2 
140.5 
101.3 

85.1 
67.9 
65.6 
56.8 
47.1 
37.5 
22.8 
19.1 
14.1 
10.6 

8.4 

51.5 

1.9 
18.5 
45.7 
70.4 
29.4 
5.6 

16.9 
0.9 

26.0 
1.2 
9.7 
1.9 
1.0 

0.2 

213.8 
38.9 

9.4 
95.6 
82.5 
28.5 
45.4 
60.6 
45.0 
45.8 
21.0 
15.1 
12.6 
0.9 

12.6 
8.7 
1.0 

20 059 3 011.6 1 161.4 1 119.4 

2 833 
1 324 
3 232 
1 287 
1 001 
1 086 
1 200 
1 377 

827 
669 
431 
512 
337 
718 
328 
496 
530 
113 
491 
185 
470 
480 
70 
28 
7 

27 

343.6 
289.8 
277.9 
251.0 
236.7 
209.3 
197.3 
184.7 
179.9 
146.0 
123.5 

68.1 
62.0 
61.9 
54.3 
52.2 
47.6 
39.9 
38.7 
36.6 
36.5 
35.5 
23.6 
8.9 
4.8 
1.6 

141.0 
108.6 

134.3 
127.1 

89.2 
65.9 
11.8 

104.0 
91.9 
84.0 
36.1 
34.8 

0.8 
28.4 
7.7 
2.3 

31.2 
7.0 

24.4 
5.7 
0.5 

11.5 
8.6 
4.8 

75.2 
176.3 

1.8 
111.4 
107.6 
101.8 
122.5 
82.2 
72.4 
51.3 
39.1 
18.6 
21.7 
5.9 

25.0 
11.3 
17.9 

8.7 
9.1 

12.1 
12.1 
22.5 
11.8 
0.3 
0.0 
1.1 

1.3 
93.1 
75.0 
11.3 
5.9 
0.1 
3.1 

1.5 
43 

13.0 
0.2 

11.6 
0.1 
0.4 
4.8 

613.1 

13.5 
30.1 
33.0 
13.3 
6.4 
2.3 
7.1 
1.7 
2.2 
2.9 
0.1 
3.2 
0.3 
1.4 
0.4 
0.3 
1.0 

103.2 

— 2.1 

— 1.3 

2.5 Z2 118.3 T0.6 

100.5 17.9 0.3 — 16S 0.6 
— 4.9 — — 10.2 — 

254.1 18.6 0.9 1.0 , 1.2 0.4 
2.0 2.6 0.6 — 1.3 0.2 
— 2.0 — — 0.8 3.4 

13.5 4.8 0.2 — 7.5 0.4 
0.5 8.4 — — 23.7 1.3 

88.0 2.7 0.1 — 16.7 
0.6 1.9 0.3 1.0 10.4 0.6 
2.1 0.7 — — 3.8 0.2 
— 0.4 — — 0.7 0.7 

9.6 3.8 — — 0.3 — 
3.1 2.5 — — 0.4 

407 14.3 — 0.3 0.6 0.8 
0.9 0.1 — 7.1 0.9 

23,3 4.8 — — 8.5 __ 
24.3 3.1 — — — 

— — — — _ 
21.7 0.9 — — 1.4 __ 

— 0.2 — — 2.2 
16.8 1.9 0.1 — 5.1 0.6 
7.3 5.1 0.1 — — 0.5 
— 0.3 — — — — 
— — — — — — 
— — — — — 
— 0.5 — — — 
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Table L: Allocations from ongoing global loans from 1988 to 1992 (continued) 

Breakdown by region and objective (amounts in mlîlion ecus) 

lì leglonol Non-c assisted 
Total development areas 

Advanced Community 
EIB own NCI tech­ Environ­ infra­

Number Amount structure Industry resources resources nology Energy ment structure 

Ireland 88 22.0 — 22.0 — — — — — — 

Italy 10145 5 239.8 68.3 : 26774Î 1 28a7 247.4 375.8 54a9 242.2 16.1 

Lombardia . . ..... 847 845.2 _ 2.6 398.5 84.7 161.5 129.5 106.8 — 

Emilia-Romagna . ' 595 491.9 — 9.2 276.4 48.2 37.3 85.4 39.6 —r 

Veneto . . * . ° " ϊ 633 481.8 8.8 71.8 232.8 60.7 43.2 52.6 16.6 16.1 

Piemonte . . . . - . · 420 443.3 — 0.4 214.2 25.1 89.2 90.9 33.4 

Campania ....... 1 137 375.3 2.0 373.3 — — — 9.5 0.7 — 

Toscana  649 356.7 — 175.6 116.4 21.5 18.1 38.7 27.7 — 

Trentino-Alto Adige . . . . 570 354.0 5,9 332.9 — 0.3 _ 21.6 — —-

Lazio . .... . . . ; 342 293.2 5.1 246.7 8.4 0.7 14.1 16.3 7.1 — 

Marche JlJ! ' 613 263.6 4.7 253.8 0.3 — 5.0 9.4 — 

Abruzzi  471 228.8 5.2 223.6 — — — 6.7 — 
Sicilia . ; :.: . . . • · 929 222.7 8.6 214.1 — — — 11.2 6.2 

Puglia . . . ..... . 1 047 194.8 14.6 180.1 — — — 14.6 — 
Sardegna . . . . . . · 705 175.1 — 175.1 — — — — — 
Umbria . , . . . . . · 255 157.0 1.3 147.6 2.7 — 73 13.7 0.8 —f-

Liguria . . . . . · · 207 99.0 4.5 53.1 26.7 4.3 — 14.9 — 

Basilicata . : . . ' . ; 255 86.4 0.3 86.1 — — 1.6 ~ • ~ 
Friuli-Venezia Giulia, . ' , f. . 176 80.7 0.6 55.2 7.3 — ;—' 14.8 3.4 r— 

Calabria . . . . · · - 211 45.3 6.7 38.6 — — — 6.7 

Molise . . . 76 36.9 — 36.9 — — — — — 

Multiregional North .... 3 7.6 — — — 1.9 — 5.6 

Multiregional Mezzogiorno . 4 0.7 0.7 

Netherlands . . . 344 283.5 1.1 93.0 189.4 — — — .. — — 

West-Nederland . . . . 146 106.3 20.8 85.4 — — — 

Oost-Nederland . . . . . 88 77.0 — 31.1 45.9 — •.—; — "" 
Zuid-Nederland ..... 77 72.3 — 19.6 52.6 — •— 
Noord-Nederland .... 33 28.0 1.1 21.5 5.4 

Portugal . . . · 2 102 624.3 71.2 520.3 — 31.5 — 17.4 m — 

Norte . , . . . • · · 684 197.7 29.0 163.8 — 4.9 — 10.9 — — 

Centre . . . . . . · · 696 197.1 15.8 163.2 — 16.9 — 6.4 0.2 -rrr 

Lisboa e Vale do Tejo . . . 530 178.4 19.0 153.1 — 6.3 — 0.05 12.4 

Alentejo  
Algorve ; · 

105 
44 

18.6 
14.1 

1.3 16.9 
9.1 — 

0.4 
2.4 — — — 

Madeira ... ...M.· 11 9.7 2.7 9.0 — 0.8 

Multiregiondl . .. . : . . , 13 4.4 — 4.4 — 
Açores . .: . · . · · ' « 19 4.2 3.3 0.9 

United Kingdom .... 277 173.9 — 96.9 9.0 67.9 — — — -r 

South East ....... 75 40.3 — — 40.3 — — — —· 

North West . . .- . . V 35 26.3 — 22.6 2.3 1.4 — T" 

Eost Midlands 32 20.3 — 10.6 — 9.7 

Scotland .. ; •· ; , »"'ν·'" 17 18.0 — 167 1.3 

Wales . . . . . . . · 23 17.3 — 17.3 — 
West Midlands 29 14.7 — 9.2 — 5.5 

North 15 12.6 — 10.5 17 0.5 

Yorkshire and Humberside 18 10.1 — 8.4 — 1.7 

South West . . . . . : J 18 7.6 — 17 0.2 5.8 — 

East Anglia t , . . . - · • 15 6.6 — — 3.5 3.1 

Grand Total 40 678 14 444.5 2 426.2 6392J 2 977.3 658.6 436.7 689.7 1 988.4 313 
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Table M: Financing provided from 1976 to 1992 in the ACP Stotes under the Lomé Conventions ond in the OCT 
Geographical breakdown 

AFRICA 
West Africa 
Regional 
Nigeria . 
Côte d'Ivoire . . ^ „ 
Ghana .1 
Senegal .... . ? 
Mauritania . . . ii 
Guinea . . . . V' 
Mali ..... ; : 
Burkina Faso . . . ; 
Togo 
Benin 
Niger . 
Sierra Leone .... 
Guinea-Bissau .... 
Liberia 
Cape Verde 
Gambia 
Cent & Equat. Africa 
Regional . . . . . . 
Cameroon . . . . > . 
Zaire . . . . 
Congo . . . . . ί . , 
Gabon , 
Burundi 
Chad 
Rwanda 
Central African Republic 
Equatorial Guinea . . . . 
Sao Tomé e Principe . . . 
East Africa ...... 
Regional 
Kenya . . 
Tanzania .... . = , / . 
Ethiopia . y ? , 
Sudan . . ·. . . V t j, 
Uganda . . . . '. . . 
Somalia . 
Seychelles. . . .. . . ;. 
Djibouti ....... 
Southern Africa . . . . 
Zimbabwe 
Zambia . 
Malawi . 
Botswana....... 
Madagascar . . . . , . 
Mauritius , 
Swaziland . ... .. . 
Mozambique . . . = .= =. 
Lesotho . . . .... 
Angola •.. : ^ 
Comoros ..... ; 
Namibia ' . 
Multiregional project . . . 
CARIBBEAN . . . 
Regional . 
Trinidad and Tobago . . 
Jamaica 
Barbados 
Bahamas 
Guyana 
Saint Lucia 
St Vincent & the Grenadines 
Dominica 
Suriname   
Grenada Λ:;. 
Belize J . 
Dominican Republic . . 
St Christopher & Nevis . . 
Antigua 

Total EIB own resources 

Total 
Lomé Lomé 

Total 1 + II + III Lomé IV Total 1 + II + III Lomé IV 
2 672.9 2 229.9 443.0 1 664.5 1 385.0 279.5 
7 220.0 944.8 275.2 863.2 664.7 198.5 

30.3 30.3 — 15.0 15.0 
436.0 306.0 130.0 433.0 303.0 130.0 
198.1 191.6 6.5 191.2 185.7 5.5 

98.3 78.3 20.0 57.0 37.0 20.0 
82.0 69.0 13.0 46.0 33.0 13.0 
78Ô 53.5 25.0 40.0 25.0 15.0 
77.7 34.7 43.0 26.9 11.9 15.0 
40.3 30.3 10.0 — 
38.3 35.3 3.0 8.0 8.0 _ 
37.8 37.8 — 20.7 20.7 
31.9 31.9 — 13.5 13.5 
31.2 31.2 — 16.0 16.0 
15.5 7.5 8.0 
14.3 7.3 7.0 
14.0 14.0 — 10.9 10.9 _ 
13.8 8.4 5.4 
12.4 8.1 4.3 — — — 

403.4 394.9 8.5 239.9 238.4 1.5 
8.1 8.1 — 7.6 7.6 

135.8 134.3 .1.5 129.8 128.3 1.5 
95.7 88.7 7.0 50.0 50.0 
57.9 57.9 — 28.1 28.1 _ 
34.5 34.5 — 32.0 32.0 _ 
20.6 20.6 — — 
17.7 17.7 — 
17.7 17.7 — 
15.1 15.1 — 
6.0 6.0 — 
2.4 2.4 — 

420.9 369.7 51.2 193.4 173.4 20.0 
6.5 6.5 — 6.0 6.0 

199.9 177.9 22.0 186.9 166.9 20.0 
64.5 45.3 19.2 5.0 5.0 
50.0 44.0 6.0 
38.5 38.5 — _ 
29.9 25.9 4.0 — _ 
25.2 25.2 — _ 
7.6 7.6 — 1.5 1.5 
5.4 5.4 — — 

577.5 483.4 94.1 354.0 308.5 45.5 
151.9 110.8 41.1 146.0 105.0 41.0 

81.9 71.9 10.0 42.0 42.0 
77.8 63.0 14.8 32.5 32.5 _ 
67.8 65.3 2.5 62.0 59.5 2.5 
61.1 54.6 6.5 
55.9 50.8 5.1 46.5 44.5 2.0 
36.7 33.2 3.5 25.0 25.0 
18.0 15.0 3.0 
12.6 12.6 — 

7.1 4.0 3.1 
4.2 2.2 2.0 _ 
— — — — — 

51.0 37.0 14.0 14.0 — 14.0 
259.5 202.5 57.0 197.7 147.7 50.0 

5.0 5.0 — 3.0 3.0 
94.9 56.9 38.0 92.0 54.0 38.0 
57.6 45.6 12.0 50.3 38.3 12.0 
25.4 25.4 — 24.3 24.3 
17.6 17.6 — 17.6 17.6 
11.2 11.2 
9.6 9.6 — •, 6.0 6.0 
9.0 9.0 — 3.0 3.0 
7.3 4.8 2.5 ___ 
7.3 7.3 — _ 
6.6 5.1 1.5 
6.1 6.1 — 4.5 4.5 
3.0 — 3.0 
2.5 2.5 
1.5 1.5 — — _ 

(million ecus) 
Budgetory re sources 
Lomé 

Totol 1 + II + III Lomé IV 

1 008.4 844.9 163.5 
356.8 280.1 76.7 
15.3 15.3 — 
3.0 3.0 
6.9 5.9 1.0 

41.3 41.3 —. 
36.0 36.0 — 
38.5 28.5 10.0 
50.8 22.8 28.0 
40.3 30.3 10.0 
30.3 27.3 3.0 
17.1 17.1 
18.4 18.4 
15.2 15.2 — 
15.5 7.5 8.0 
14.3 7.3 7.0 

3.1 3.1 — 
13.8 8.4 5.4 
12.4 8.1 4.3 

163.5 156.5 70 
0.5 0.5 _ 
6.0 6.0 — 

45.7 38.7 7.0 
29.8 29.8 

2.5 2.5 . 
20.6 20.6 
17.7 17.7 
17.7 17.7 
15.1 15.1 

6.0 6.0 
2.4 2.4 — 

227.5 196.3 31.2 
0.5 0.5 — 

13.0 11.0 2.0 
59.5 40.3 19.2 
50.0 44.0 6.0 
38.5 38.5 
29.9 25.9 4.0 
25.2 25.2 
6.1 6.1 — 
5.4 5.4 — 

223.5 174.9 48.6 
5.9 5.8 0.1 

39.9 29.9 10.0 
45.3 30.5 14.8 
5.8 5.8 

61.1 54.6 6.5 
9.4 6.3 3.1 

11.7 8.2 3.5 
18.0 15.0 3.0 
12.6 12.6 

7.1 4.0 3.1 
4.2 2.2 2.0 
2.5 — 2.5 

37.0 370 — 
61.8 54.8 7.0 

2.0 2.0 
2.9 2.9 
7.3 7.3 
1.1 1.1 — 
— — 

11.2 11.2 
3.6 3.6 
6.0 6.0 
7.3 4.8 2.5 
7.3 7.3 
6.6 5.1 1.5 
1.6 1.6 
3.0 — 3.0 
2.5 2.5 
1.5 1.5 — 
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Table M: Financing provided from 1976 to 1992 in the ACP Stotes under the Lomé Conventions ond in the OCT 
(continued) 

Geographical breakdown (million ecus) 
Total 

Total 

PACIFIC . 217.1 
Papua New Guinee . . . 109.1 
Fiji : . 88.9 
Western Samoa .... 7.5 
Tonga 6.1 
Vanuatu - 3.0 
Solomon Islands .... 2.2 
Kiribati . 0.2 
Tuvalu 0.1 

Totol: ACP 3 149.5 

OCT 78.8 
Netherlands Antilles . . . 22.6 
French Polynesia .... 15.9 
New Caledonia 11-0 
Cayman Islands 8.0 
Aruba 6.7 
British Virgin Islands . . . 4.0 
Montserrat 3.3 
Falkland Islands. . , . . . 2.6 
Mayotte . ;. . » ? · 2.2 
Anguilla . . . ... 1.5 
West Indies ...... 1-0 

Grond Total: ACP and OCT 3 228.2 

Lomé 
I + II + III Lomé IV 

210.1 
107.1 

83.9 
7.5 
6.1 
3.0 
2.2 
0.2 
0.1 

7.0 
2.0 
5.0 

2 642.5 507.0 

63.8 
15.6 
15.9 
11.0 

6.0 
4.2 
4.0 
3.3 
0.1 
1.2 
1.5 
1.0 

15.0 
7.0 

2.0 
2.5 

2.5 
1.0 

2 706.2 522.0 

EIB o wn resources Budgetary resources 

Total I + 
Lomé 

I + III 

169.4 
87.9 
79.5 

2.0 

2031.5 

55.5 
19.8 
11.0 
7.0 
8.0 
3.3 
3.0 
0.9 
2.5 

2 087.0 

164.4 
87.9 
74.5 

2.0 

1 697.0 

42.0 
12.8 
11.0 
7.0 
6.0 
1.3 
3.0 
0.9 

Lomé IV Total I + 
Lomé  

1 + lit 

1 739.0 

5.0 

5.0 

47.7 
21.2 
9.4 
7.5 
4.1 
3.0 
2.2 
0.2 
0.1 

334.5 1 117 .9 

13.5 
7.0 

2.0 
2.0 

2.5 

23.3 
2.8 
4.9 
4.0 

3.4 
1.0 
2.4 
0.1 
2.2 
1.5 
1.0 

348.0 1 141.2 

45.7 
19.2 
9.4 
7.5 
4.1 
3.0 
2.2 
0.2 
0.1 

945.4 

21.8 
2.8 
4.9 
4.0 

2.9 
1.0 
2.4 
0.1 
1.2 
1.5 
1.0 

967.2 

Lomé IV 

2.0 
2.0 

172.5 

1.5 

0.5 

1.0 

174.0 

Table N: ACP States and OCT from 1976 to 1992 
(financing operations and allocations from ongoing global loans) 

(amounts in mill ion ecus) 

Lomé IV Lomé 1 + II + III 

Financing operations 
Amount % Number 

Allocations 
Amount 

Financing operations 
Amount % Number 

Allocotions 
Amount 

Energy . 150.9 28.9 — — 664.6 24.1 9 53 

Production 
Conventional thermal power stations . . . 
Hydroelectric and geothermal power stations 
Oil and natural gas deposits . . · · · 
Tronsmission ond supply . . . 
Electricity , κ ;; Τ , . 
Oil _ 
Sectoro! restructuring .  

120.4 
45.4 
20.0 
55.0 
30.5 
28.0 

2.5 

30.0 

11.0 
19.0 
19.0 
37.3 

1.5 

Infrastructure ^7.8 

Tronsport 
Railways - ? . . 
Shipping · τ ; - . r - · 
Airlines 
Telecommunications . . . .; . 
Woter cotchment, treatment, supply . . . 
Agriculturol and forestry development . . 

Industry, agriculture, services 283.3 

Industry 
Mining and quarrying 
Metal production and semi-processing . . . 
Chemicals · · 
Foodstuffs 
Textiles and leather . . . . 
Other manufacturing industries . . . · , -
Support for industry :. · · 
Agriculture, forestry, fisheries ..... 
Services 
Globol loons 
Development bonks  
Total 572.0 

124.7 
28.1 
15.0 
41.0 
18.6 
22.0 

4.5 
153.5 

0.6 

23.1 
8.7 
3.8 

10.5 
5.8 
5.4 
0.5 

16.8 

5.7 

2.1 
3.6 
3.6 
7.1 
0.3 

54.3 

23.9 
5.4 
2.9 
7.9 
3.6 
4.2 

0.9 
29.4 
0.1 

158.4 
229.3 
32.5 

214.4 
201.4 

13.0 
30.0 

— 443.1 

116.6 
10.0 
68.1 
38.5 

140.0 
185.5 

1.0 

39 16.6 1 648.4 

26 
1 

3 
6 

16 

2 
11 

10.7 
1.0 

12 
2.7 

5.8 

0.7 
5.2 

1 007.2 
248.7 

47.5 
66.7 

350.2 
112.8 
156.3 

25.0 
85 

64.3 
538.3 

35.1 

5.7 
8.3 
1.2 
7.8 
7.3 
0.5 
1.1 

16.1 

4.2 
0.4 
2.5 
1.4 
5.1 
6.7 
0.0 

59.8 
363 

9.0 
1.7 
2.4 

12.7 
4.1 
5.7 

0.1 
23 

19.5 
1.3 

100.0 39 16.6 2 756.1 100.0 

3 
3 

3 
3 

1087 

765 
22 
9 

54 
185 
114 
381 

31 
279 

12 

1 101 

1.8 
0.7 

3.0 
3.0 

80 

1.0 

0.8 
0.2 
1.0 

442.0 
358.0 

11.1 
4.0 

30.6 
87.4 
75.4 

149.5 

10.8 
68.8 

4.4 

449.5 
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Table Ο: Financing provided in the Mediterranean Countries from 1988 to 1992 

Geographical breakdown (amounts in million ecus) 

Total 
EIB own 

resources 
Budgetary 
resources 

Amount % Amount Amount 

Former Yugoslavia ...... 
Algeria . . 
Morocco . . . 
Tunisia . :. ., . 
Egypt ......... ; 
Jordan . . , . 
Syria ........ . . 
Israel . . . . .: , . . . 
Malta . 
Cyprus 

28.0 
14.8 
15.1 
13.1 
17.4 
5.0 
1.3 
3.5 
1.8 
1.2 

450.0 
234.0 
231.0 
198.0 
270.3 
78.0 
20.4 
57.0 
26.0 
15.0 

4.0 
11.0 
13.0 
9.2 
2.0 

2.5 
5.0 

Total . . . 100.0 1 564.7 41.7 

Table P: Mediterranean Countries from 1988 to 1992 
(financing operations and allocations from ongoing global loans) 

Sectoral breakdown 

Financing operations 

Amount 

Energy and infrastructure 1 244.1 
Energy 
Production 
Conventional thermal power stations 
Hydroelectric power stations . . 
Oil and natural gas deposits . . 
Transmission and supply .... 
Electricity 
Natural gas 
Transport 
Railways 
Roads 
Shipping 
Airlines 
Telecommunications 
Water, sewerage, solid waste . . 
Other infrastructure 

187.7 
45.0 
45.0 

142.7 
777.7 
25.0 

569.0 
77.0 

476.0 

16.0 
80.0 

19Z0 

76.5 

11.5 
2.8 
2.8 

8.8 
7.2 
7.5 

85.0 
4.7 

29.3 

1.0 
4.9 

11.8 

(amounts in million ecus) 

Number 

Allocations 

Amount 

14.2 

0.4 

0.4 

13.8 

Industry, agriculture, services 23.5 1 437 199.1 
Industry 
Agriculture, forestry, fisheries .... 
Services 
Global loans 
Development bonks 

5.2 

0.2 
18.0 
0.1 

281 
1 020 

136 

110.5 
44.2 
44J 

Total 100.0 1 443 2113 

Table Q: Financing provided in the Central and Eastern European Countries from 1990 to 1992 

Geographical and sectoral breakdown 

Amount 

Bulgaria 
Hungary . , . ... 
Poland ........... . , 
Romania 
Former Czech and Slovak Fed. Rep. . . 

Total 

115.0 
305.0 
290.0 
25.0 
85.0 

820.0 

Total 

14.0 
37.2 
35,4 
3.0 

10.4 

100.0 

Energy Transport 

45.0 
50.0 
50.0 
25.0 

70.0 
70.0 

170.0 140.0 

(amounts in million ecus] 

Telecom­
munications 

70.0 
80.0 
70.0 

220.0 

Sector 

Industry 
(global loans) 

105.0 
100.0 

85.0 

290.0 
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Table R: Resources raised in 1992 
(amount in million ) 

Month of iss ue Place of iss ue 
Subscription 

currency 

I. Medium and long-term operations (before swaps) 

PUBLIC BORROWING OPERATIONS 

January 

February 

Germany 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 

United Kingdom 
Spain 

Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Switzerland 

Spain 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 

France 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 

Spain 
Luxembourg 

Portugal 
United Kingdom 

Germany 
Belgium 

Luxembourg 
United Kingdom 

Germany 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 

United Kingdom 
Germany 

Netherlands 
Australia 
Germany 

Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Switzerland 

Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 

United Kingdom 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 
Luxembourg 

United Kingdom 
Switzerland 
Switzerland 

48 operations 

PRIVATE BORROWING OPERATIONS 

March 

April 

May 

June 

July 

August 

October 

November 

December 

iSr 1 

MEDIUM-TERM NOTES 

7 operations 

6 operations 

Total (I) 

II. Short-term operations 

Commercial paper 

Grand Total (1 + 11) 

DEM 
ITL 

USD 
GBP 
ESP 

ECU 
FRF 
SEK  

USD 
JPY 

CHF 
ESP 

CAD 
JPY 
FRF 

ECU 
USD 
ESP 
JPY 
PTE 

GBP 
DEM 

BEF 
JPY 

GBP 
DEM 
ECU 
FRF 
ITL 

CAD 
DEM 
NLG  
AUD 
DEM 

FRF 
USD 
JPY 

CHF 
LUF 
ITL 

USD 
CAD 

FRF 
USD 
JPY 

GBP 
CHF 
CHF 

ECU 
DEM 
NLG  

ITL 
CHF 
USD 

USD 

Amount Life Coupon 
Amount in ecus (years) (%) 

500 245.6 10 8.000 
500 000 324.2 10 10.500 

400 298.3 10 7.125 
100 139.6 5 10.000 

15 000 115.7 10 10.125 
500 500.0 10 variable 

3 000 431.4 10 8.500 
1 000 134.2 7 10.000 

500 372.9 7 7.125 
60 000 358.1 3 5.000 

200 110.0 6 6.500 
20 000 154.2 5 10.200 

500 322.4 10 8.875 
20 000 119.4 3 5.000 
2 000 288.8 8 8.800 

400 400.0 12 8.500 
500 402.0 5 7.000 

25 000 193.6 5 10.000 
35 000 211.6 16 variable 

15 000 85.2 7 10.400 
200 279.8 10 9.000 
300 146.9 6 8.000 

10 000 237.9 10 8.750 
50 000 302.3 8 5.875 

200 279.8 10 9.000 
1 000 487.9 5 8.000 

550 550.0 10 9.000 
2 000 290.3 5 8.875 

500 000 322.6 10 11.250 
450 280.1 10 8.125 
300 146.4 10 variable 

500 216.5 10 variable 

350 194.7 7 7.750 
1 000 507.3 10 7.500 
2 000 300.2 10 8.750 

400 286.1 10 variable 

50 000 299.0 5 4.500 
300 174.4 12 6.750 

2 000 49.2 5 8.000 
150 000 86.7 5 12.750 

100 71.5 10 variable 

200 114.4 5 7.250 
1 000 150.1 10 8.750 

120 85.8 4 5.750 
25 000 149.5 5 4.500 

200 254.0 5 7.000 
500 290.7 8 6.250 
500 290.7 

12052.1 
5 6.000 

180 
100 
200 

100 000 
150 
100 

305 

180.0 
48.8 
86.6 
64.9 
81.1 
74.6 

"5^ 

219.8 

12 807.8 

ITL 200 000 111.9 

2-7 
10 
15 
10 
10 

5 

2-8 

S.500-8.800 
8.300 

7.8195 
10.500 

7.250 
4.880 

4.280-6.520 

12919J 
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Table S; Resources raised from 1988 to 1992 (after swaps) 

USD 
CHF 
JPY 
ATS 

308 
556 
314 

4.0 
7.3 
4.1 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %' 

Community currencies 
ECU 
DEM 
FRF 
GBP 
ITL 
BEF 
NLG 
DKK 

1 32 9 
1 545 

854 
752 
652 
473 
500 

17.3 
20.2 
11.1 
9.8 
8.5 
6.2 
6.5 

1 83 9 
959 

1 164 
1 76 9 

626 
346 
317 

3 

20.4 
10.6 
12.9 
19.6 

6.9 
3.8 
3.5 

1 765 
1 124 
1 114 
1 331 

851 
330 
528 

16.1 
10.2 
10.1 
12.1 
7.7 
3.0 
4.8 

2 500 
1 19 8 
1 378 
1 837 
1 466 

166 
369 

18.3 
8.8 

10.1 
13.4 
107 

1.2 
2.7 

1 937 
1 583 
1 461 
1 428 
1 326 

238 
303 

14.9 
12.2 
11.3 
11.0 
10.2 
1.8 
2.3 

IEP 
LUF 
GRD 

32 
85 

0.4 
1.1 

52 
92 

0.6 
1.0 52 0.5 24 0.2 49 0.4 

ESP 
PTE 

237 
29 

3.1 
0.4 

701 
86 

7.8 
1.0 

614 
124 

5.6 
1.1 

813 
250 

5.9 
1.8 

648 
85 

5.0 
0.7 

Total 
of which: fixed 
of which: floating 

6488 
5 657 

831 

84.6 
73.8 
10.8 

7 954 
7 206 

748 

88.0 
79.8 
8.3 

7 833 
6 055 
1 77 8 

71.2 
55.1 
16.2 

10002 
6 812 
3 190 

73.2 
49.8 
23.3 

9 058 
5 962 
3 096 

69.8 
46.0 
23.9 

385 4.3 1 57 4 14.3 2 262 16.5 1 529 11.8 
264 2.9 818 7.4 782 5.7 947 7.3 
432 4.8 771 7.0 627 4.6 1 440 11.1 

Total 
of which: fixed 
of which: floating 

1 178 
1 10 1 

77 

15.4 
14.4 
1.0 

1 080 
1 080 

1Z0 
12.0 

3163 
3 084 

79 

28.8 
28.0 
0.7 

3 670 
3 413 

257 

26.8 
25.0 
1.9 

3 916 
2 924 

992 

30.2 
22.5 
7.6 

Grand Total 
of which: fixed 
of which: floating 

7 666 
6 758 

908 

100.0 
88.2 
11.8 

9 034 
8 286 

748 

100.0 
91.7 

8.3 

10 996 
9 139 
1 857 

100.0 
83.1 
16.9 

13 672 
10 225 
3 447 

100.0 
74.8 
25.2 

12 974 
8 886 
4 087 

100.0 
68.5 
31.5 

Table T: Resources raised in ecus from 1981 to 1992 

Fixed-rate borrowings 

Year 
Before 
swops 

1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 

85.0 
112.0 
230.0 
455.0 
720.0 
827.0 
675.0 
959.0 

1 395.0 
1 271.8 
1 550.0 
1 130.0 

Total 9 409.8 

After 
swops 

85.0 
112.0 
230.0 
455.0 
720.0 
897.0 
807.4 
993.0 

1 526.0 
1 254.9 
1 55 0.0 
1 130.0 

9 760.3 

Floating-rote borrowings 
After 

swops 
Commercial 

paper 
Certificates 
of deposit Total 

82.9 
75.1 

450.0 
806.5 

200.0 
500.0 
500.0 

100.0 

252.5 
37.5 
10.0 

100.0 

335.4 
312.6 
510.0 
950.0 
806.5 

1414.6 1 200.0 400.0 3 014.6 
1985 includes 10.6 million in tl iird-porty participations in loans. 

Raised in 
ecus (A) 

85.0 
112.0 
230.0 
555.0 
730.6 
897.0 
807.4 

1 32 8.4 
1 83 8.6 
1 764.9 
2 500.0 
1 93 6.5 

12 785J 

(amounts in million ecus) 

Total 
raised (B) 

2 309.7 
3 205.2 
3 619.4 
4 360.9 
5 709.1 
6 785.5 
5 592.7 
7 666.1 
9 034.5 

10 995.6 
13 672.3 
12 973.6 

85 924.6 

A/B 
as % 

3.7 
3.5 
6.4 

12.7 
12.8 
13.2 
14.4 
17.3 
20.4 
16.1 
18.3 
14.9 

14.9 
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GUIDE TO READERS f 
1. Ecu: Except where otherwise indicated, all amounts quoted are expressed in ecus. 

2. Unit of account: In accordance with Article 4 of the Statute, the ElB's unit of account is defined as being the ecu used by the 
European Communities. See also Financial Statements, Note A, page 78. 

3. ISO standards: The ElB uses the co untry and currency abbreviations adopted by the International Organization for Standard­

ization (ISO), OS indicated in the tables below: 

GR 
ES 
FR 

Ireland IE 
Italy IT 
Luxembourg LU 

Netherlands NL 
Portugal PT 
United Kingdom GB 

United States US 
Switzerland CH 
Japan JP 

Belgium BE Greece 
Denmark DK Spain 
Germany DE France 

4. Conversion rates 
(a) Statistics: The conversion rates used by the ElB during each quarter for recording statistics of its financing operations — contract ; 
signatures and disbursements — as well as of its borrowings are those obtaining on the last working day of the previous quarter; in, 

1992, these were as follows: 

1 St quar ter 
(at 31.12.1991) 

2nd quarter 3rd quarter 4th quarter 1 St quar ter 
(at 31.12.1991) (at 31. 3.1992) [ct 30. 6.1992) (at 30. 9.1992) 

1 ecu = 
Belgian franc 
Danish krone 

ECU 
BEF 41.9308 42.0371 42.1743 40.6118 

1 ecu = 
Belgian franc 
Danish krone DKK 7.92945 7.92670 7.87581 7.63446 

Deutsche Mark DEM 2.03553 2.04206 2.04966 1.97117 

Drachma GRD 235.065 237.167 249.382 253.890 

Peseta ESP 129.668 129.129 129.385 138.434 

French franc FRF 6.95338 6.92420 6.88923 6.66145 

Irish pound IEP 0.766332 0.766969 0.768949 0.750078 

Italian lira ITL 1 542.40 1 541.37 1 550.13 1 730.69 

Luxembourg franc LUF 41.9308 42.0371 42.1743 40.6118 

Dutch guilder NLG 2.29352 2.29965 2.30992 2.22030 

Escudo PTE 179.886 176.072 171.041 175.448 

Pound sterling GBP 0.716117 0.714742 0.706461 0.787381 

United States dollar USD 1.34093 1.24379 1.34228 1.39800 

Swiss franc CHF 1.81763 1.86320 1.84966 1.72023 

Japanese yen JPY 167.549 165.425 168.993 167.200 

(b) Accounts: The ElB's balance sheet and financial statements are drawn up on the basis of the conversion rotes in force at 
31 December of the financial year concerned. 

5. Activity within the Community 

(a) Statistics: The ElB pro vides individual loons, guarantees and global loans. The la tter are concluded with financial institutions 
which deploy the proceeds as sub-loan s in support of small and medium-scale ventures. 

With α view to offering α fuller picture of ElB activity in the Community, Annual Report statistics since 1988 have covered: 

firstly, OS in the post, financing operations concluded: individual loans (plus, where appropriate, guarantees) and global loons; 

— secondly, operational data: individual loans and allocations from ongoing global loans. 

With α view to ensuring statistical continuity, comparisons with previous periods hove been bosed on identical criteria, which 
explains why certain data in the Annual Reports published since 1988 differ from those featuring in earlier reports. 

(b) Community policy objectives: Financing provided within the Community must meet one or more of these objectives; the figures 
in tables corresponding to different objectives cannot therefore be added together meaningfully. 

(c) Countries: As α general rule, tables detailing activity within the Community list the countries by alphabetical order of the name 
for each country in its own language. 

(d) Other: Financing akin to operations within the Community. Projects located outside the European territory of the Member States 
but of interest to the Community are treated as proje cts within the Community. The Board of Governors may authorise financing for 
such projects o n α cose-by-cose basis under the terms of the second p aragraph of Article 18(1) of the Bank's Statute. This Artide also 
provides scope for operations outside the Community under specific agreements and protocols. 
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(e) Own resources: Principally the proceeds of the Bank's bo rrowings on the capital markets but including "own funds" (paid-in 
capital and reserves), this term was adopted to distinguish such resources fro m those deployed under mandate from the Community 
or the Member States. Whereas operations using own resources are entered on the balance sheet, operations conducted under 
mandate, which also form port of the Bank's activities, are entered in α trust management account: the "Special Section". 

6. Adjustments, totals end rounding: Because of statistical adjustments, amounts quoted for earlier financial years may differ 
slightly from those published previously. 

Amounts are quoted at current prices and exchange rates; they should be interpreted with core if added together over α long period. 
The significance of figures for individual years is affected by price movements and exchange rate variations occurring over the years. 

Differences between totals shown and the sum of individual amounts are due to rounding. 

7. Deflator: The deflator applied to Bank activity is α composite index of the change in notional price indices derived from gross 
fixed capital formation corrected by the index of the change in the rates for converting notional currencies into ecus and weighted by 
each Member Country's shore in Bonk f inancing from own resources. This de flator is estimated at 1.8% for 1992. 

Abbreviations and acronyms used in this report 

Community or EC = European Community 
Commission = Commission of the European Communities 
Council = Council of the European Communities 
ACP = African, Caribbean and Pacific 
CEEC = Central and Eastern European Countries 
EBRD = European Bank for Reconstruction and Development 
ERDE = European Regional Development Fund 
GDP/CNP = Gross domestic/national product 
GFCF = Gross fixed capital formation 
METAP Mediterranean Environmental Technical Assistance Programme 
NCI New Community Instrument for borrowing and lending 
OCT Overseas Countries and Territories 
OECD = Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development 
OJ = Official Journal of the European Communities 
PHARE = Poland and Hungary — Aid for economic restructuring 
SMEs = Small and medium-sized enterprises 

n.a. 
p.m. 

= data not meaningful 
= inapplicable 
= data not available 
= token entry 
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Further information may be obtained from the 
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK 
100, bd Konrad Adenauer— L-2950 Luxembourg 
Tel.: 4379-1 — Telex: 3530 bnkeu lu 
Fox: 43 77 04 

or from its other offices 
Office for Operations in Italy 
Via Sardegna, 38 — 1-00187 Rome 
Tel.: 4719-1 — Telex: 611130 bankeu i 
Fax: 487 34 38 

Atfiens Office 
Amelias, 12 — GR-10557 Athens 
Tel.: 3220 773/4/5 — Telex: 222126 bkeu gr 
Fax: 3220 776 

Lisbon Office 
Avenida da Liberdade, 144-156, 8°, P-1200 Lisbon 
Tel.: 342 89 89 or 342 88 48 — Telex: 15576 bnkeu ρ  
Fax: 347 04 87 

London Office 
68, Pall Mall — London SWIY 5ES 
Tel.: 071-839 3351 — Telex: 919159 bankeu g 
Fax:071-930 9929 

Madrid Office 
Calle José Ortega y Gasset, 29 — E-28006 Madrid 
Tel.: 431 13 40 — Telex: 44670 bnkeu e  
Fax: 431 13 83 

Representative Office in Brussels 
Rue de Ια Loi, 227 — B-1040 Brussels 
Tel.: 230 98 90 — Telex: 21721 bankeu b 
Fax: 230 58 27 

which also have available the following publications: 
Statute 
1991, 40 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Annual Report 
since 1958 
(DE, EN, FR, IT, NL, since 1972 in Danish, since 1980 in Greek and since 1985 
in Spanish and Portuguese) 

EIB-Information 
Periodical information bulletin 
(DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

The European Investment Bank: 35 years 
1993; 24 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Loans for building the European Community 
1990, 20 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Financing facilities under the Fourth Lomé Convention 
1991, 20 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Financing facilities in the non-member Mediterranean countries 
1992, 20 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Protection of the Environment (briefing series) 
1991, 8 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Communications (briefing series) 
1991, 12 pp. (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

Financing Europe's future (ElB's ro le and activity — leaflet) 
1992 (DA, DE, EN, ES, FR, GR, IT, NL, PT) 

The European Investment Bonk v/ishes to thank those project promoters who hove 
kindly authorised the photographs used in this report. 

Photographs by: cover: The Image Bank (J. Smith); p. 54: La Vie du Rail (C. Recoura) (1 ); 
Storebœlt Billedarkiv (J. K. Winther) (2); Nouvelle Maurilait (3); Compagnie Froncaise 
pour le Développement des Fibres Textiles (4). 
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